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COMPANY PROFILE

NGB B

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (the “Company” together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) engages principally in the manufacturing and sales of lead-acid motive batteries
and other related products. These batteries are widely used in electric bikes, electric
tricycles, special-purpose electric vehicles, etc. The Group also manufactures and sells
storage batteries and lithium-ion batteries. It is one of the very few enterprises which has
successfully adopted the enclosed battery formation process in large scale production.

Headquartered in Changxing, Zhejiang Province, the Group's manufacturing facilities are
strategically located in regions with higher demand for lead-acid motive batteries, namely
Shandong, Jiangsu, Henan, Zhejiang, Anhui, Jiangxi and Hebei Provinces.

The primary market of the Group features top electric bike manufacturers in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC" or China), and its secondary market is supported by a
nationwide distribution network covering all provinces. For the primary market, the Group
supplies original batteries to most of the well-known electric bike manufacturers in the
PRC. The Group has achieved total cadmium-free production by the end of 2013, in
fulfillment of its corporate social responsibility as a green enterprise.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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PLACE OF LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

STOCK CODE
00951

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Mingming (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Zhou Longrui
Ms. Yang Yunfei
Mr. Yang Xinxin

Non-executive Director
Ms. Fang Jianjun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Jigiang

Prof. Ouyang Minggao
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai
Mr. Ng Chi Kit

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jigiang

Prof. Ouyang Minggao

Mr. Ng Chi Kit

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Mingming

Mr. Wang Jigiang

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Zhou Mingming (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Jigiang

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Leung Wai Yip CPA

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Zhou Mingming
Mr. Leung Wai Yip CPA

REGISTERED OFFICE
P.O.Box 31119 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 18, Chengnan Road, Huaxi Industrial Function Area

Changxing County

Zhejiang Province, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 1308A, 13/F, Lippo Sun Plaza

28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS
China Construction Bank, Changxing Jie Fang Dong Road Sub-branch
Bank of China, Changxing County Sub-branch

LEGAL ADVISERS
As to Hong Kong law
Morgan, Lewis & Bockius

As to PRC law
Zhejiang S&P Law Firm

As to Cayman Islands law
Conyers Dill & Pearman
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
INCIE=YE

AUDITOR
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shop 1712-16, 17th Floor Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3

Building D, P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court, Camana Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1100, Cayman Islands

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chaowei.com.hk
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
&7 %55 8 2

CONSOLIDATED (RMB'000) e ARETT)
For the year ended 31 December
HEt+-_A=+—8BIt5E
020 2019
—E-NF
B’ 000 RMB'000
K ARETT
Revenue A 27,304,556 27,181,732
Gross profit EH 3,297,333 3,393,273
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company A FIHEAG A FE(LFE 720,397 561,340
Earnings per share — Basic and diluted FRAF —EAR R RMBO0.65 RMBO.51
AR®o6sT | AR®O0S517T
Proposed final dividend per share EEERRERE HK$0.117 HK$0.084
0.117 87T 0.084 8T
REVENUE (RMB in million) WA ARETET)
2020 27,305
2019 27,182
REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT BAZRERE S

(RMB in million  Proportion of total revenue)
Li-ion Battery
SRBET S
0.52% 141
0.95% 259

Electric Bike Battery
BERITEEM

59.42% 16,224
63.46% 17,249

Renewable Wasted Battery
AEREREEMN

0.43% 118
0% 0

2019

(ARBBAET (HEBALH)

1 ‘l\
’

Electric Vehicle Battery
and Special-purpose
Electric Vehicle Battery
BEEEMREFHRAE

EPEEL

8,054 29.49%

7,626 28.06%
_E

Materials (lead and active additives)

R R FOE YD)
2, 768 10 14%

2,047 | 7 53%
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GARNERING AWARDS FOR
OUTSTANDING ACHIEVEMENTS
BE A NEEY /RS

National Model Enterprise of Intellectual

Property
BERMGERTRELR
Top 100 Science & Top 100 Private Enterprises
Technology Enterprises in in Science & Technology
China’s Light Industry Innovation
FEEIXHERHEE RELEHHAIF 1004

Top 500 Enterprises of
China’s Manufacturing
Industry

REREEXLE 5005

FORTUNE 500

CHINESE COMPANIES
(HME)HRE LT 500

China’s Top 500
New Economy Enterprises

FEHEELE 5005

Top 10 Enterprises of New
Energy Battery Industry in
China’s Light Industry
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TEHwS

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors” or each the
"Director”) of the Company, | am pleased to present to shareholders the
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Year").

The Group managed to minimize the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
(the “Pandemic”) through outstanding management and adaptability and,

as a result, achieved satisfactory results and maintained steady business

development during the Year. The Group's performance highlights are as

follows:

10

Having benefited from an increase in overall sales, an increase in
other income and other gains and losses due to a gain in fair value of
financial assets and reduction of operating expenses due to the
Group's enhanced operational efficiency, profit attributable to
owners of the Company for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB720 million, representing an increase of 28.3% as compared with
that for the year ended 31 December 2019

The Group continued to achieve top rankings in a number of
renowned domestic and international lists of Chinese enterprises,
which included topping the list of the “Top 10 Enterprises of New
Energy Battery Industry in China” (F BIFTEER B I TE TR B )
for the eighth year in a row, once again being awarded a position

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2020
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TEHRS

among the “China’s Top 500 New Economy Enterprises” (7 B #TAS
JE2£50058) and being included in the fifth batch of Single
Champion Demonstration Enterprises in Manufacturing Industry (22
EHEIEE BRI (FAH)) by Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology of the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC")
("MIIT"). These accolades demonstrate the recognition of the Group
as an industry leader by authoritative organizations and the industry.

During the Year, the Group's business achieved encouraging development,
primarily attributable to the steady economic development of the PRC
amidst the Pandemic, as well as an increase in the market demand for
electric bikes stemming from anti-pandemic measures, the continuous
upgrade of electric bikes and the Group’s effective cost control. In the Year,
faced with the impacts of the Pandemic and the unfavorable domestic and
international environment, the PRC still experienced a year-on-year growth
of 2.3% in gross domestic product (GDP), demonstrating the strong
resilience of the PRC's economy. In addition, the social distancing measures
in response to the Pandemic, as well as a significant increase in online
shopping activities and home delivery services, fueled the market demand
for electric bikes, electric tricycles and special-purpose electric vehicles, as
well as related lead-acid motive batteries.

During the Year, the Group continued to enhance the quality and
production technology of its lead-acid motive battery products and
develop products with superior performance, energy efficiency and
environmental friendliness, so as to strengthen its position as a leading
enterprise in the lead-acid motive battery industry. Moreover, the Group
continued to fortify its sales channels and strengthen its brand building
efforts, with a view to enhance brand awareness and thus uphold the
Group's leading position.

The Group is also fully committed to technological innovation. With a
leading research and development (“R&D") team, the Group has been
promoting innovation in its technology, products, production and
management, in a bid to continuously propel the upgrade and
development of the new energy industry.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to all
of the shareholders, customers and business partners for their unwavering
support and trust in the Group. | would also like to thank the Board,
management team and all of our staff for their exceptional contributions.
In 2021, we will be committed to technological innovation in order to
implement high-quality development for the Group and achieve even
greater breakthroughs and achievements in the field of new energy.
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An industry pioneer in

"GREEN PRODUCTION"
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The Group will strive to achieve higher profitability by increasing
operational efficiency. It will also continue to pursue the strategic
objective of “maintaining leadership in talent and technology,
product quality and cost controls as well as market branding”,
accelerate its entry into the international market, actively identify
high potential projects in the electric vehicle and new energy
segments and reach the goal of “shaping technological
development and creating a new benchmark for production
model"”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BIEE5Vm M DT

Strategically located production facilities
to seize market opportunities

KEEEERR BETHER

The Group's production facilities have been

strategically located in regions with higher
demand of lead-acid motive batteries
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

ERENHRRDIR

The Group engages principally in the manufacturing and sales of lead-acid
motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries and other related products, which
are primarily used in electric bikes, electric tricycles and special-purpose
electric vehicles.

The outbreak of the Pandemic in early 2020 posed challenges to the
domestic and international economies and market environment. The
Group swiftly carried out pandemic prevention measures and managed to
minimize the impact of the Pandemic on its business operations. With a
leading R&D platform, the Group consistently made breakthroughs in the
field of R&D and improved the quality and production technology of its
battery products, which are well recognized by both the industry and the
public.

During the Year, the Group's total revenue amounted to approximately
RMB27,305 million, representing an increase of approximately 0.5%. The
Group's overall gross profit margin slightly decreased to approximately
12.1% (2019: approximately 12.5%). Profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately RMB720 million (2019: approximately
RMB561 million), representing a year-on-year growth of 28.3%.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Stable development of electric bike market

The PRC ranks as the top manufacturer and seller of electric bikes in the
world. Electric bikes are inexpensive, small in size, convenient and energy-
efficient, hence they have been a major mode of transportation in the PRC.
According to statistics from the China Bicycle Association, ownership of
electric bike reached nearly 300 million in the PRC in 2020. The annual
electric bike production in the PRC has been in excess of 30 million units in
recent years.

Although the supply chain, production and offline sales of electric bikes in
the PRC were adversely affected by the Pandemic during the first quarter of
the Year, the situation has gradually returned to normal in all aspects since
the second quarter, and market demand for electric bikes has increased in
response to social distancing measures, which in turn boosted their sales.
In addition, the revised “Safety Technical Specification for Electric Bicycle”
(B BITE L2 T8 ), the “New National Standard”) has been
implemented in the PRC since April 2019, pursuant to which, the duration
of the transition period varies in different regions. In the second half of the
Year, after the end of the transition period in various regions, the relevant
authorities began to investigate and penalise the use of non-compliant
electric bikes, which led to a “Replacement Period” of electric bikes and
hence increases the demand for new electric bikes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BIEE5Vm M DT

As the Pandemic swept across the globe, social distancing became part of
everyday life, and amidst this, many people preferred electric bikes to travel
short distances, which has stimulated the demand for such bikes. Also, the
accelerating urbanization in Southeast Asia and India, and the efforts to
optimize road conditions and improve pollution problems in these
countries will benefit the development of electric two-wheelers there, and
boost the production and export market of electric bikes in the PRC.

Sustained growth in demand for electric tricycles and special
purpose electric vehicles

In the PRC, electric tricycles have been widely used for short-haul
transportation by families, in cities, rural areas, plant complexes and mining
areas, and for public hygiene, community maintenance and cleaning
services. Since early 2020, the e-commerce business has experienced a
growth in the PRC due to the decline in travel under the Pandemic. As a
result, courier services and storage and logistics businesses developed
rapidly, which led to the continued growth in demands for large electric
tricycles and special-purpose electric vehicles used for short distance cargo
transportation. Furthermore, as the PRC government is gradually tightening
the supervision over electric tricycles, non-compliant products will be
weeded out and industry consolidation will be accelerated, which will in
turn facilitate the sales of high-quality and advanced electric tricycles.

Lead-acid motive batteries maintain strong market position
Lead-acid battery products have the advantages of stable and reliable
performance, wide applications, a high level of safety-in-use and
regeneration rate, and the lead-acid battery industry is very mature with
constantly improving technology. In addition, given that lead-acid battery
is good value for money and its major target consumers are low and
middle-income groups who are more price-sensitive, the product has
accounted for a substantial share in the market of electric two-wheelers,
electric tricycles and small electric tricycles for the elderly. Since lead-acid
motive batteries require regular replacement, demand in the replacement
market is large and stable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

ERENHRRDIR

The ever-improving industry standards that promote
industry upgrade

During the Year, the PRC government continued to improve the industry
standards for electric bicycles and storage batteries to promote the
generational upgrade of electric bicycles and the healthy development of
the industry, and which is expected to continue to benefit the sales of such
batteries. In September 2020, MIIT promulgated a number of industry
standards, three of which are related to the electric bike sector, including
“Electric Bike Motors and Controllers” ((EE &) & 775 3 B Eh# K I 583 )),
“Rules for Coding Identity Information with Two-dimensional Barcode for
Lead Storage Battery"{ $5 & Bt — 405 5 1012 B4R ISR A1) and “Lithium
Battery Charger for Electric Bike"({ E&) B 1TE B E M FTE 2R ), which has
come into effect on 1 January 2021. MIIT also stated that the draft of
“Standards of Four-wheeled low speed Electric Vehicle"({ PU & {K 3R & &) B8
IZAE)) has been completed, and is now accelerating the preparation of low-
speed electric vehicle standards, which will further improve the specific
management measures for the future production, sales, taxation, insurance,
use and after-sales services of low-speed electric vehicles. Moreover, in
September 2020, the China Bicycle Association has gained government
approval to formulate the “Standard for Vehicles Specific for Takeaway
Delivery Purpose” ({4NE 5 A 88 B 8812 4E). Following the formulation and
implementation of the new standards, takeaway electric vehicles will be
subject to more stringent management, which will promote the replacement
of such vehicles.

In addition, the “Technical Specifications for Recycling Waste Lead-acid
Rechargeable Batteries” (€ % Bk & 8 )t [0 W B2 4 48 #6)), drafted with
the Group's contributions and officially announced by the State
Administration for Market Regulation and Standardization Administration
of the PRC, came into effect in October 2019. The standards require
enterprises to establish a recycling system capable of “recycling one battery
for every battery sold”, with used batteries collected via a network at the
consumer-end by the manufacturer's own sales channel or specialized
recycling operators. The policy has facilitated the development of the
nation’s waste lead-acid rechargeable battery recycling industry in a more
regulated manner, which will favor lead-acid battery enterprises with an
established recycling system.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BIEE5Vm M DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Battery business sustaining stable development

The Group has been focusing on enhancing the quality and production
technology of its lead-acid motive battery products and developing
products with superior performance, energy efficiency and environmental
friendliness, so as to strengthen its position as a leading enterprise in the
lead-acid motive battery industry and promote the stable development of
the lead-acid motive battery business. During the Year, revenue from sales
of lead-acid motive batteries amounted to approximately RMB24,278
million, accounting for approximately 88.9% of the Group's total revenue.
In particular, revenue from sales of electric bike batteries amounted to
approximately RMB16,224 million, accounting for approximately 59.4% of
the Group’s total revenue; and revenue from sales of electric tricycle
batteries and special-purpose electric vehicle batteries amounted to
approximately RMB8,054 million, accounting for approximately 29.5% of
the Group's total revenue.

In addition, the Group is also engaged in the R&D and sales of lithium-ion
battery products, so as to meet the long-term needs of the market’s future
developments. The products are manufactured using a pouch-type (80£2)
technique which has been awarded specialized accreditations such as the
“National Torch Plan Industrialization Demonstration Project Certificate” (B4
RANEFTEIERCREIAR &

performance, a high level of safety—ln—use and specific energy functions

). The product delivers excellent

conducive to lightweight development and a prolonged battery life.
Revenue from sales of the lithium-ion battery products for the Year
amounted to approximately RMB141
invest in the R&D of lithium-ion battery product technology in an effort to
manufacture more advanced lithium-ion batteries with a better cost
performance ratio.

million. The Group will continue to
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ERENHRRDIR

Strengthening its sales channels and brand building

The Group continued to adopt an effective production strategy with plants
strategically located in regions with greater demand for lead-acid motive
batteries, such as Shandong, Anhui, Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Jiangxi, Henan and
Hebei provinces in the PRC, enabling the Group to react to market changes
flexibly while reducing storage and logistics costs to maintain efficient
operations.

The Group has built a nationwide sales and distribution network in the PRC
with full coverage of both the primary and secondary markets. For the
primary market, the Group has established a major customer service
department which makes regular visits to the management of these
manufacturers to provide comprehensive sales services. For the secondary
market, the Group operates an extensive distribution network spanning
across all provinces within the country, providing customers with high-
quality services. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 1,978
independent distributors serving the secondary market.

The Group continued to practice a calibrated management model with
regard to its distributors based on a flat management model. It also
adopted the agency model to reduce the intermediaries in sales channels,
while providing technical training and consulting services to independent
distributors to enhance their sales capabilities. These efforts were
complemented by comprehensive after-sales services and online anti-
counterfeit enquiries to increase customer satisfaction regarding the
"CHILWEE" brand. Moreover, the Group retained renowned movie star Mr.
Donnie Yen as its brand ambassador to reinforce the brand image of
"CHILWEE". During the Year, the Group also organized a number of new
product launch conferences and industry exhibitions to promote products
under the “CHILWEE" brand and to enhance its image as a brand with
cutting-edge technology.
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Wide recognition as an industry leader

Thanks to its excellent technological innovation capability, brand influence and
market competitiveness, the Group’s position as an industry leader has enjoyed
strong recognition by authoritative organizations and the industry. During the
Year, the Group retained its place among the “Top 500 Chinese Enterprises” (4
BH{>2£ 50038 ), “Top 500 Enterprises of China's Manufacturing Industry” (F
SUEZEDF 50058) and “Top 500 Chinese Private Owned Enterprises” (FF
R&®250058), while being honored with a spot among the “Fortune Top
500 Chinese Companies” ({# & ) % B 500 3% ). The Group also continued to
rank among the “Top 100 Enterprises of China’s Light Industry” (H7 B0 &8 T 3£
H38 %) and the “Top 100 Science & Technology Enterprises in China’s Light
Industry” (FF BIE8 T 2 RHE H 58 %), while topping the list of the “Top 10
Enterprises of New Energy Battery Industry in China’s Light Industry” (4 B &8
TEFLREMITE TR ZE) for the eighth year in a row, being listed in
the “China’s Top 500 New Economy Enterprises” (FF Bl T 48 775 1 2£ 50058)
and being included in the fifth batch of Single Champion Demonstration
Enterprises in Manufacturing industry (2435 % B8 1870 B R &b 2 (BB R L))
by MIIT.

Persistent effort in technological innovation

The Group is committed to an innovation-driven model and industry
integration. It continues to strengthen its R&D in technology, improve
product quality, invent superior technology, and achieve breakthroughs in
the energy industry. The Group's R&D expenses for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB857 million, equivalent to approximately 3.1% of its
total revenue.

The Group has been actively recruiting world-class professionals to join its
leading R&D team, with a view to maintaining its leading position in
innovative R&D. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had more than ten
renowned domestic and foreign experts on the team. In addition, the
Group has been named as the National Model Enterprise of Technology
Innovation (BIZR $XMTBIFT R &5 %) and National Model Enterprise of
Intellectual Property (BIZK A% E#E R #10 25), having established a
number of R&D platforms, such as the nationally-recognized enterprise
technology center, nationally-accredited laboratory, national
environmental protection engineering technology center, provincial key
research institute, academician work station and national post-doctoral
research work station. It has also established R&D centers overseas.
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Future development strategy

Looking ahead to 2021, the Pandemic is generally under control in the PRC,
while countries around the world are formulating mass vaccination plans,
which are expected to gradually ease the Pandemic. While the global
economy is expected to continue to recover in 2021, the speed of
vaccination is one of the most important factors that affect the extent of
economic rebound, and it is believed that the PRC and Asia will be the
biggest drivers of global economic growth. The Group will closely monitor
the development of the market, adopt flexible contingency measures, and
adjust marketing and production strategies as and when appropriate.

On the other hand, with continuous improvement of industry regulations
by the PRC government to promote industrial upgrade, the Group remains
optimistic about the development potential of the lead-acid battery
business. In the future, the Group will focus on technological innovation,
and strive to achieve greater breakthroughs and achievements in the field
of new energy.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue amounted to approximately RMB27,304,556,000 in
the Year, which has increased by approximately 0.5% from approximately
RMB27,181,732,000 in 2019. The increase in revenue was primarily
attributable to net effect of the followings: (1) increase in sales volume; and
(2) drop in average selling price of lead-acid motive batteries caused by a
decrease in price of lead which is the main raw material of lead-acid motive
batteries.

Gross profit

The Group's gross profit amounted to approximately RMB3,297,333,000 in
the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 2.8% from
approximately RMB3,393,273,000 in 2019. The Group's gross profit margin
in the Year was approximately 12.1% (2019: approximately 12.5%). The
slight decrease in gross profit margin was primarily due to the increase in
the proportion of sales of material including lead and active additives
which has a relatively lower gross profit margin.

Other income and other gains and losses

The Group’s other income and other gains and losses amounted to
approximately RMB548,606,000 in the Year, representing an increase of
approximately 114.9% from approximately RMB255,258,000 in 2019. The
increase was mainly due to the gain on fair value of financial assets,
comprising equity securities listed in Hong Kong, of approximately
RMB284,151,000 for the Year.
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Distribution and selling expenses

The Group's distribution and selling expenses amounted to approximately
RMB718,945,000 in the Year, representing a decrease of approximately
13.2% from approximately RMB828,010,000 in 2019, which was primarily
attributable to a decrease in staff costs, advertisements and transportation
expenses resulting from cost saving measures in 2020. For the Year, the
distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of revenue were
approximately 2.6% (2019: approximately 3.0%).

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses were approximately RMB613,105,000
in the Year, representing a decrease of approximately 3.1% from
approximately RMB632,801,000 in 2019, which was mainly due to the
decrease in salary cost, travelling and consulting expenses resulting from
cost saving measures.

R&D expenses

The Group's R&D expenses amounted to approximately RMB857,364,000 in
the Year, representing an increase of approximately 7.5% from
approximately RMB797,570,000 in 2019, which was primarily attributable to
an increase in R&D expenditure on lead-acid batteries and other new
technology products during the Year.

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs increased by approximately 23.6% from
approximately RMB300,642,000 in 2019 to approximately RMB371,669,000
in the Year. The increase in finance costs was primarily due to an increase
in interest expenses on bank borrowings.

Profit before tax

For the above reasons, the Group’s profit before tax increased by
approximately 32.3% to approximately RMB1,065,559,000 in the Year (2019:
approximately RMB805,486,000).

Taxation

The Group's income tax expenses increased by approximately 14.1% to
approximately RMB341,053,000 in the Year (2019: approximately
RMB298,831,000). The effective tax rate was approximately 32.0% in the
Year (2019: approximately 37.1%). The decrease in the effective tax rate was
mainly due to the effect of preferential tax rate of 15% on income of certain
subsidiaries during the Year.
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Profit attributable to owners of the Company

In the Year, profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB720,397,000, representing an increase of approximately
28.3%, from approximately RMB561,340,000 in 2019. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in other income and other gains and losses
caused by gain on fair value of financial assets and the reduction of
operating expenses caused by enhancement of the Group's operational
efficiency during the Year.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current assets of approximately
RMB644,490,000 (31 December 2019: net current assets of approximately
RMB130,904,000). Cash and bank balances were approximately
RMB2,552,548,000 (31 December 2019: approximately RMB1,958,428,000).
Net debts, including borrowings, corporate bonds, lease liabilities,
medium-term note and deducting cash and bank deposits (including
restricted bank deposits), were approximately RMB2,414,359,000 (31
December 2019: approximately RMB2,579,920,000), which were mainly
used to finance the capital expenditure and daily working capital of the
Group. Borrowings were denominated in RMB, USD or HKD, of which
approximately RMB4,957,932,000 bore interest at fixed rates and
approximately RMB4,907,346,000 were repayable within one year. The
Group adopts centralised financing and treasury policies in order to ensure
that the Group's funding is utilised efficiently and it monitors its interest
rate risks in a conservative manner.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current ratio (current assets/current
liabilities) was 1.06 (31 December 2019: 1.01) and gearing ratio (net debts/
total assets) was approximately 12.6% (31 December 2019: approximately
14.8%). The Group had sufficient cash and available banking facilities to
meet its commitments and working capital requirements. The current cash
position enables the Group to explore potential investment and potential
business development opportunities to expand its domestic market share.

Exchange rate fluctuation risk

As the Group's operations are mainly conducted in the PRC and the
majority of the sales and purchases are transacted in RMB, the Directors are
of the view that the Group’s operating cash flow and liquidity are not
subject to significant foreign exchange rate risks. Accordingly, the Group
does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency
risk.
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Pledge of assets HEEHR

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s assets were  RIREHIR - BT AEBEEC/EERR - EAXR
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The aggregate £ EEZIBITEENER - AEER SR EH KR
carrying amount of the assets of the Group pledged at the end of each of KR IEIFEERBEEAEN T ¢

the reporting periods is as follows:

2020 2019
—BPF —E-NF
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR%®TT AREFT
Buildings EF 862,668 1,058,086
Right-of-use assets FREEE 119,629 181,318
Deposits for borrowings R R 79,986 55,962
Receivables at FVTOC| BEAFAEFAEMEEREREIKEIE 631,655 1,049,328
Restricted bank deposits ZRRGIRITIF K 1,332,206 633,339
Capital commitments BEKIE
2020 2019
—ZT_TE ZE—NF
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR®BTR AREFT
Contracted but not provided for: BRT#BREAE
— acquisition of property, plant and — WEEmE - WE R
equipment 194,512 74412
— acquisition of intangible asset —WEEEEE 8,025 7,847
— capital contribution to associates —REEREEE 23,200 23,200
— capital contribution to a joint venture —H—REELEIE 22,000 22,000
Contingent liabilities KNRARF
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020 31 AEBR T _ZTF+_A=+—HUEIRE
December 2019: Nil). B(ZE—NF+-_A=+—H &)~
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Human resources and employees’ remuneration

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 15,105 (31
December 2019: 15,296) staff members in the PRC and Hong Kong. During
the Year, the total cost of employees amounted to approximately
RMB1,555,367,000. The Group sought to further strengthen staff training by
offering focused training programmes and study tours to management
and professional technical personnel, and disseminating the latest
information of government policy on the lead-acid motive battery industry
to staff. The Group continued to strive for the enhancement of professional
standards and overall qualities of its staff. The Group also provided
competitive salary packages to its staff, encouraging them to be fully
dedicated in their work and to leverage their capabilities in serving its
customers.

Significant investment, material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

There were no significant investments held, no material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Year, nor
was there any plan authorized by the Board for other material investments
or additions of capital assets at the date of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SHARES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders. The Company has complied
with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the Year, except
for the deviation as stated below.

Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code requires the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is
currently both the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the
execution of the Group's business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its
operation and is therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders
as awhole.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions of
the Directors, senior management and relevant employees (who, because
of their office in the Company, are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information) of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all of them have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee. Its primary duties
include, among other things, the review and supervision of the Group's
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control system.
The Audit Committee comprises all four independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (“Mr. Lee"),
Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao and Mr. Ng Chi Kit. Mr. Lee is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Lee has professional qualification
and experience in accounting and financial matters.

The Audit Committee has met and discussed with the external auditors of
the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and has reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the audited
results of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee considered that the
consolidated results of the Group for the Year are in compliance with the
relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations and that appropriate
disclosures have been duly made in accordance with Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules in this report.
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PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company (the “Register of Members”) will
be closed from 7 June 2021 to 10 June 2021 (both days inclusive), for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend the annual
general meeting, during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending the annual
general meeting, the shareholders should ensure that all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, No.183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration by
no later than 4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2021.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HKDO0.117 per share for shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members on 21 June 2021. The Register of Members will be closed from
17 June 2021 to 21 June 2021, both days inclusive, and the proposed final
dividend is expected to be paid on or around 16 July 2021. The payment of
dividends shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company expected to be held by 10 June 2021. In
order to be qualified for the proposed final dividend, shareholders should
deliver share certificates together with transfer documents to the
Company’s branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m.on 16 June 2021.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Mingming (EIBBBB), aged 52, is the founder of the Group, the
chairman of the Board, an executive Director and the chief executive officer
of the Group. Mr. Zhou is mainly responsible for the Group's overall strategy
planning and investment decisions. Mr. Zhou received a bachelor's degree
in chemistry from Hangzhou Normal University (FL)BT&5E2FE) in July
1990, and has over 20 years experience in the lead-acid battery industry.
Mr. Zhou is the younger brother of Mr. Yang Xinxin, and the son of Mr.
Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being executive Directors. Also, Mr.
Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

Mr. Zhou Longrui ( ] §&3 ), aged 82, is an executive Director of the Group.
He is mainly responsible for the overall supervision of the technical aspects
of the production process. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in January 1998. Mr.
Zhou has rich experience in the lead-acid battery industry gained at the
Group and through previous employment. Early in 1994 and
since then, Mr. Zhou published several professional articles in the field
of lead-acid batteries on various magazines such as Batteries ({ & & b)),
International Power Information ({ B B2 R %15 ) and Power Technologies
(CFEIRFATY), etc. Mr. Zhou was appointed the vice-chairman of the First
Session of Lead-acid Battery Committee (£ — A E T HhHEELTE S
BlE1EZ 8) by China Electrotechnics Technology Academy (FF B & T
17 B @) in August 2008 and a member of National Lead-acid Battery
Standardization Technology Committee (% Bl 1 E4 B iR &L K iTZE 8
&) in July 2007. He is the father of Mr. Zhou Mingming and Mr. Yang
Xinxin and the spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being executive Directors. He
is also a father-in-law of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

Ms. Yang Yunfei (# &), aged 78, is an executive Director of the Group.
She is mainly responsible for the management of the Group's procurement
and building. She has been with the Group since January 1998. Ms. Yang
has worked in several battery manufacturing factories, responsible for
manufacturing and overall operation of the factories and worked for the
establishment preparation of the Group. Ms. Yang has accumulated rich
experience in the lead-acid battery industry gained at the Group and
through previous employment. Ms. Yang Yunfei is the mother of Mr. Zhou
Mingming and Mr. Yang Xinxin and the spouse of Mr. Zhou Longrui, all
being executive Directors. She is also a mother-in-law of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a
non-executive Director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SBNSHRERAS

Mr. Yang Xinxin (8¥1#7), aged 54, is an executive Director of the Group.
He is mainly responsible for assisting Mr. Zhou Mingming in the discharge
of Mr. Zhou's duties in the overall management of the Group. Mr. Yang
joined the Group in August 2011. He has vast experience in the
management of sizeable organisations. Immediately prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Yang was the secretary of the party committee (2Z £ #2) and
deputy head (BIFt &) of Zhejiang Design Institute of Water Conservancy and
Hydroelectric Power (1T & K F|7K E &) RIFEETBR), and had served in
such positions since August 2006. Mr. Yang was the deputy head (Bl &)
of the People’s Government of Anji County, Zhejiang Province (/T A %
H % ARBAT) between June 2001 and August 2003. Mr. Yang was the
deputy director of Water Resources Department of Zhejiang Province (4
7&K FBE) between August 2003 and August 2006. Mr. Yang is a
professor-level senior engineer (B 4% = A TIZAM). Mr. Yang obtained a
bachelor degree from Anhui University of Science & Technology (%2 3%
T K&, formerly known as Huainan Mining Institute (EFIE2E£267), in
July 1988 and a master's degree from Zhejiang University ($1)T A2 in
March 1991. Mr. Yang is an elder brother of Mr. Zhou Mingming, the son of
Mr. Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, all being executive Directors. He is
also a brother-in-law of Ms. Fang Jianjun, a non-executive Director.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Fang Jianjun (753 %), aged 52, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Group on 17 November 2013. Ms. Fang received a
bachelor’s degree in chemistry from Hangzhou Normal University (714 Bl
&3 KE) in July 1990. From August 1990 to October 1998, Ms. Fang was a
teacher at Hongxi Middle School (#T A £8) in Zhejiang Province, the PRC.
Ms. Fang is the spouse of Mr. Zhou Mingming, an executive Director, the
chairman of the Board, and the controlling shareholder (as defined under
the Listing Rules) of the Company. She is also a daughter-in-law of Mr.
Zhou Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, a sister-in-law of Mr. Yang Xinxin, all
being executive Directors.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jigiang (GE##358), aged 81, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Group. Mr. Wang has more than 50 years of experience in
the field of electrochemistry. Before he retired in December 2008, Mr. Wang
has been working in the 18th Research Institute, China Electronics
Technology Group Corporation (Bl E FRHEZ & B AR 1 /\TFFTEN)
since October 1962 as a vice-chief engineer. In addition, Mr. Wang received
various awards of national and provincial levels for his achievements on
development of new battery technology, such as the first class award on
science and technology advancement (B2 /i3t 25— 4%) from the
former Ministry of Electronics Industry (presently known as MIIT) on his
research on lithium rechargeable battery technology in October 1999. In
view of his contribution, Mr. Wang was awarded a “Celebrating the 70th
Anniversary of the Founding of the People’s Republic of China”
commemorative medal in 2019. Mr. Wang received a bachelor's degree in
electrochemistry from Fudan University in 1962, and went to Stanford
University in the United States as a visiting scholar on government
sponsorship from 1982 to 1985. After returning to the PRC, he received the
title of professor and was mainly in charge of new battery technology
development. After his retirement, Mr. Wang has continued to assist China
Industrial Association of Power Sources (A BI{t 2212 TERITEMD)
to organise various international and domestic technology exchange
activities, including China International Battery Fair (f BIEIBR E0iEE <
BT/ &) which is held biennially.

Prof. Ouyang Minggao (ERFRBAT), aged 62, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Group. Prof. Ouyang graduated from the
Technical University of Denmark with a doctorate degree in Engineering in
1993. He worked at Tsinghua University (/&2 K 22) since 1994, and is
currently a Ministry of Education Scholar Chang Jiang Special Professor (24
B BRI E2EFFEEHUR). Prof. Ouyang is also a Standing Member of the
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (FEIARBUATH B &2 BEZE & FHZE 8). Prof. Ouyang
is an independent non-executive director of Baic Bluepark New Energy
Technology Co,, Ltd. (Stock Code: 600733) (Ab)RE A FTREREH DB
R 72 8]), a company listed on the Main Board of Shanghai Stock Exchange.
Prof. Ouyang also served as independent non-executive Director of
Sinotruk (Hong Kong) Limited (Stock Code: 3808) and Zhuzhou CRRC Times
Electric Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 3898), both being companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from July 2007 to December 2015 and
from August 2017 to March 2018, respectively, Shanghai Diesel Engine
Company Limited (Stock Code: 600841) (_E/Z4 R H BR AR, a
company listed on the Main Board of Shanghai Stock Exchange, from May
2012 to May 2015, and Chongging Changan Automobile Company Limited
(Stock Code: 000625) (BB K% TEMRDBR A F), a company listed on
the Main Board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange from May 2012 to March
2016.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SBNSHRERAS

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai (FE# ), aged 66, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Group. Mr. Lee received a bachelor's degree in
arts from the Kingston University (formerly known as the Kingston
Polytechnic) in London in July 1980 and obtained his postgraduate
diploma in business from the Curtin University of Technology in Australia in
February 1988. Mr. Lee served as a partner of Ernst & Young for 29 years
until 2009 and had held key leadership positions in the development of
such firm in the PRC. Mr. Lee is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Chartered Accountants, Australia
and New Zealand, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Macau Society
of Registered Accountants. Mr. Lee has been an independent non-
executive director of West China Cement Limited (Stock Code: 2233), China
Modern Dairy Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1117), GOME Retail Holdings
Limited (formerly known as GOME Electrical Appliances Holdings Limited)
(Stock Code: 493), NVC International Holdings Limited (formerly known as
NVC Lighting Holding Limited) (Stock Code: 2222), Yashili International
Holdings Ltd (Stock Code: 1230), GCL New Energy Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 451), WH Group Limited (Stock Code: 288), all being companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since July 2010, October 2010,
March 2011, November 2012, November 2013, May 2014, and August 2014,
respectively, and Guotai Junan Securities Co,, Ltd.,, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2611) and the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601211), since April 2017. Mr. Lee also served
as an independent non-executive director of China Taiping Insurance
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 966), China Environmental
Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1237), CITIC
Securities Company Limited (Stock Code: 6030), Tibet Water Resources Ltd.
(formerly known as Tibet 5100 Water Resources Holdings Ltd.) (Stock Code:
1115) and China Rundong Auto Group Limited (formerly known as China
Greenland Rundong Auto Group Limited) (Stock Code: 1365), all being
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from October
2009 to August 2013, from July 2014 to September 2015, from November
2011 to May 2016, from March 2011 to February 2020, from July 2014 to
December 2020, respectively, and Sino Vanadium Inc. (Stock Code: SVX), a
company listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Toronto, Canada, from
October 2009 to December 2011. Mr. Lee was for 10 years a member of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Hunan Province in
the PRC.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SBNSHREBAS

Mr. Ng Chi Kit (RE#8), aged 47, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Group on 2 December 2010 and was re-designated as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 February 2017. Prior to that, Mr.
Ng was the Group's chief financial officer and company secretary. Mr. Ng
holds a bachelor's degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is an Associate Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a Fellow Member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Ng worked in the
Assurance and Advisory Business Service Department of Ernst & Young. Mr.
Ng has over 20 years of experience in accounting and auditing. Mr. Ng has
been an independent non-executive director of Great Wall Motor Company
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 2333) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601633), since
May 2017, and Immunotech Biopharm Ltd (Stock Code: 6978), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since June 2020 .

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Jingning (FREEZE), aged 47, is the investment director. Mr. Chen
graduated from the University of Science and Technology of China (7 B}
ERITREZ) in 1995 and obtained a Master of Business Administration from
University of Science and Technology of China in 2005. Mr. Chen joined the
Group in 2003 as assistant to chairman and has since 2011 held his current
position as the investment director.

Prof. Chen Tixian (BRBE#), aged 82, is the head of the research and
development department and is responsible for leading the research
activities of the Group. Prof. Chen graduated with a bachelor's degree in
chemistry and physics from Xiamen University (BF9AE2) in 1961. Prof.
Chen has over 30 years of experience in the lead-acid battery industry. Prof.
Chen lectured in the chemistry department of Xiamen University between
1961 and 1989 when he retired as a professor. Prof. Chen joined the Group
in April 2004 and has since held his current position as the head of the
research department of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Pan Xuexiang (;BZ2§##), aged 46, is the marketing director and is
responsible for, among others, marketing planning, brands management
and products planning. Mr. Pan graduated with a bachelor’s degree in
economic management from Hefei University of Technology in Anhui in
June 1997. Mr. Pan joined the Group in 2009 and has held several positions
including deputy director of sales channel department and marketing
director.

Mr. Leung Wai Yip ({23), aged 45, was appointed as the Group’s chief
financial officer and company secretary (the “Company Secretary”), on 2
December 2010. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Leung was the financial
controller and the company secretary of Tiangong International Company
Limited (K TEIFRBBR A7) (Stock Code: 826), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from June 2007 to November 2010.
Prior to such appointment, Mr. Leung was an internal auditor of the Swire
Group and was previously a manager with the assurance and advisory
business services department of Ernst & Young, Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Leung graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce degree
from the University of Alberta in Canada in 1998 and obtained a Master of
Business Administration degree from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in 2010. He is a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, and an Associate Member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Leung has been an
independent non-executive director of HPC Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1742), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since
April 2018. He also served as an independent non-executive director of
Miko International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1247), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from December 2013 to February
2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FFREEHmS

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance. The Company acknowledges the important role of the Board
in providing effective leadership and direction to the Company’s business,
and ensuring transparency and accountability of the Company’s
operations. The Board sets appropriate policies and implements corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the
Group's business.

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of shareholders. The Company has complied
with all code provisions of the CG Code of the Listing Rules throughout the
Year, except for the deviations as stated below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is
currently both the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the
execution of the Group's business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its
operation and is therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that non-
executive directors should attend general meetings to gain and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders, and code provision
E.1.2 of the CG Code provides that the chairman of the Board should attend
the annual general meeting. Mr. Zhou Mingming, the chairman of the
Board and executive Director, and Ms. Fang Jianjun, the non-executive
Director, were unable to attend the Company’s annual general meeting
held on 10 June 2020 due to other business commitments.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership, control and management of
the Company and oversees the Group's business, strategic decision and
performances in attaining the objective of ensuring effective functioning
and growth of the Group and enhancing value to investors. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing business
strategies and management of the daily operations of the Group's business
to the management. The Board exercises a number of powers which
include:

formulating long-term strategy

approving public announcements

approving financial statements, including interim and annual results
approving major acquisitions, disposal and capital projects
authorising significant changes to the capital structure and material
borrowings

any issue or buy-back of equity securities under the relevant general
mandates
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FFREEHmS

making recommendations and/or declaration of dividend and
reviewing dividend policy

approving appointments to the Board

setting the Group remuneration policy

reviewing operational and financial performance

reviewing the effectiveness of internal control and risk management

The Board meets at least 4 times a year and additional meetings are held
when required to discuss significant events and issues. The Company
Secretary assists the chairman of the Board in preparing agenda for Board
meetings. Board meetings are held with at least 14 days’ advance notice,
and all Directors would be served with an agenda with supporting papers
at least 3 days before the Board meetings, so as to ensure that there is
timely access to relevant information. The Group ensures that all the Board
members are informed of the Group's latest developments and thereby
assists them in the discharge of their duties. The Directors may take
independent professional advice as and when appropriate, at the
Company'’s expenses. Minutes of the Board and Board committees are
taken by the Company Secretary. Such minutes of the Board and the Board
committees, together with supporting papers, are made available for
inspection by any Director following reasonable notice. Draft and final
versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment and records.

The Company has arranged directors and officers liability and company
reimbursement insurances for the Directors and senior management of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. It includes the review and monitor of
the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and
the senior management of the Group; the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; the
development, review and monitoring of the code of conduct of the
Company’s employees and Directors; and review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors (Mr. Zhou
Mingming, Mr. Zhou Longrui, Ms. Yang Yunfei and Mr. Yang Xinxin), one
non-executive Director (Ms. Fang Jianjun) and four independent non-
executive Directors (Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao, Mr. Lee
Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Ng Chi Kit who was re-designated from a non-
executive Director to an independent non-executive Director on 10
February 2017). Among the executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Mingming is the
younger brother of Mr. Yang Xinxin. They are both sons of Mr. Zhou
Longrui and Ms. Yang Yunfei, and Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms.
Yang Yunfei. Also, Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse of Mr. Zhou Mingming.
Biographical details of the Directors of the Group as at the date of this
annual report are set out on pages 28 to 33 of this annual report.
Independent non-executive Directors account for more than one-third of
the members of the Board. The independent non-executive Directors
come either from the battery industry or have related professional
background, bringing valuable expertise and experience that promotes the
best interests of the Group and its shareholders. The role of the
independent non-executive Directors is to provide independent and
objective opinions to the Board for its consideration.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the Year, the Board has held a total of four Board meetings for the
main purposes of formulating business development and prospects of the
Group, reviewing and considering the financial and operating
performance.

The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings are set out below:
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Attendance/Number of
Board Meetings

Name of Directors EEna HEXRE ESSSHRE
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Zhou Mingming JEIRABA 5 A& 4/4
Mr. Zhou Longrui [Eges St 4/4
Ms. Yang Yunfei S ERZ L 4/4
Mr. Yang Xinxin CEE bts 4/4
Non-executive Director EHRITESF

Ms. Fang Jianjun FREELZ T 3/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFERTES

Mr. Wang Jigiang AR A 4/4
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B 5 BR e 20 4/4
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai Y 4/4
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGEE 4/4
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer to be separated. Mr. Zhou Mingming is
currently both the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board considers that the current arrangement facilitates the
execution of the Group's business strategies and maximizes efficiency of its
operation and is therefore beneficial to the Company and its shareholders
as awhole.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmation from each independent non-
executive Director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and continues to consider each of them to be independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time either
by shareholders’ resolutions in general meetings or by resolutions of the
Board. New Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
during the Year are required to retire at the first annual general meeting
following their appointments and new Directors appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy during the Year are required to retire at the first
general meeting following their appointments, and in both cases, the
acting Directors will be eligible for re-election at such general meeting. All
Directors are required to retire by rotation at least once every 3 years at the
AGM, subject to re-election by the shareholders. All non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are appointed
for a term of not more than 3 years.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. All Directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. The Directors have been informed of the
requirement under code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code regarding
continuous professional development. The Company updates the Directors
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

According to the records provided by the Directors, a summary of training
received by the Directors during the Year is as follows:

EFRRSRERTD

EERIIBEHBERE ARARRBAREEF2H
FESERRE URRLBRENBLKE &
FEMBLEEIATRRTRIEXEA6S FA B
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Type of Continuous
Professional Development

Programmes
Name of Directors ERENE BEEERREEERN
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhou Mingming JERARE S £ AB
Mr. Zhou Longrui BRElm kL AB
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERLZ T A B
Mr. Yang Xinxin kb il A B
Non-executive Director JEBMITES
Ms. Fang Jianjun TEFL+ AB
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUERITESE
Mr. Wang Jigiang T s e A B
Prof. Ouyang Minggao BN 5 A = 2R A B
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai ENETE S AB
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REBERE AB
Notes: Btat -
A: attending training sessions and/or seminars A: HEEFER, e
B: reviewing materials and updates relating to the latest development of the Listing Rules and B B R TR E MR T E RN F

other applicable regulatory requirements
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) for
overseeing the particular aspects of the affairs of the Company. All the
Board committees have been established with defined written terms of
reference, which are posted on the Company’s website “www.chaowei.com.hk”
and the website of the Stock Exchange and are available to the
shareholders upon request. All the Board committees would report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All the Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive Directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai, Mr. Wang Jigiang, Prof.
Ouyang Minggao and Mr. Ng Chi Kit. Mr. Lee is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. He has professional qualification and experience in accounting
and financial matters.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is mainly responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, reviewing the financial information of the Company and
overseeing the relationship with external auditors. These include reviewing
and recommending for the Board's approval of the interim and the annual
financial statements; reviewing the external auditors’ independence,
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process; and reviewing and
recommending to the Board for approval of the external auditors’
remuneration and reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management systems of the Group.
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During the Year, the Directors’ attendance of the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out as follows:

REE BEBFRHEEZZESSENBEAHIN
T

Attendance/Number of

Audit Committee Meetings

HERY EZERE

Name of Directors EElE TERE
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai THEEEE 2/2
Mr. Wang Jigiang FHR S 2/2
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B 55 B e 2 2/2
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REBTE 2/2

The meetings were held together with the external auditors of the
Company and the chief financial officer of the Company, and discussed
auditing, internal control, risk management and financial reporting matters
which included the review of the interim and annual financial statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Mr. Zhou Mingming, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Wang Jigiang. Mr. Lee is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The principal responsibilities of
the Remuneration Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure and the
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, in which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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During the Year, the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group were reviewed and discussed at the meeting of
the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee also assessed
the performance of executive Directors and approved the terms of
executive Directors’ service contracts. The Directors’ attendance of the
meetings of the Remuneration Committee is set out as follows:

1o

AEE FHEZEERNS LEN LA RAKEE
ELEMEEABNFMGE - FHEZBEINF
BRTESORIR RIERTESHREE XK
K BEEHEFMEZESSRNBEREINNT

\

Attendance/Number of

Remuneration Committee

Meeting

HEXRS FHEEE

Name of Directors EEHE TRRE
Mr. Zhou Mingming JEIBABA 5T A& /1
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai THELE /1
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR TEE 1

Details of the remuneration of each Director of the Company for the Year
are set out in note 12 to the financial statements contained in this annual
report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr.
Zhou Mingming, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Wang Jigiang. Mr. Zhou is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The principal responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually and making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the corporate
strategy. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting or
making recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for the Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). The purpose of the Board Diversity Policy is to set out the basic
principles to be followed to ensure that the Board has appropriate balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate
governance. Under the Board Diversity Policy, the selection of the Board
candidates shall be based on a range of diversity perspectives with
reference to the Company’s business model and specific needs, including
but not limited to gender, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience, which are
the measurable objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee has primary responsibility for identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board and shall
give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy in selection of
the Board candidates. Board nomination and appointments will continue
to be made on merit basis based on its business needs from time to time
while taking into account diversity.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy, developing and reviewing measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy and monitoring the progress on
achieving these measurable objectives. The review of the Board Diversity
Policy and the measurable objectives shall be carried out at least annually
to ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has considered the Board
Diversity Policy and whether the Board has the appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives necessary to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate
governance. After due consideration, the Nomination Committee has
concluded that based on the Company'’s existing business model and
specific needs, the current composition of the Board satisfies the Board
Diversity Policy for the Year.

Board nomination policy (the “Board Nomination Policy”) is in place to
ensure that all nominations of Board members are fair and transparent in
order to facilitate the constitution of the Board with a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives that is appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.
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Nomination procedures:
The nomination procedures to select and recommend Board candidates
could be summarised as follows:

REREF
BENEBESESREARBZEFSANT

The Nomination Committee shall consider suitability of an individual
pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Board Nomination Policy and the
Board Diversity Policy, and the independence of an individual for the
position of independent non-executive Director.

The Nomination Committee shall make recommendation to the
Board's for consideration.

The Board shall consider the individual recommended by the
Nomination Committee pursuant to the Listing Rules, the CG Code,
the Board Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

For casual vacancy and addition of new Directors, the Board shall
confirm the appointment of the individual and the new Director
shall be subjected to re-election by shareholders of the Company at
the next annual general meeting in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company.

For re-appointment of retiring Directors, the Board shall, based on
the recommendation of the Nomination Committee, recommend
the retiring directors to stand for re-election at the annual general
meeting. The appointment of retiring Directors shall be subjected to
the approval of shareholder at the annual general meeting.

The Board reserves the right to make final decisions on the matters
in relation to the selection and appointment of Directors.
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Selection criteria:

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the Nomination
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:

Reputation for integrity;

Accomplishment and professional knowledge and industry
experience which may be relevant to the Company;

Commitment in respect of available time;

Merit and potential contributions that such candidate could bring to
the Board with reference to the Board Diversity Policy (as adopted
and amended by the Board from time to time), including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, independence, skills, knowledge
and length of service;

In case of a candidate for an independent non-executive Director of
the Company, to assess: (i) the independence of such candidate with
reference to, among other things, the independence criteria as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and (ii) the guidance and
requirements relating to independent non-executive directors as set
out in Code Provision A.5.5 of the CG Code and in the “Guidance for
Boards and Directors” published by The Stock Exchange; and

Board succession planning considerations and the long-term needs
of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has the discretion to consider any other
factors and matters and nominate any person, as it considers appropriate,
subject to the guidance and requirements of the Listing Rules and the CG

Code.
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During the Year, the Directors’ attendance of the meetings of the
Nomination Committee is set out as follows:

REE BEFRHERELZESSENBEAHIIN
T

Attendance/Number of

Nomination Committee

Meeting

HERY REERE

Name of Directors ExEga -4 PN
Mr. Zhou Mingming [EIBABA 5L A& Il
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FAEEE 1/1
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR E /1

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the Year, which were prepared in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The reporting responsibility of the external auditors of the
Company on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set
out in the independent auditor's report on pages 76 to 81.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Wai Yip, the Company Secretary, reports to the chairman of the
Board. The details of his biography is set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. Mr. Leung also
confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional
training during the Year .

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its overall responsibility for the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness in order to safeguard the interest of the Group and the
shareholders, and to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems on an ongoing basis to ensure that
the systems in place are adequate.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems are featured
with a defined management structure with limits of authority and well-
rounded policies and procedures, and are designed to facilitate effective
and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to identify and manage
potential risks, and to safeguard assets of the Group. Such systems are
designed to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s systems of risk management and internal
control covering all material controls, including financial, operation,
compliance and internal controls as well as risk management functions. In
addition, the Audit Committee will review and evaluate the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group at least once a
year to ensure that no material internal control loophole exists.

The Group has an internal audit department (the “Internal Audit
Department”), which is responsible for the internal audit of the Group,
independent assessment of risks, and internal control procedures and
systems, and reports its findings, with recommendations, to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department assesses the risks to which the
Group is exposed, and formulates an audit plan on that basis annually, so
as to ensure that the internal audit covers all areas of high risks. The annual
audit plan will be submitted to the Audit Committee for approval. The
scope of audit review is determined based on the risk assessment results
and special reviews will be conducted on matters which are of concern to
the management or the Audit Committee. During the Year, no major issues
but areas for improvement have been identified. All of the
recommendations from the Internal Audit Department will be properly
followed up to ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable
period of time.

The Board considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group to be adequate and effective for the Year. The Board
and the Audit Committee also considered that the key areas of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of our accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting staff, and their training programs and budget, are
reasonably implemented and the Group has fully complied with provisions
of the CG Code regarding risk management and internal control systems in
general for the Year.

The Group strictly follows the requirements of the SFO and the Listing
Rules and ensures that inside information is disclosed to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable. Before inside information is fully disclosed to the
public, such information is kept strictly confidential. The Group has further
enhanced the procedures with the establishment of a continuous
disclosure policy and provided with relevant training to all relevant staff of
the Group. The Board considered that the procedures and measures in
relation to the handling and dissemination of the inside information to be
effective and adequate.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group's external auditors are Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified
Public Accountants. In order to maintain their independence, objectivity
and effectiveness in performing the audit services, the audit committee
pre-approved all audit services and discussed with Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants the nature and scope of the audit
services.

During the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants in respect of audit services was
RMB2,400,000. The fee paid or payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
Certified Public Accountants for non-audit services, namely review of
unaudited interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2020, was RMB840,000.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding the
Directors’ dealings in the Company's securities (the “Own Code”) on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Each Director has been
given a copy of the Own Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, each of them has confirmed that they have complied with the
Own Code and the Model Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Company and/or its securities. No
incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
relevant employees was noted by the Company during the Year. The
Company will notify the Directors and relevant employees of any restricted
period for dealings in the Company’s securities in advance.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board and the senior management recognise the importance of
communication with the shareholders and accountability to shareholders.
Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational and financial
performance information to the shareholders. The senior management also
maintains close communication with investors, analysts and the media by
other channels including roadshows, briefings and individual meetings.
The Group has set up its own website “www.chaowei.com.hk”, which is
updated on a regular basis, as a means to provide updated information on
the Company to investors.
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GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s AGM provides a useful platform for direct communication
between the Board and the shareholders. Separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantially separate issue at the general meetings.

The 2020 AGM was held on 10 June 2020. The attendance record of the
Directors at the 2020 AGM is set out below:

BRRXE
ARANBRRBFASRAETSTERERRER
RET—EERNTE  AAFKRERRAE L
WEHEE ETAMNZREREBEIDRESR °

7—7¢rHX$ﬂ£‘Ej{/\E \—7 5i£'E/\)q
THRT - BEFR T _ZFERRAFREN
HFEEETINT

Attendance/Number of
General Meeting

Name of Directors 124 HERE BRAERH
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhou Mingming [EIBABA 52 A& 0/1
Mr. Zhou Longrui Ik ST Pt /1
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERLZ T 1
Mr. Yang Xinxin TR A 1/1
Non-executive Director JEMITES
Ms. Fang Jianjun TEFL+ 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUERTTESE
Mr. Wang Jigiang T s e /1
Prof. Ouyang Minggao BN 5 A = 2R /1
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai ENETE S /1
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REBERE /1

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that non-executive directors
should attend general meetings to gain and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders, and code provision E.1.2 of the
CG Code provides that the chairman of the Board should attend the annual
general meeting. Mr. Zhou Mingming, the chairman of the Board and
executive Director, and Ms. Fang Jianjun, the non-executive Director, were
unable to attend the Company’s annual general meeting held on 10 June
2020 due to other business commitments.

The Company’s external auditors also attended the 2020 AGM.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to
the shareholders of the Company to allow the shareholders to share the
Company’s profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for
future growth. The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is
subject to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final
dividend will be subject to the approval of the shareholders. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia,
retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each of
the members of the Group; the Group's liquidity position; the Group's
expected working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements
and future expansion plans; any restrictions on payment of dividends that
may be imposed by the Group’s lenders; and any other factors that the
Board deems appropriate.

The Company's ability to pay dividends is also subject to the requirements
of the Listing Rules and all relevant applicable laws, rules and regulations in
the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong and the articles of association of the
Company.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in its sole
and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the Dividend
Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a
legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid
in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders of the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory disclosure
requirement under Paragraph O of the CG Code:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition
by shareholders

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an
extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") to be called by the Board. The
written requisition must specify the business to be transacted on the
meeting, which shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
at Unit 1308A, 13/F, Lippo Sun Plaza, 28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.
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If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the Board
fails to proceed to convene an EGM, the shareholder(s) concerned may
themselves convene an EGM, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
shareholder(s) making the requisition as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed by the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details are
as follows:

Address: Unit 1308A, 13/F, Lippo Sun Plaza, 28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha
Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Email: ir@chaowei.com.hk

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholder(s)" enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant Board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to respond to the shareholder(s)’ questions.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Any shareholder of the Company who wish to put forward proposals at
general meetings of the Company shall submit such proposals to the
Board in writing for the Board's consideration not less than 7 days prior to
the date of a general meeting through the Company Secretary of the
Company whose contact details are set out in the paragraph “Procedures
for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board” above.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
There has been no change in the memorandum and articles of association
of the Company during the Year.
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The Board is pleased to submit this annual report together with the
consolidated financial statements for the Year which have been audited by
the Company’s auditors Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants and reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and sales of
lead-acid motive batteries and other related products. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 54 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
For the business review of the Group for the Year, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Business Review” in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
An indication of the future development in the Group's business is shown
on page 21 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the Year and the state of the Company’s and the
Group's affairs as at 31 December 2020 are set out in the financial
statements on pages 82 to 225.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 82.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HK$0.117 per share for
the financial year ended 31 December 2020, which shall be subject to
approval of the shareholders at the AGM of the Company to be held on
10 June 2021. The proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on or
around 16 July 2021.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
Please refer to notes 4, 51 and 52 of the consolidated financial statements
for risks and uncertainties.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately RMB6,144,000.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2020, calculated
in accordance with the Companies Law (Cap. 22) (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately RMB1,038,646,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's articles
of association and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Mingming

Mr. Zhou Longrui

Ms. Yang Yunfei

Mr. Yang Xinxin

Non-executive Director
Ms. Fang Jianjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Jigiang

Prof. Ouyang Minggao

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai

Mr. Ng Chi Kit

The Directors will retire by rotation in accordance with the requirement of
the articles of association of the Company and the Listing Rules. The non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for periods of 3 years.

A confirmation of independence has been received from each of Mr. Wang
Jigiang, Prof. Ouyang Minggao, Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai and Mr. Ng Chi
Kit and the Company considers each of them as independent pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Article 164 of the Company’s articles of association provides that the
Directors, secretary and other officers and every auditor for the time being
of the Company and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being
acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company and everyone of
them, and everyone of their heirs, executors and administrators, shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts; and none of them shall
be answerable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of the other or
others of them or for joining in any receipts for the sake of conformity, or
for any bankers or other persons with whom any moneys or effects
belonging to the Company shall or may be lodged or deposited for safe
custody, or for insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any
moneys of or belonging to the Company shall be placed out on or
invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or damage which may happen in
the execution of their respective offices or trusts, or in relation thereto;
PROVIDED THAT this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said persons.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors and the Company’s
chief executive in the shares (the “Shares”) or debentures of the Company
or associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO,
which will have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/
or short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein or which will be
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, are set
out below:
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Long positions in the Shares

REHHEFE

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding

in the Company/
Associated
Corporations
Number of ERELT,
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares B R E R g
EEnA 5 HaKHE BRin&H [ ESI=R20: 4
Mr. Zhou Mingming™M@e@ Interest in controlled corporations, 416,084,500 37.68%
("Mr. Zhou") interest in spouse and beneficial owner
JEIRA A % A& oe REEEELs  REERNERERA
(TAKLED
Ms. Fang Jianjun® Interest in a controlled corporation, 416,084,500 37.68%
FEEx L interest in spouse and beneficial owner
RErEER  REERERERERA
Mr. Zhou Longrui® Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,362,500 6.37%
AR L interest in spouse and beneficial owner
RErEER  REEELRERERA
Ms. Yang Yunfei?” Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,362,500 6.37%
BERLZLO interest in spouse and beneficial owner
REEEELR  REERRERERA
Mr. Yang Xinxin® Interest in a controlled corporation 21,000,000 1.90%
SRR and beneficial owner
REEEER R EREAA
Mr. Wang Jigiang® Beneficial owner 600,000 0.05%
R TEEO EmBAA
Prof. Ouyang Minggao‘'? Beneficial owner 600,000 0.05%
ENCEEIEE S ¢ EREAA
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai"" Beneficial owner 600,000 0.05%
FEEEED EmBAA
Mr. Ng Chi Kit? Beneficial owner 600,000 0.05%
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Notes:

(1)

@)

3)

)

©]

56

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Great State Investments Limited
(“Great State”) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 242,145,000 Shares held by
Great State.

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jolly Pride (PTC) Limited (“Jolly Pride”)
and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 58,942,500 Shares held by Jolly Pride. In
addition, pursuant to a trust deed dated 14 June 2010 and deeds of exclusion of beneficiaries
dated 30 May 2014 and 13 October 2014, entered into between Mr. Zhou and Jolly Pride in
favour of 49 individuals who are employees of the Group (collectively, the “Jolly Pride Trust
Deed"), the economic interest of all the Shares which it holds from time to time shall belong to
the said 49 employees. However, other than the economic interest in the Shares, all other
rights as shareholders (including but not limited to voting rights and right to participate in
shareholders meetings of the Company) shall not be exercisable by the said 49 employees and
shall be exercised by Jolly Pride exclusively. As Mr. Zhou is the sole director of Jolly Pride, Mr.
Zhou also controls the exercise of the shareholders rights (other than economic interest) of all
the Shares held by Jolly Pride by virtue of the terms of the Jolly Pride Trust Deed.

Mr. Zhou directly holds 1,360,000 Shares. Mr. Zhou is also deemed to be interested in 500,000
Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of
the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019,

respectively.

Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun. Pursuant to the SFO, he is deemed to be interested
in 111,637,000 Shares which Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested by reason of her being the sole
shareholder of Bai Xiang Limited (“Bai Xiang”) and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and
150,000 Shares which may be issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to
heron 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested in the entire issued share capital of Bai Xiang and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 111,637,000 Shares held by Bai Xiang. Ms. Fang Jianjun is also
deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be
issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21
December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively. In addition, as Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse
of Mr. Zhou, pursuant to the SFO, she is deemed to be interested in the 1,360,000 Shares
directly held by Mr. Zhou, and in the 242,145,000 Shares and 58,942,500 Shares which Mr.
Zhou is interested by reason of his being the sole shareholder of Great State and Jolly Pride
and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the
exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March
2019, respectively.
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Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested in the entire issued share capital of High Joy Investments
Limited (“High Joy") and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 32,137,500 Shares held by
High Joy. Mr. Zhou Longrui is also deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares
and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options
granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively. In
addition, as Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms. Yang Yunfei, pursuant to the SFO, he is
deemed to be interested in the 36,225,000 Shares which Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested by
reason of her being the sole shareholder of Shiny Century Limited (“Shiny Century”) and
500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to her upon the
exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March
2019, respectively.

Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested in the entire issued share capital of Shiny Century and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 36,225,000 Shares held by Shiny Century. Ms. Yang Yunfei is
also deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which
may be issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21
December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively. In addition, as Ms. Yang Yunfei is the spouse
of Mr. Zhou Longrui, pursuant to the SFO, she is also deemed to be interested in the 32,137,500
Shares which Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested by reason of him being the sole shareholder of
High Joy and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him
upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and
25March 2019, respectively.

Mr. Yang Xinxin is interested in the entire issued share capital of Tong Sheng Limited (“Tong
Sheng”) and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 20,000,000 Shares held by Tong Sheng.
Mr. Yang Xinxin is also deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000
Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on
4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Mr. Wang Jigiang is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares, 250,000 Shares and 100,000
Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on
4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Prof. Ouyang Minggao is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares, 250,000 Shares and
100,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to
him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares, 250,000 Shares and
100,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to
him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Mr. Ng Chi Kit is deemed to be interested in 250,000 Shares, 250,000 Shares and 100,000 Shares
which may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April
2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, so far as the Directors were aware, the following
persons have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares
of the Company which were required to be disclosed to the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, directly or indirectly, interested in
5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member of the

FRERRUELFRMGRMARKRGPR
HRRRE

N—EBE-_FEF+-_A=+—RH BEFfHH-
T}\i%&*ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁgﬁfﬂﬂﬂ%XV*B%Z&%S
D EBEVIESCA T I B R AR R RIS s AB B RR (DAY
SRR NEEXMEREWNEREIRTE
EATRAEBERKEARIBREAS FIRER
{EART 4B B R AN T B 5% 3K LA _E HORERS o

Group.

Approximate

Number of Percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Shareholding
&g 0Pk £33 EH®E EREHhESLE
Mr. ZhouM@e)® Interest in controlled corporations, 416,084,500 (L) 37.68%
B 5T A e interest of spouse and beneficial owner

REEEELD  REERRERERA
Great State! Beneficial owner 242,145,000 (L) 21.93%
wFO EnlEA
Jolly Pride® Beneficial owner 58,942,500 (L) 5.34%
BEO BB A
Ms. Fang Jianjun® Interest in controlled corporations, 416,084,500 (L) 37.68%
HEEr L interest of spouse and beneficial owner

RiEE R R REREAA
Bai Xiang® Beneficial owner 111,637,000 (L) 10.11%
Ek: EnBEEA
Mr. Zhou Longrui®© Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,362,500 (L) 6.37%
[EReiR e E© interest of spouse and beneficial owner

REEEELD  REERRERERA
High Joy® Beneficial owner 32,137,500 (L) 2.91%
St EnlEEA
Ms. Yang Yunfei?) Interest in a controlled corporation, 70,362,500 (L) 6.37%

BEMLL

interest of spouse and beneficial owner

RprEEs  RERENESERA
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Approximate
Number of Percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares Shareholding
£ 5 HaKHE RS E BiEEva St
Shiny Century?” Beneficial owner 36,225,000 (L) 3.28%
ACERO EnEAA
FIL Limited® Interest in controlled corporations 65,974,000 (L) 5.98%
EEEEER
Pandanus Associates Inc.” Interest in controlled corporations 65,974,000 (L) 5.98%
RPEEE R
Pandanus Partners L.P.1% Interest in controlled corporations 65,974,000 (L) 5.98%
EEEEER
Tianneng International Investment Interest in a controlled corporation 111,680,000 (L) 10.11%
Holdings Limited" and beneficial owner
RErERERRERERA
FIDELITY FUNDS Beneficial owner 55,304,000 (L) 501%

Emia A

(L): Long position

Notes:

(1)

@)

3)

4)

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Great State and is therefore deemed
to be interested in all the Shares held by Great State.

Mr. Zhou is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jolly Pride and is therefore deemed
to be interested in the 58,942,500 Shares held by Jolly Pride. In addition, pursuant to the Jolly
Pride Trust Deed, the economic interest of all the Shares which it holds from time to time shall
belong to the said 49 employees. However, other than the economic interest in the Shares, all
other rights as shareholders (including but not limited to voting rights and right to participate
in shareholders meetings of our Company) shall not be exercisable by the said 49 employees
and shall be exercised by Jolly Pride exclusively. As Mr. Zhou is the sole director of Jolly Pride,
Mr. Zhou also controls the exercise of the shareholders rights (other than economic interest) of
all the Shares held by Jolly Pride by virtue of the terms of the Jolly Pride Trust Deed.

Mr. Zhou directly holds 1,360,000 Shares. Mr. Zhou is also deemed to be interested in 500,000
Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the exercise of
the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019,
respectively.

Mr. Zhou is the spouse of Ms. Fang Jianjun. Pursuant to the SFO, he is also deemed to be
interested in all the Shares which Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested by reason of her being the sole
shareholder of Bai Xiang and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may
be issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21
December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.
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Ms. Fang Jianjun is interested in the entire issued share capital of Bai Xiang and is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Bai Xiang. Ms. Fang Jianjun is also deemed to
be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to
her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018
and 25 March 2019, respectively. In addition, as Ms. Fang Jianjun is the spouse of Mr. Zhou,
pursuant to the SFO, she is deemed to be interested in all the Shares directly held by Mr. Zhou,
and in all the Shares which Mr. Zhou is interested by reason of him being the sole shareholder
of Great State and Jolly Pride and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which
may be issued to him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018,
21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively.

Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested in the entire issued share capital of High Joy and is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by High Joy. Mr. Zhou Longrui is also deemed to
be interested in 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to
him upon the exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018
and 25 March 2019, respectively. In addition, as Mr. Zhou Longrui is the spouse of Ms. Yang
Yunfei, pursuant to the SFO, he is deemed to be interested in all the Shares which Ms. Yang
Yunfei is interested by reason of her being the sole shareholder of Shiny Century and 500,000
Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to her upon the exercise of
the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019,
respectively.

Ms. Yang Yunfei is interested in the entire issued share capital of Shiny Century and is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Shiny Century. Ms. Yang Yunfei is also
deemed to be interested in 500,000 Shares , 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be
issued to her upon the exercise of the share options granted to her on 4 April 2018, 21
December 2018 and 25 March 2019, respectively. In addition, as Ms. Yang Yunfei is the spouse
of Mr. Zhou Longrui, pursuant to the SFO, she is also deemed to be interested in all the Shares
which Mr. Zhou Longrui is interested by reason of him being the sole shareholder of High Joy
and 500,000 Shares, 350,000 Shares and 150,000 Shares which may be issued to him upon the
exercise of the share options granted to him on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March
2019, respectively.

FIL Limited is interested in an aggregate of 65,974,000 Shares through FIL Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited and FIL Investment Management (Singapore) Limited

and the entities controlled by them.

Pandanus Associates Inc. is interested in an aggregate of 65,974,000 Shares through FIL
Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited and FIL Investment Management (Singapore)
Limited and the entities controlled by them.

Pandanus Partners L.P. is interested in an aggregate of 65,974,000 Shares through FIL
Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited and FIL Investment Management (Singapore)
Limited and the entities controlled by them.

Tianneng International Investment Holdings Limited directly holds 56,680,000 Shares and is

interested in 55,000,000 Shares through #7;T X s BI %718 & & #2 A IR 2~ A and the entities
controlled by it.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Director to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the Senior Management are
set out on pages 28 to 33.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme on 7 June
2010 (the "2010 Share Option Scheme”), which became effective on 7 July
2010, for the purpose of giving the eligible persons an opportunity to have
a personal stake in the Group and motivating them to optimize their future
performance and efficiency to the Group and/or to reward them for their
past contributions, attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-
going relationships with such eligible persons who are significant to and/
or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth
or success of the Group, and in the case of executives, enabling the Group
to attract and retain such individuals with experience and ability and/or to
reward them for their past contributions. The 2010 Share Option Scheme
was expired on 6 July 2020.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at 7 July 2010, being the listing date of the
Shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange, being 100,000,000 Shares,
which represented about 9.06% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this report. No options may be granted to any
participant of the 2010 Share Option Scheme such that the total number of
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and to
be granted to that person in any 12-month period up to the date of the
latest grant exceeds 1% of the Company’s issued share capital from time to
time.
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Subject to the provisions of the Listing Rules, the Board may in its absolute
discretion when offering the grant of an option impose any conditions,
restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set out in
the 2010 Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit, including the
time or period before the right to exercise the option in respect of all or
any of the Shares shall vest, provided that such terms or conditions shall
not be inconsistent with any other terms or conditions of the 2010 Share
Option Scheme.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the 2010
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the
Board and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant under the
2010 Share Option Scheme. There is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised. Participants of the 2010
Share Option Scheme are required to pay the Company HK$1.0 upon
acceptance of the grant on or before 28 days after the offer date. The
exercise price of the options is determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion and shall not be less than whichever is the highest of:

(@)  the nominal value of a Share;

(b)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the offer date; and

(0 theaverage closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding
the offer date.

The 2010 Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of

10 years from the adoption date, after which no further options will be
granted or offered.
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Details of the movement of share options granted under the 2010 Share ~ RNFEERIFE T —TEERET 2R HOERE

Option Scheme for the Year are as follows: BB ST
Exercse  Outstanding Outstanding
Price per asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asat
Category and Share 1January during during during during  31December
Name of Participants Date of Grant (HKS) 2020 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2020
RIBZBE Jut Juk 2.2
BRIER -A-H tZB=+-A
SHEBRRESR BiHAM (ET) ARTE FERCRM FEECHE FERCHE FERCEN ARITE
Directors
s
Mr. Zhou Mingming 4 April 2018" 4332 500,000 - - - - 500,000
FHRLE ZE-/\¥MARAY
21 December 20187 314 350000 - - - - 350000
e Ak
25 March 2019% 309 150000 - - - - 150000
ZR-NEZRZTRREY
Mr. Zhou Longrui 4 April 2018" 4332 500,000 - - - - 500,000
BERLE ZE-/\¥MARAY
21 December 20187 314 350000 - - - - 350000
ek
25 March 2019% 309 150000 - - - - 150,000
ZR-NEZRZTRREY
Ms. Yang Yunfei 4 April 2018" 4332 500,000 - - - - 500,000
BERLT ZE-/\¥MARAY
21 December 20187 314 350000 - - - - 350000
SENEHZAZTRY
25 March 2019% 309 150000 - - - - 150,000
ZR-NEZRZTRREY
Mr. Yang Xinxin 4 April 2018" 4332 500,000 - - - - 500,000
orikiiy ZE-/\¥MARAY
21 December 20187 314 350000 - - - - 350000
B \E+ZA-t-AY
25 March 2019% 309 150000 - - - - 150,000
ZR-NEZRZTRREY
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Exercise  Outstanding Outstanding
Price per asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asat
Category and Share 1January during during during during 31 December
Name of Participants Date of Grant (HKS) 2020 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2020
RZ828% RIB22%
BRAER  —A-E +=BZ+-E
SRITARLE RHA% (BT AAfTE FEECRE FEEETE FEECHE FEEDEN AR
Ms. Fang Jianjun 4 April 2018 4332 500,000 - - - - 500,000
FTRELT —5-\§NARmA"Y
21 December 20187 314 350,000 - - - - 350,000
“E-\EtZAzt-R0
25 March 2019% 309 150000 - - - - 150000
ZE-NE=AZTRAY
Mr.Wang Jigiang 4 April 2018 4332 250,000 - - - - 250,000
TEREE “3-)\E@AmA"
21 December 20187 3114 250,000 - - - - 250,000
“E-\EtZAzt-RY
25 March 2019% 309 100,000 - - - - 100000
ZE-NE=AZTRAY
Prof, Ouyang Minggao 4 April 2018" 433 250000 - - - - 250000
aRAA ~-NEmARA"
21 December 20187 3114 250,000 - - - - 250,000
ZE-\EToACT-RY
25 March 2019% 309 100,000 - - - - 100000
ZE-NE=AZTRAY
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai 4 April 2018 4332 250,000 - - - - 250,000
FRELE —5-\§mARmAY
21 December 20187 3114 250,000 - - - - 250,000
ZE-\EToACT-RY
25 March 2019% 309 100,000 - - - - 100000
ZE-NE=AZTRAY
Mr.Ng Chikit 4 April 2018 4332 250,000 - - - - 250,000
REGSH ZZ-\EmAmAY
21 December 20187 3114 250,000 - - - - 250,000
ZE-\EToACT-RY
25 March 2019% 309 100,000 - - - - 100000
“E-NEZA=TRAY
Employees 4 April 2018 4332 29,000,000 - - 29,000,000 - -
] “3-)\E@AmA"
21 December 20187 314 33,000,000 - - - - 33,000,000
“E-\EtZAzt-RY
25 March 2019% 309 29,500,000 - - - - 29,500,000
ZE-NE=AZTRAY
Total
st 98,900,000 - - 29,000,000 - 69,900,000
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Notes:

(1) Validity period
of the share

options:

Vesting dates
of the share

options:

Performance

target:

2

)

Validity period
of the share
options:

Vesting dates of
the share
options:

Performance
target:

3

N

Validity period
of the share
options:

Vesting dates
of the share
options:

Performance
target:

The share options granted shall vest in the proposed grantees in
accordance with the timetable below, each with an exercise period
commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending 8 years after the
date of grant.

(a) 10% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on4 April 2018

(b) 20% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 4 April 2019

(c) 70% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 4 April 2020

Exercise of the share options is conditional upon the achievement of
certain performance targets as set out in the respective offer letters, during

the validity period of the share options.

The share options granted shall vest in the proposed grantees in
accordance with the timetable below, each with an exercise period
commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending 8 years after the
date of grant.

(a) 10% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 21 December 2018

) 20% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 21 December 2019

(c) 70% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 21 December 2020

Exercise of the share options is conditional upon the achievement of
certain performance targets as set out in the respective offer letters, during
the validity period of the share options.

The share options granted shall vest in the proposed grantees in
accordance with the timetable below, each with an exercise period
commencing from the relevant vesting date and ending 8 years after the

date of grant.

(a) 10% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 25March 2019

(b) 20% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 25 March 2020

() 70% of the total number of the share options granted shall vest
on 25 March 2021

Exercise of the share options is conditional upon the achievement of
certain performance targets as set out in the respective offer letters, during
the validity period of the share options.

The closing prices of the Shares on 3 April 2018, 20 December 2018 and 22
March 2019, being the dates immediately before the dates of the share
options were granted, were HK$4.32, HK$3.04 and HK$3.09 per Share,

respectively.
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The fair value of the share options under the 2010 Share Option Scheme in
aggregate was estimated at HK$121,403,000. The estimated fair values of
the options granted to the Directors on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018
and 25 March 2019 were HK$5,266,000, HK$2,981,000 and HK$1,266,000,
respectively. The estimated fair values of the share options granted to the
Group's eligible employees on 4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25
March 2019 were HK$43,636,000, HKS$35,769,000 and HK$32,485,000,
respectively. These fair values were calculated using the Binomial Model
and the values of options are subjects to a number of assumptions and
with regard to the limitation of such model. The inputs into the model
were as follows:

—E-TFEREHETERENATES
{EET 412140300087 - RZZE—N\FW™AMWA -

T E-N\FF+_AZF+—BERZZE—NF=A
ZTRAHRESHEEMNBRENGET A FEED
755,266,000 7T+ 2,981,000 75 JT K. 1,266,000 78 TT, ©
RZE-—N\FEARBA  —_E—N\F+=A
ZF+—RARZE-NFZAZTHARLEEES
EREERINBRENGHTATFES A
43,636,000/ 7T * 35,769,000/ 7T M 32,485,000/ 7T ©
ZENFENFERZBEAERGE - MEREE
BEEZZIEBRERR - WEABEX ZRHIER -
ZEA S ASBDT

4 April 21 December 25 March

2018 2018 2019

—N\F =—\F —hF

WAWH +=—A=+—H =ZAZ=+HEH

Grant date share price A ERE HKD4.183 HKD3.05 HKD3.09
4183787C 3.05 7T 3.09%87T

Exercise price TEE HKD4.332 HKD3.114 HKD3.09
4332787 31143 7T 30087

Expected life 78 HA4F Hf 8 years 8 years 8 years
84 84 8%

Expected volatility TE B IR 47.5% 45.8% 45.6%
Dividend yield &% Bk o 2 1.8% 1.7% 1.7%
Risk-free interest rate 3 b 1) R 1.84% 2.00% 1.50%

During the Year, no share option under the 2010 Share Option Scheme had
been granted, vested or exercised. As at 31 December 2020, 69,900,000
share options granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme remained
outstanding. 29,000,000 share options under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme were cancelled during the Year.

The table showing movements in the Company’s share options held by the
Group’s employees (including directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries) and valuation of the share options are also set out in the
section headed “Share-based Payment Transactions” under Note 44 to the
condensed consolidated financial statements. The accounting policy
adopted for the share options is also set out in Notes 3.2 and 44.

The 2010 Share Option Scheme has expired on 6 July 2020, and the
adoption of a new share option scheme was proposed by the Board and
approved by the shareholders on 10 June 2020 (the “Share Option
Scheme”).
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The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to give the eligible persons an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Group and help motivate them
to optimize their future performance and efficiency to the Group and/or to
reward them for their past contributions, attracting and retaining or
otherwise maintaining ongoing relationships with such eligible persons
who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the performance, growth or success of the Group, and in the case of
executives, enabling the Group to attract and retain such individuals with
experience and ability and/or to reward them for their past contributions.

The Board may, offer (a) any executive director of, manager of, or other
employee holding an executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position
in any member of the Group (the “Executive”), any full-time or part-time
employee, or a person for the time being seconded to work full-time or
part-time for any member of the Group (collectively, the “Employee”), (b) a
director (including an independent non-executive director) of any member
of the Group, (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the
Group, (d) a supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group, (e)
a customer, consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee or
contractor of any member of the Group, and (f) a person or entity that
provides design, research, development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any member of the Group,
who in the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute
to the Group, options to subscribe for Shares on the terms set out in the
Share Option Scheme. The amount payable on acceptance of an option is
HKD1.00. Details of the Share Option Scheme were provided in the
Company’s circular dated 29 April 2020.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as of 10 June 2020 (the “Adoption Date”), being
110,412,697 Shares, which represented about approximately 10% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report. The
maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other options granted and yet to be exercised
under any other scheme shall not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued
share capital from time to time. No option may be granted to any person
such that the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of options granted and to be granted to that person in any
12-month period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the
Company's issued share capital from time to time, unless the approval of
the Company’s shareholders is obtained.
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Subject to the provisions of the Listing Rules, the Board may in its absolute
discretion when offering the grant of an option impose any conditions,
restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set out in
the Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit, including the time or
period before the right to exercise the option in respect of all or any of the
Shares shall vest, provided that such terms or conditions shall not be
inconsistent with any other terms or conditions of the Share Option
Scheme.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the Board
and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant under the Share
Option Scheme. There is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme
are required to pay the Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on
or before 28 days after the offer date. The exercise price of the options is
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less
than whichever is the highest of:

(@)  the nominal value of a Share;

(b)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the offer date; and

(0 theaverage closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding
the offer date.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the Adoption Date, after which no further options will be
granted or offered.

No share options were granted, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme during the Year.

Apart from the 2010 Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme,
at no time during the Year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies or subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

68 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2020

EETRANGEXZRRT  EF@RFEHER
RERYBISRREERREEEBINELE
SHEIFTEUAIMNOME RN - KRR B] - BIETT
15858 R PR A sl A fr] B i B SO -2 4 R A B 57 I8 s
IS B - MR IR R I NS R B =t 8
MR E MRS R BT E

REESETWHMRA - BRERBERRRER
REST BV IR T ATTIE - NS AR IR B B
AR BAE 2 B HIER 105 - BB ETT
r] BERETREENFANR - BREsTS
S2EENRE A HIR 28 B 3 2 AR BB AR -
ARAARBZN108T - BERETEEHRESES
2RBIBEETE TRERTI=E"NES%E :

(@ MBEihmEE:

b)  RZE B HEBIAE R RERMBARND
WifE: &

© EBERRZAHASELSXARMEBIAE
BRERRNFHRTE -

RERRERT 21 B 5/ B B 1 0F R IR
HERPMSBROSAE TIERBRE -

RAFE  BREFIETHEDRD - FiHK
R B HE o

B =T —TFBRER 8 LB AR BIHN - A
FERNEMER - A w s A EFAER AR M
BARMET AN LHAEFESE BB
RAEFRAEMEMEABEH IR K EREE LT
R -



DIRECTORS” REPORT

EEDRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS, CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a
party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest in, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the Year or at any time during the Year save as disclosed under the sub-
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” below and “Related
Party Transactions” in note 53 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below and “Related Party Transactions” in note 53 to the consolidated
financial statements, no Director or controlling shareholder or any of their
respective subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group, to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a part, during the Year.

During the Year, no contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries was made.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not
determinable by the employing company within 1 year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SHARES
During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed Shares.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the Year except for the deviations to the code provision A.2.1,
A.6.7 and E.1.2. For details, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report
on page 34 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee. For details, please
refer to the paragraph headed “Audit Committee” of the Corporate
Governance Report set out on pages 39 to 40 of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES AND
CUSTOMERS

The Group emphasises the importance of personal development of
individual employees. The Group has in place remuneration policies to
ensure providing adequate rewards to employees with recognised
experience for the assigned roles and duties. The Group also provides other
benefits including bonuses and shares as incentives.

The Group places high priority on maintaining good relationship with our
customers. The Group always strives to maximize customers satisfaction
and to add value for our customers. The Group identifies areas for
improvement. Customer's complaints once acknowledged and reported
will be dealt with timely, fairly and diligently.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers during the Year is as follows:

10.68%/19.72%
31.65%/38.56%

The largest customer/supplier
Five largest customers/suppliers in aggregate

At no time during the Year had the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company'’s share capital had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
During the Year, the Group achieved 100% cadmium-free production and
has fully applied cadmium-free enclosed battery formulation process.

In parallel with enlarging its economic benefits and continuously
enhancing production technology, the Group has adhered to its
environmental protection philosophy of minimizing consumption of
resources, pollution and emissions. The Group continues to advocate the
harmonious and symbiotic relationship between business and the
environment to fulfil its long-term goal of “green production”. To guide the
lead-acid battery industry towards green, healthy and sustainable
development, the Group has united enterprises both upstream and
downstream in a lead-acid battery industry alliance for promoting green
development and recycling during the Year. Through a series of activities
intended to improve the brand image, the Group has strived to become
the top green energy brand in the PRC.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and the
Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries in
the PRC. The Group's establishment and operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.
During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Group has complied
with all the relevant laws and regulations in all material aspects.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, a member of the Group continued to be a party to the
following continuing connected transactions which are subject to
announcements and reporting requirements but exempt from
shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules by reason of
all of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) being
less than 5% on an annual basis and the annual cap amount exceeding
HK$3,000,000:

Purchase of battery production equipment

Chaowei Power Group Co., Ltd. (“Chaowei Power") and Zhejiang Doulan
Intelligence Equipment Co,, Ltd (“Zhejiang Doulan”), a connected person of
the Company by virtue of Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules, entered into a
battery production equipment purchase agreement (the “Battery
Production Equipment Purchase Agreement”) dated 29 December 2015,
by which Zhejiang Doulan has agreed to supply batteries intelligence
manufacturing equipment and ancillary facilities to Chaowei Power for a
term of 3 years from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018, renewable upon
expiry (subject to compliance with the relevant provisions of the Listing
Rules regarding continuing connected transactions). Zhejiang Doulan is
60% owned by Mr. Zhou Mingming and is therefore an associate of Mr.
Zhou and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to the Battery Production Equipment Purchase Agreement,
Chaowei Power agreed to purchase batteries intelligence manufacturing
equipment and ancillary facilities from Zhejiang Doulan from time to time
at price with reference to actual costs (including labour costs, costs of
materials, technology development costs, rental expenses and
depreciation expenses related to batteries intelligence manufacturing
equipment and ancillary facilities ordered by Chaowei Power) plus
reasonable gross profit margin of Zhejiang Doulan, ranging from 20% to
25%, which is, to the best knowledge the Company, in line with the then
market practice as for the Company engaged in the similar industry and
with the similar scale, which shall not, in any event, be higher than the
prices of the products with comparable nature and scale charged by other
independent third party suppliers. For the purpose of ensuring the
consideration being fair and reasonable, the Company has taken into
account the following factors:

(1) the quotations from independent third parties for similar projects;
and

(2)  the historical price of similar projects procured by the Group.

For the 3 years ending 31 December 2018, the proposed annual cap
amounts for the transactions under the Battery Production Equipment
Purchase Agreement are set at RMB80,000,000, RMB110,000,000 and
RMB150,000,000, respectively (tax excluded).

Further details of the said transaction was set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 29 December 2015.

On 28 December 2018, Chaowei Power renewed the Battery Production
Equipment Purchase Agreement by entering into another battery
production equipment purchase agreement (the “Battery Production
Equipment Purchase Agreement (2019-2021)") with Zhejiang Doulan for
another term of three years commencing from 1 January 2019 and ending
on 31 December 2021, renewable upon expiry (subject to compliance with
the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules regarding continuing connected

transactions).

For the 3 years ending 31 December 2021, the proposed annual cap
amounts for the transactions under the Battery Production Equipment
Purchase Agreement (2019-2021) are set at RMB40,000,000, RMB40,000,000
and RMB50,000,000 respectively (tax excluded).
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During the Year, purchase of batteries intelligence manufacturing
equipment and ancillary facilities from Zhejiang Doulan amounted to
approximately RMB27,969,000, which is within the 2020 annual cap of
RMB40,000,000.

Further details of the said transaction was set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 28 December 2018

Save as disclosed above, none of the other transactions set out in note 53
to the financial statement constituted a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

REVIEW BY INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS AND THE AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions of the Group and have confirmed that
these transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) onnormal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditor
of the Company to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 71 to 73 of this annual report
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-COMPETITION
Each of Mr. Zhou Mingming, Great State and Jolly Pride (collectively the
“Controlling Shareholders”) has confirmed that for the Year, each of them
has complied with the deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
competition”) dated 7 June 2010 executed by the Controlling Shareholders
in favour of the Company. There has not been any opportunity in any
restricted business (being business which is or may be in competition with
the business of any member of the Group from time to time) being referred
by the Controlling Shareholders to the Company for the Year. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the compliance of
the Deed of Non-competition by the Controlling Shareholders for the Year
and considered the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the Deed
of Non-competition during the Year.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
A financial information summary of the Group is set out on page 226 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the Year, and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in any business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Except for service contracts with the Directors or persons engaged in full
time employment of the Company, no contracts concerning the
management and/or administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, during the Year and as at the date
of this annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules.
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EEDRE

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants who will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming AGM of the Company and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Mingming
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
27 March 2021
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHAOWEI POWER HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chaowei Power
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 82 to 225, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMNEEETEERRFXERNSE

Warranty provision

We identified warranty provision as a key audit matter due to the
significance of this provision to the consolidated financial statements
and the management’s estimates involved in estimating warranty
provision at the end of the reporting period.

Estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued at the time
of sale based on cost incurred on the past warranty claims and unit
sales history and further adjusted to reflect actual costs incurred as
information becomes available.

Details of the key estimation uncertainty of warranty provision are set
out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to warranty provision included:

Evaluating the appropriateness of the methodologies
used by the management for estimating warranty
provision;

Testing the underlying data and challenging the
assumptions used by the management based on
past events in estimating warranty provision and
changes in market conditions; and

Comparing actual warranty outflows subsequent to

the end of reporting period to those expected at the
end of reporting period.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
alsor

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor's report is Kay Man Wo, Dick.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_ZTF+_A=t+—HILFE

Lt Z@Wm=

020 2019
2 — &
Notes 000 RMB'000
Bt & = ARETTT
Revenue PN 5 27,304,556 27,181,732
Cost of sales & PR (24,007,223) (23,788,459)
Gross profit ER 3,297,333 3,393,273
Other income and other gains and losses H AU A R E Atb W zs R B 18 7 548,606 255,258
Distribution and selling expenses DIHRIHERS (718,945) (828,010)
Administrative expenses THAX (613,105) (632,801)
Research and development expenses TEEF S (857,364) (797,570)
Other expenses B 8 (10,388) (9,335)
Impairment losses recognised, net of reversal EARREREE GNkREED) 9 (157,922) (232,449)
Finance costs BMEMAK 10 (371,669) (300,642)
Share of result of joint ventures EIhEEDEEE (15,420) (29917
Share of result of associates FE(GE & A R 4R (35,567) (12,321)
Profit before tax R 35 B A1) 11 1,065,559 805,486
Income tax expense FriS®if 2 14 (341,053) (298,831)
Profit for the year FRFHE 724,506 506,655
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Hh 2 (B2 ) Weas
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to Bk e B mE AR e
profitor loss: HE -
Exchange differences on translation of HE G INETS IS IRER A
financial statements of foreign operations EHEE (81) 2,552
Fair value gain (loss) on receivables BAFEGFAEMEE
at fair value through other Wz (M2 AT ERTA
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") Hibzmizl) st
BRI A T E
Yezs (&518) 238 (5638)
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to HETSENFEBEBRN
profitor loss: HE -
Fair value loss on equity instruments at BAFEFAREMER
FVTOCI WasrtE s T A
AT {EEE - (8,922)
Other comprehensive income (expense) FREMBERS (BX) -
for the year, net of income tax HIBRFR SR 157 (12,008)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAZHEESEEA 724,663 494,647
Profit for the year attributable to: AT AT FE(EFAFE -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ 2 =D/ 720,397 561,340
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M B 4,109 (54,685)
724,506 506,655
Total comprehensive income ATATREFEFRZE R
for the year attributable to: AR
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZ Z =N 720,554 549,332
Non-controlling interests IRV IR = 4,109 (54,685)
724,663 494,647
Earnings per share BiRAT
— Basic and diluted (RMB) — HEAREE(ARET) 15 0.65 0.5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

iR O WSRO =

At 31 December 2020
RZZEZZF+-_H=+—H

020 2019
- —E-nEF
Notes 000 RMB'000
BaE i AREFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEE 17 5,106,963 4991,116
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 18 500,194 494,736
Investment properties LEE 19 40,058 42318
Goodwill EES 20 49,447 49,447
Intangible assets B AE 21 247,192 288,803
Interests in joint ventures REERFE 2 22 147,243 172,163
Interests in associates JrA RN W - e 23 57,260 91,127
Equity instruments at FVTOC| BRATFEFARMEE
West s TE 24 5,300 3,500
Loan receivables EUE R 25 41,794 4608
Deferred tax assets IRIEFIRE B 26 513,895 569,022
Prepayments and other receivables TE {5 FRIE I Bt FE U R IR 30 48,090 65,795
Amounts due from related parties & Uk Ra B 75 I8 53 133,085 133,085
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, UWEEIEE -~ B MR
plant and equipment Fifiz e 158,429 200,678
7,048,950 7,106,398
CURRENT ASSETS mENRE
Inventories FE 27 3,425,070 2,659,852
Loan receivables ERE R 25 34,725 129,873
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8RR 28 1,938,261 1,820,586
Receivables at FVTOCI BAFER AR M EERE
B FE MR IR 29 1,087,511 1,401,425
Prepayments and other receivables TE {5 FRIE B Bt E W R IR 30 1,302,702 1,355,026
Financial assets at fair value through BATER ABR
profit or loss ("FVTPL") (MRAFEABR]D
HNEEEE 31 275,123 151,779
Amounts due from related parties JE Uk BB 5 FR0E 53 215,860 191,638
Restricted bank deposits ZPRFIRITIFK 32 1,332,206 633,339
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB LIRS 32 2,552,548 1,958,428
12,164,006 10,301,946
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RO RS AR R 2%

At 31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+=-H=+—H

020 2019
et 2 —E-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5E =1 ARETIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES FEHEE
Trade payables BB SRR 33 2,633,901 2,346,796
Bills payable FETE= 34 1,377,478 1,427,557
Other payables and accruals HihENRIB R ESTE B 35 1,516,464 1,310,359
Contract liabilities EH8E 36 182,463 680,331
Warranty provision IRAE R 37 484,240 494,402
Tax liabilities HIEAaE 392,338 242,795
Lease liabilities HEBE 38 4,118 5,991
Amounts due to related parties &1 BB 5 K08 53 21,168 26,270
Borrowings == 39 4,907,346 2,571,185
Medium-term note FRHEASR R 40 - 648,365
Corporate bond TEESH 41 - 416,991
11,519,516 10,171,042
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEERH 644,490 130,904
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EFER B A E 7,693,440 7,237,302
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BER A
Share capital A& 43 74,704 74,704
Reserves (i 5,117,385 4,460,483
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 7N B1#EHE A FE(h#E 5,192,089 4,535,187
Non-controlling interests AR 54 832,515 880,803
TOTAL EQUITY wiEs 6,024,604 5,415,990
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAR
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIAEE 26 14,979 12,660
Lease liabilities HEAE 38 4,463 9,740
Borrowings B 39 1,383,186 1,519,415
Deferred income FEIEUT A 42 266,208 279,497
1,668,836 1,821,312
7,693,440 7,237,302

The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 225 were approved Q2 B EF 225 BFfHNGES M BEHRERON-Z

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2021 and ——%=H -+ + BEEE e & REERE
are signed on its behalf by: WHTIEEREKEE
Zhou Mingming Yang Xinxin
5LGL L E ]
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mOEmS IR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILFE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
FLANAARLERE
Equity
attributable
Statutory Share Exchange tonon-
Share Share surplus option FvToC Other translation  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve earnings Subtotal interests Total
BATE
AR
HE WEE  2ENE bl
ks  BRER BBRE 11 i RbGE EREE  RERA it EEE #it
RMB100 RMBO00 RMB100 RMBO000 RMBO000 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBO0O RMBO0O
ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTT ARETR
(notei) (note i)
k) (BzEi)
At T January 2020 RZZ-FF-A-A 74,704 408,237 859,219 76,143 (22,037) 306,871 (2356) 2834406 4,535,187 880,803 5415990
Profitfor the year EE - - - - - - - T0397 720397 4100 724,506
Other comprehensive income EREMZENE
for the year - - - - 238 - (81) - 157 - 157
Dividend paid to awners BARARERARE
of the Company (note 16) (fi3 16) - - - - - - - (83,083)  (83,083) - (83,083)
Dividend declared to AERRESE RS
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (113,727) (113,727)
Recognition of equity-setled DNRELEIRDA
share based paymens EREOFH - - - 2,473 - - - - 28473 - 2473
Cancellation of equity-setled RRNRELENRR A
share based payments ERHFE - - - (38,381) - - - 38,381 - - -
Capital contrbution by FERER A
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 62,926 62,926
Acquisiion of additional WEHBARE MER
interests in subsidiaries - - - - - (9,042) - - (9,042) (4,000) (13,042)
Deregister of non-wholly BEEME2 EHB AR
owned subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (16) (16)
Acquisition of a non-wholly B -2 EHBAR
owned subsiciary (note 46) (Fizt46) - - - - - - - - - 2,167 2,167
Disposal of a non-wholly HE-TF2ENBAR
owned subsidiary (note 47) (BizE47) - - (124) - - - - 124 - 253 253
Trangfertorresenves BAGH - -3 - - - - (1m3m4) - - -
31 December 2020 i S s 74,704 408,237 1,032,169 66,235 (21,799 297,829 (2437) 3,337,151 5,192,089 832515 6,024,604
At T January 2019 R=Z-N&E-B-H 74961 417301 685,076 2147 (7477) 306871 4.908) 2509597 4002668 926,162 4928830
Profitfor the year ENFE - - - - - - - 561,340 561,340 (4685 506655
Other comprehensive income FREfp2ENE
forthe year - - - - (14560) - 2552 - (12008 - (12008
Dividend paid to owners ENARREEARE
ofthe Company (note 16) (Hizk16) - - - - - - - (62388) (62368) = (62388)
Dividend declared to R ERSRRE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - (5,144) (5,144)
Recognition of equity-setted ERARELENRAA
share based payments AR - - - 5489% - - - - 548% - 548%
Capital contrbution by SHARERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 2470 2470
Shares repurchased and cancelled BEWHEHRN 257) (9064) = - - - - - 9321) = 9321)
Acquisttion of a non-wholly WE-RF2EHAN
owned subsiciary (note 46) HBAR (HzE40) - - - - - - - - - 12000 12000
Transfer toreserves IN:T - - 174143 - - - - (8 - - -
131 December 2019 REB-AFTZA=T-R M 48 8929 614 (200 38 36 28406 4SHIT GA3 5450
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SOERBEH

W\

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HEZ
Notes:

(i)

(ii)

86

FoTE+-A=t+-ALEE

In accordance with the articles of association of all subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), those subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of profit after
taxation reported under the relevant accounting policies and financial regulations in the PRC
to the statutory surplus reserve until such reserve reaches 50% of their registered capital.
Transfer to this reserve must be made before distributing dividends to equity owners. The
statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up previous year’s losses, expand the existing
operations or convert into additional capital of the subsidiaries.

Other reserves are mainly arising from (i) the difference between the fair value of the
consideration paid/received and the carrying amount of the net assets acquired from/
disposed to the non-controlling shareholders; (i) debt waived by a related party; and (iii) paid-
in capital of Chaowei Power (as defined in note 54) transferred during the reorganisation
made on 9 March 2010.
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RIBPTBEFEARLFIE ([F B ]) 532 B8 2 Rl AY
RAIETE  ZEWE R RIRAEERE T B F &
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BRI AA DRI EFIETT ° AT B EE AT
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RBIAIRRINE A o
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I\\/T\ E% Xtz 5)% %

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

020 2019
B 4 —EFE—hFE
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Profit before tax B A5 B A1 B 1,065,559 805,486
Adjustments for: FHEE
Interest income R EUA (74,043) (78,773)
Finance costs A AR A 371,669 300,642
Share of result of joint ventures EhaEEXEE 15,420 29917
Share of result of associates i A= YNE E 35,567 12,321
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value of E’ FEFABRHEREE
financial assets at FVTPL NEES) (Ym) BiE (284,151) 9,809
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME « BEMKREEE
equipment 34,380 38,748
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries Hj%ﬁﬁ% NG R 10,486 -
Loss on modification of a loan receivable BT —IBEKE R EE 14,655 -
Depreciation of property, plant %% BB KR EITE
and equipment 541,430 528,074
Depreciation of investment properties KEETE 3,558 2,995
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 41,611 38315
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEETE 14,368 16,110
Release of government grants from R 3 3 W A B 38 AT 4 B
deferred income (45,396) (37,569)
Allowance for credit losses on trade JEWE SRR E R B RS
receivables 68,432 156,207
Allowance for credit losses on other H b GIERNE E R B RS
receivables 18,474 11,613
Allowance for credit losses on BN ERKEEEEEE
loan receivables 42,936 -
Allowance for credit losses on JE s ER B 77 SRIE R (5 B B 1R R
amounts due from related parties 28,080 64,629
Equity-settled share based payments LA e 45 8 AR D A TR A9 51 28,473 54,896
Operating cash flows before movements in LEESEHRINEERERE
working capital 1,931,508 1,953,420
Increase in inventories FEEM (763,231) (495,235)
Decrease (increase) in receivables, FEMRIE « e RFENFIER D
deposits and prepayments (3hn) 178,711 (891,419)
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from JE L B B 5 SR IERL A (B2 00)
related parties 641 (24,843)
Increase in payables, deposits received and JERNFRIE - BElEE RTEIRE A
accrued charges =0 487,180 343,885
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities BHBE D) M (497,868) 102,294
Decrease in provision for warranty RERERD (10,162) (40,851)
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to JFE A5t A Bt 7 R IE A n Ok 4>)
related parties 1,934 (20,008)
Cash generated from operations HEMEERS 1,328,713 927,243
Income tax paid B FTSH (130,584) (275,757)
Net cash from operating activities KL EEMSIR S F5E 1,198,129 651,486
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z_ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

020 2019
- —E-NEF
Notes 000 RMB'000
Lz = ARETT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Assets-related government grants received B HE B AR B U 4 B 32,107 32,842
Interest received BUHE 75,518 75,846
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE  BENMRE (538,912) (364,155)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE - BE MEE
plant and equipment FriSsk1E 33,772 51,895
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, B -« BB K&
plant and equipment Fridize (158,429) (200,678)
Purchases of investment property BEREME (266) (3,144)
Purchase for leasehold lands included in BEAAEREEERN
right-of-use assets HE T (37,909) (22,733)
Proceeds on disposal of leasehold lands HEFAFERAEEED
included in right-of-use assets THE T H TS FUR 16,485 =
Net cash inflow (outflow) on acquisition of WEEHTB A R IR & mA
a subsidiary () 588 46 850 (17,179)
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HENBRARIMNIES
MAFRR 47 6,517
Capital contribution to joint ventures AEERETE - (11,000)
Capital contribution to an associate M—KEERREE (1,700) =
Proceeds on disposal of interests in associates e S R RERFTS
15 - 14,967
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BEERAFEABR
LR EE (485,727) (161,346)
Disposal of financial assets at FVTPL HERAFEF AER
W REE 646,534 66,185
Purchases of equity instruments at FVTOCI BERAT EF AR
PHKRNERTA (1,800) (1,700)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits IR EIRITER 9,082,650 11,462,932
Placement of restricted bank deposits TR R SR TR (9,781,517) (10,936,427)
Payments of loan receivables FEU B SRAS 3R (7,798) =
Placement of deposits for borrowings FRERIRS (24,024) -
Collection of loan receivables B ERE 8,169 88,127
Loans to associates MEE R E B - (7,236)
Collection of loan to an associate B —REE A TIE R - 17,203
Advance to related parties ) BA s 5 3K (52,943) (31,248)
Repayments from related parties BB 5 (B & IE - 42,263
Repayment from a former associate — KA A RIENK - 13,200
Net cash (used in) from investing activities wEES(FTR)BHES
SEEE (1,188,423) 108,614
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

020 2019
q —ZE-NF
Note 000 RMB'000
Lz i ARBTT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES R EE
Shares repurchased and cancelled 8 121 37 5 35 O A% (D - (9.321)
New borrowings raised FEENEE 4,632,120 2,560,263
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (2,432,188) (3,635,108)
Repayments of corporate bonds BEREEES (417,804) =
Repayments of medium-term note BERHAZE (649,890) =
Repayments of short-term note BERBRRE - (300,000)
Payments of lease liabilities XHHEAE (6,205) (4,839)
Interest paid BHE (386,753) (316,524)
Dividends paid to the owners of the Company DA ARATHES AKE (83,083) (62,388)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest BN IEERERR R (113,727) (31,488)
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests ~ FEZE A& fE#5 )T & 62,926 2,470
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary — WiE—KKTEB A B
RIMEL (13,042) ~
Deregister of non-wholly owned subsidiaries BUHEIER BN E A A (16) -
Advance from related parties K B RAEE B - 17,046
Repayments to related parties A B8 Bt 75 & K (7,036) =
Net cash from (used in) financing activities MEEHE (TR RE
HER 50 585,302 (1,779,889)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and HeRAEEHEMBmM
cash equivalents (€-203F:1 | 595,008 (1,019,789)
Cash and cash equivalents FURe KReFEY
at beginning of the year 1,958,428 2,975,507
Effects of exchange rate changes [ERE BT E (888) 2,710
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRASRASEEY
the year, represented by bank balances DSBRITHEBRAEET
and cash (note 32) (PEE32) 2,552,548 1,958,428
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i O R 15 i 7 P 51

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

W\

90

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 18 January 2010 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and its shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with effect from 7 July 2010. The
address of the registered office of the Company is P.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1205 Cayman Islands, and the address of its principal place of
business in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") is No.18,
Chengnan Road, Huaxi Industrial Function Area, Changxing County,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("‘RMB"), which is also the functional currency of the Company and
most of its subsidiaries. The principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are manufacturing and sales of lead-
acid motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries and other related
products.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards and the
following amendments to IFRSs issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:
Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material
and IAS 8
Amendments to IFRS 3
Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Definition of a Business
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The application of the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards and the amendments to IFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RO RS i 22 P 5E
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)
New and amendment to IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16

Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28
Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to
IFRS Standards

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments’

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions*

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture’
Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current!
Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use’
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract’
Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards 2018-2020°

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

/
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Except for the amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, the directors
of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
 ET_THF+_A=t+—RHILLFE

W\

2.

92

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendment to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance on
the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification of liabilities as current
or non-current, which:

specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments
clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle the
liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are met at
the end of the reporting period, even if the lender does
not test compliance until a later date; and

clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the
entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not affect its
classification as current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an equity instrument
applying IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

Borrowings which are subject to meeting covenants within 12
months from reporting date

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's right to defer settlement for
borrowings of RMB59,000,000 are subject to compliance with
covenants within 12 months from the reporting date. Such
borrowing was classified as current. Pending clarification on the
application of relevant requirements of the amendments, the Group
will further assess whether application of the amendments will have
an impact on the classification of this borrowing. The impacts on
application, if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future
consolidated financial statements.

Except for as disclosed above, the application of the amendments
will not result in reclassification of the Group’s other liabilities as at
31 December 2020.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving
the consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2
Inventories or value in use in I1AS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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94

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

Going concern assessment

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

included within Level

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are

changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of
equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(continued)

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under IFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to apply an
optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value of
the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The
gross assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from
the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is
met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a
business and no further assessment is needed.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (continued)
Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that
do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to the
financial assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the
basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combination
under common control are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the International
Accounting Standards Committee’s Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced
by the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
September 2010).
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except
that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 12
Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;
and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in IFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new
leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for which
(a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non- controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the
cash-generating unit within the group of cash- generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash- generating unit within a group of
cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate and a joint venture is described below.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. RERSHMBERNEERTIER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Mk (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.2 EERATBR (W)

100

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate or joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate or a
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint venture,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the current period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
 ET_THF+_A=t+—RHILLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of IFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of the relevant interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate
or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of
the relevant associate or joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good (or a bundle of
goods) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods that are
substantially the same.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Warranties

If a customer does not have the option to purchase a warranty
separately, the Group accounts for the warranty in accordance
with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets unless the warranty provides the customer with a
service in addition to the assurance that the product complies
with agreed-upon specifications (i.e. service-type warranties).

Contract costs — Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures and equipment
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of
the lease term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever: the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases. The leases for which the Group is a lessor during the
current year are all classified as operating lease.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling
prices.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
 ET_THF+_A=t+—RHILLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EESHBE(E)
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Leases (continued) HE (&)
The Group as a lessor (continued) KEBERHAN ()
Refundable rental deposits AREASES

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.
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Lease modification HEEET
Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not TERRBERRIEERHEES AR
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as BEIHEDAEEEITARLR  BIES

lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of
the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial
disposal of the Group's interests in associates/joint ventures.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e., RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in
the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes, including state-managed retirement benefits
schemes in the PRC and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme, are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve. For
share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained earnings.

RUGSMERRNEERETRSY
BHB R (48)

3.2

FRE AR ()

HR 17 B BB BT 5 K HE

MRS B LA BRI R BRI N AKX 5
BT e B MEAE

e B M H MR A LUR B A £ 1F
) £ DA I 18 45 B DA RR 19 79 EE i A < 30
TR AR ER T AN FER

=
5 °

AR 18 45 B DA B 40 70 B ] B 91 SRR IR
B HEE T B AR (ST AT B IE
MIZEEIRIT) - IRBASEERE
HEBHER T ARG REED
MIABEAA » igm (BAEREE)
SHEEEM REREHR - AKH
E X HFrA R SR T 45 57 B Ik (A T
eI AR B T A B ffh
it ERIREMFTMRE (WA RE
SR BRI RRIERT A
it WHABREF G AERE -
PRE L BRI RBAEREN S -
BENBRENAFETFRER
RXEH o

BB RITERE - SER N B
R RIS E R E R R (E -
2 BBEN R E B PR O/ E
m BADRIETTE - ERTR e BE A
FHERNNBKERERERFN -

BERENERARAT / 2020€®% 111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=/
AR

Ry 55 i 2 P9 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of each reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and the deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
When current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments, the
Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant tax
authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or
proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the most
likely amount or the expected value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes other than construction in
progress. Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress including property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

114 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020

RUGSMERRNEERETESY
Bt R (48)

3.2 EERATBR (W)

HE (&)

BV RRFE R IR N IR aR RERR » e A5
TREEHE M 2R s BRI S
RHABERH - EUBERT - AK
BEEFATD RN EMe2miasE
B R - fm B A SR B TR
RERBEBAHARMEL KX
Batt AR ABRBRE -

FHEEA PSR T EERIER - A
SEZEEMNEHEEE A AR
RERIEEEREEMESV AR (E
RSB ERNTREEREEE - WA
AT RE - B A R R AE Y TR R B AT 1S 75
HHR— BB RIEEEE - WA
FATR TSR T A BE R X T RETE B TS R
B ARARAENEEKTANER
REREIATHEE AR E -

WX BERRE

ME - BERRESFIFLEEIHE
ERmSERBINETHRAENBLEE
(ERZ TR - W% BERRME
RER A B AR R AR B AN R L 1R 1Y
R ERZDREBE(WE)IIRK -

ERETRE(BEFELE - HEXITK
RZENERME - BB R&RE) KA
AR ERBEERIIRK - KAE
REEEEDEAEBEEERTHN
AARREEMUENME RIEFM
EREENEAXRAR(LEEREE
mE)REAEESHBRETERL
MERRA - ZEEEREEMYE
BEMRNELE  RRFEEAER
BERERRATEINE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-
of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sellit;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

116 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020

RUGSMERRNEERETESY
Bt R (48)

3.2 FESBOR(E)

REYF (&)

BEMENLE XKAERARERL
ETEH AR 4R I LRERR
BATEREEMEEEAANFRELX
TRBERSHREFREEEREE

MERERTE - REIA(ZEB R IR
ZER)F AR -

BB BT A E
ERREAAREERFHZETE
B RN, R AT SH M AR AT R AR
EEBEAR - AR EERFHRNET
BEHHFENEIERFHRERE
FERR o (oAt Al {2 A B R B35 5 AR
BEHREHRT AR - EAAFE
N ERFERREEARR -

AEBELRBE B E — FEFAX

MAEBNREEE REER SR
i o

EREENTHASABIERHE
FEES (kEAE MREEER) 3
HHABELNELEET TIAER

RN £ 7] SEA iR S T B B LA (R

HeeE AR HE

“ﬁ%&E%ﬁﬁ/éFIﬁHﬂ&Hﬂ’i

:n;

il
-

B NERIHLEXBEE

u%ﬂﬂ/ﬁﬁﬁufﬂéiiﬁﬁiﬂﬁ&?
Rk



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=/
R

Ry %5 i 2 P9 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-BF+-A=+—ALFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and

development expenditure (continued)
the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in
a business combination with finite useful lives are reported at
costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_TFT_A=t—HILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets, intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
(or cash generating unit) for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill (continued)
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable,
directs labour costs and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less all estimated costs to completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type warranty
obligations under the relevant contracts with customers for
sales of lead-acid motive battery products are recognised at
the date of sale of the relevant products, at the Directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group'’s
obligation.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCl") if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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3.

122

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial

asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(if)

(iii)

Receivables classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for
receivables classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method
are recognised in profit or loss. All other changes in the
carrying amount of these receivables are recognised in
OCl and accumulated under the heading of FVTOCI
reserve. Impairment allowances are recognised in profit
or loss with corresponding adjustment to OCl without
reducing the carrying amounts of these receivables. The
amounts that are recognised in profit or loss are the
same as the amounts that would have been recognised
in profit or loss if these receivables had been measured
at amortised cost. When these receivables are
derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
OCl and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are not
subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained earnings.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Dividends are included in the “other
income and other gains and losses” line item in profit or
loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(iv)  Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other income and other gains” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, receivables at FVTOCI, other receivables, loan
receivables, amounts due from related parties, restricted bank
deposits, bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on trade receivables are assessed individually for
debtors in severe financial difficulty and/or collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in

which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

()

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument's external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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128

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables and receivables at
FVTOCI are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

Past-due status;

Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

Except for receivables that are measured at FVTOCI, the
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, other receivables and loan receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account. For receivables that
are measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is
recognised in OCl and accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve without reducing the carrying amount of these
receivables. Such amount represents the changes in the
FVTOCI reserve in relation to accumulated loss
allowance.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

130 Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of receivables that are measured at FVTOCI,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure
at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition/modification of financial assets (continued)
When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a
substantial modification from original terms taking into
account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers the terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new
terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received, and
discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least
10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial asset.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present value
of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial assets’ original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of
the modified financial assets and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of
the financial asset is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
The Group's financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, trade payables, bills
payable, other payables, amount due to related parties, short-
term note, medium-term note and corporate bond are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts;
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Warranty provision

The Group provides a warranty up to fifteen months starting from
the sales of all lead-acid motive battery products. Under the terms of
warranty, the Group undertakes to repair or replace the battery free
of charge in the event of any malfunctioning within the warranty
period.

Estimated costs related to product warranty are accrued at the time
of sales of all lead-acid motive battery products based on cost
incurred on the past warranty claims and unit sales history and
further adjusted as required to reflect actual costs incurred, as
information becomes available. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised provision for warranty amounted to RMB484,240,000
(2019: RMB494,402,000) and details are disclosed in note 37. In cases
where the actual cost incurred on the warranty claims are less or
more than expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
result in revision of estimated costs related to product warranty, a
material reversal or further provision of warranty provision may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
such a reversal or further provision takes place.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment of lifetime ECL on trade
receivables. Except for the debtors in severe financial difficulty, which
are assessed for impairment loss individually, the Group uses a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings to assess ECL on trade
receivables collectively. The provision rates are based on debtors’
aging because trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers with common risk characteristics and their aging are
representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort.

At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amount of trade receivables amounted
to RMB1,938,261,000 (2019: RMB1,820,586,000), after taking into
account the ECL of RMB495,593,000 (2019: RMB432,809,000). The
information about the ECL and the Group's trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 28 and 52, respectively.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The licensed technology and trademark are amortised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The Group’s management
determines the useful lives of these intangible assets to be 10 years.
The Group assesses annually the useful lives of these intangible
assets.

If the expectation differs from the original estimate due to changes
in the expected level of usage and/or technological developments,
such difference will impact the amortisation charge in the year in
which such estimate is changed.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets are allocated to respective cash-generating unit for
the purpose of impairment testing whenever there is indication that
the intangible assets may be impaired. The recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit has been determined based on value in
use calculation. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. No impairment loss
of intangible assets has been recognised in current year.

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment
The Group’s management determines the residual value, useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment, as disclosed in note 17. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual residual value and useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
keen competitions from competitors. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where residual value or useful lives are less than
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete assets.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment being lower
than its carrying amount. No impairment loss of property, plant and
equipment has been recognised in current year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Recognition of deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2020, deferred tax assets of RMB513,895,000
(2019: RMB569,022,000) in relation to allowances for ECL and
inventories, deferred income, accrual and provision, tax losses and
other temporary differences have been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses of
RMB1,695,095,000 (2019: RMB1,057,133,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisation of the
deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are more or less than expected, a material
adjustment of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such an
adjustment takes place. Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in
note 26.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2020, the carrying amount of goodwill was RMB49,447,000 (2019:
RMB49,447,000). Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 20.
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REVENUE 5. A
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with (i) ERSHIBARIF
customers
020 2019
: —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
R AREETTT
Types of goods BaEH
Lead-acid motive batteries R E) I E )
Electric bike battery BEFEITESES 16,223,934 17,249,455
Electric vehicle battery and special-purpose BEEE M REFRAR
electric vehicle battery EHEEMW 8,053,844 7,626,285
Li-ion batteries EEETE 141,016 259,132
Materials include lead and active additives MR BEEREEY) 2,767,466 2,046,860
Renewable wasted batteries AIEAREEEM 118,296 =
Total et 27,304,556 27,181,732
020 2019
: —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
S AREEFIT
Timing of revenue recognition TR U A KO 5 Y
A point in time Rk 27,304,556 27,181,732
(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with (i) EFRAZEHNEE

(iii)

customers

The Group sells lead-acid motive batteries, lithium-ion
batteries and other related products to customers. Revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being
when the goods have been delivered to the customers’
specific locations (delivery). Following the delivery, the
customers have full discretion over the manner of distribution
and price to sell the goods, have the primary responsibility
when on selling the goods and bear the risks of obsolescence
and loss in relation to the goods. The Group generally allows a
credit period of 45 days to its trade customers with good
trading history, or otherwise sales on cash terms are required.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

All batteries and related products are delivered within period
less than one year. As permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

(iii)

AEERNEFPHENEKBNED  #
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OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the chief executive officer, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment focuses on revenue analysis by products.
No other discrete financial information is provided other than the
Group's results and financial position as a whole. Accordingly, only
entity-wide disclosures, major customers and geographic
information are presented. No segment assets and liabilities, and
related other segment information are presented as no such discrete
financial information is provided to the CODM.

Geographical information

Most of the external revenues of the Group during the year are from
customers established in the PRC, the place of domicile of the
Group's operating entities. Most of the Group’s non-current assets
are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers
The following illustrates the revenue from customers which
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group:

EESE
AERTELERRA(ZELEREAD
MITRAHRENERIRIEERDE LS
PIREMIFWRAD TS - FRASEERE
AR ISAROIASN - B & 1R (B e {5 B
BEH FANESREBIEBEE T2
BEPRMEMEEN - ANTEBEERRA
WEEBRHEOMEERAE  ARHEMD
HEAR D EER - B ARE 25 BRMBE
£t o

wECEREH

FR - AREARIDINBKRAR B R B
YHWEP HRAAEEKLEERMEL
B REEBARDIERBEEAMNPE -

FEEFREH
VAT 8t 28 B B B 5= B A A 10% BA Y
BEPHWA

Customer A ZEA

020 2019
E 5 —E-NF
B’000 RMB'000
K ARETIT
3,023,479 N/ANE R

1: The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group.
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7. OTHERINCOME AND OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7.

HAdy A B H a2 B 5518

020 2019
F_¥9 —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
2 ARB T

Other income: Hfthggr A -

Government grants BT B

— grants related to income (note i) — B A B BEa B (FI5ED) 183,310 144,100
— grants related to assets (note 42) — HEELBENMEE (F5E42) 45,396 37,569

Interest income on bank deposits RITF A A B A 73,378 55,846

Interest income on loan receivables FEW E KA A B A 665 14,930

Interest income on loan to associates MEE AR ERFSHA - 7,997

Rental income HEHA 6,238 6,104

Sales of scrap materials SHE RER 13,521 25,197

322,508 291,743

Other gains and losses Hti 2 R 518

Gain (loss) from fair value changes of BAFEFABZNESHEEN

financial assets at FVTPL (note ii) R EEB SRS (B1E) (T 284,151 (9,809)
Loss on disposal of plant, machinery and HERE -~ #ed RERENER
equipment (note iii) (B &E i) (34,380) (38,748)

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 47) S ME A Rl ey EE (MisE47) (10,486) -

Net foreign exchange losses HINGE BT B (3,519) (3,352)

Loss on modification of a loan receivable & fERE A &2

(note 25 (b)) (Ff=E25(0) (14,655) -

Others A 4,987 15,424

226,098 (36,485)
548,606 255,258

Notes: HiaF -

(i) Government grants mainly include various government subsidies received by the (i) BT B F E E15 K 2 AT E 2 AIHCER Z (B /E B
Company’s subsidiaries from relevant government bodies for various purposes BT A RSB R ER - EER IR
including enterprise expansion, technology advancement, environmental protection IRIE IR 1L R 2 o % F %18 B 69,2 Z BT/
measures enhancement and product development. There were no unfulfilled Bro RZFZFFR-F—NF+ZA=+—
conditions or contingencies attaching to these grants and subsidies that have been H - ZF B MR R iR a4 B K 47 B U0 #E 1T 5 1
received and recognised as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. During the current year, RERANEIHFX R FIEE « RAFE - KEE IR
the Group also recognised government grants of RMB11,500,000 in respect of Covid- B & 4 BT AT HE (2 1 Covid-19 18 B8 77 B iE 3R BT
19-related subsidies provided by the local governments. FHRLA B 11,500,000 °

(ii) The amount mainly represents gain from fair value changes of the Group’s (ii) Z e R E BN E EREE LTHIRAE S 2R
investment in equity securities listed in Hong Kong. BRFEZB W -

(i) During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, certain subsidiaries of the (iii) REZR=ZF-_FTFL=F—NF+=-A=1+—H

Company upgraded their production facilities to expand production capacity and/or
improve production efficiency and hence, certain machinery and equipment were
disposed of and replaced by new machinery and equipment, resulting in a loss on
disposal of machinery and equipment.

LEFJZ - KR AJE T [18 A AR TR A2 ARt A
BREBER HREFLENFE - At - & TFHES
R ARG E U AR ES RR B BRESE
RS R R BHEIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_Z-_ZTF+_A=t+—HILFE

8. OTHER EXPENSES 8. HfthfX
020 2019
& —ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
K ARBTT
Depreciation of investment properties WEMENTE 3,558 2,995
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment EEHSWANYZE  BER
generating rental income FETE 686 1,129
Donations 5 A 6,144 5211
10,388 9,335
9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES RECOGNISED, NET OF 9. EMRAERBIR(MKED)
REVERSAL
020 2019
L4 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
S e ARKETT
Impairment losses recognised on: THEIBEEERZBERBE :
— trade receivables — BN E SRR 68,432 156,207
— other receivables — E fth fERIE 18,474 11,613
— amounts due from related parties — FE UK FEESE 5 FhIE 28,080 64,629
— loan receivables — ERER 42,936 =
157,922 232,449
Details of impairment assessment for the years ended 31 December FRBE_Z_ZTER-_ZF-—NF+=A
2020 and 2019 are set out in note 52(c). =+— Etirmﬁ@ﬁnﬂﬁnﬂ E N
52(c) °
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MERF
020 2019
& —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
R % ARBTFT
Interest expenses on: MEFRX :
Bank borrowings RITEE 317,988 226,794
Corporate bond PEESH 21,456 34,464
Medium-term note FRHEIS R 40,457 51,033
Short-term note HHEAZEE - 951
Lease liabilities HER®E 653 800
Total borrowing costs BEXKABE 380,554 314,042
Less: amounts capitalised in construction T AR TIIER
in progress EXR b2 (8,885) (13,400)
371,669 300,642
Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 December BE=T —ﬁ PET=A=T— Eﬁltir i
- REARZEERAREE —RIEERE - Wik
2020 arose on the general borrowing pool and are calculated by i o (T i
applying a capitalisation rate of 4.88% per annum (2019: 5.03% per TﬁT 05?&%?488@ jli FEEL
annum) to expenditure on qualifying assets. F503%) EREFRELHFH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-BF+-A=+—ALFE

11.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11.

Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

FRIAIFIE
BB AEE IR GtA) THI&EA |

020 2019
B 4] —E-NF
B’000 RMB'000
K ARBTFT
Salaries and other benefits costs & M E MR KA 1,320,850 1,312,058
Retirement benefits scheme contributions (note i) 3R NS4 5% (i Ei) 28,983 49,480
Labour cost (note ii) BT (i) 177,061 112,943
Share-based payments LARRAD /3 ERE R T 3R 28,473 54,896
Total staff costs (including directors’' emoluments) 8 TR A 4E5E (BIEEEME) 1,555,367 1,529,377
Less: amounts capitalised in inventories B RNFEERNLERE (1,191,441) (1,102,413)
363,926 426,964
Amortisation of intangible assets BT B R S 41,611 38315
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - RENMREITE 541,430 528,074
Total depreciation and amortisation e REHERE 583,041 566,389
Less: amounts capitalised in inventories B RN EEERNEEE (367,063) (352,274)
215,978 214,115
Depreciation of investment properties REMERE 3,558 2,995
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 14,368 16,110
Cost of inventories recognised as expense BRAERINFEEKA 23,473,747 23,167,807
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR € 5,943 7,817
Research and development costs recognised TR A5 S B I 2 AR AR
as expense 857,364 797,570
Gross rental income from investment properties WEMERSBRUA (4,430) (4,431)
Less: direct operating expenses arising from B EEHSWAKEME
investment properties generating rental income HBENEEKESHRY 1,521 1,538
(2,909) (2,893)
Notes: Htat -
() During the current year, pursuant to the notice released by the relevant PRC authority, () RAFE - IRIZIHE T B BT % H B 40 - AR

certain subsidiaries of the Company have been fully or partially waived to undertake

a number of social insurance totaling approximately RMB15,982,000.

(ii) The Group has entered into labour dispatch agreements with several service
organisations providing labour service to the Group.

A& THIE A B 2 E18t 555 s £ A e Z IE At
SR - AERER) A RKE 15,982,0007T °

() FEEESRAFEEIEGS TRB BB
TS TIRE G -
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HE-_Z-_ZTF+_A=t+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EREREZTHRARMNS
EMOLUMENTS
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the Directors during the AREBRFRNREESI NS FBWOT :
year are as follows:
Salaries Contribution
and other to retirement
benefits- benefit  Share-based
Fees in-kind scheme payments Total
FaREf BT AR R
e Ehiadl HEHS SERDHMAR &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTr ARETT ARETT ARET:
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_ZE+A=+—-HLEE
Executive directors: YiTEE:
Mr. Zhou Mingming (note) [EBABA % 4 (Pff3E) - 1,219 7 214 1,440
Mr. Zhou Longrui A ke - 360 - 214 574
Ms. Yang Yunfei GERLL - 360 - 214 574
Mr. Yang Xinxin Lt b - 2,115 6 214 2,335
Non-executive director: FRTES:
Ms. Fang Jianjun HEEZL 350 - - 214 564
Independent non-executive directors: FIFHTEE :
Mr. Wang Jigiang TEREE 420 - - 139 559
Prof. Ouyang Minggao B AR = s 420 - - 139 559
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FHELE 420 - - 139 559
Mr.Ng ChiKit RERTE 420 - - 139 559
Total st 2,030 4,054 13 1,626 7,723
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE_Z-AF+-A=t—-HLEE
Executive directors: YiTEE:
Mr. Zhou Mingming (note) [EIRRBA S A (RTsE) - 1218 8 562 1,788
Mr. Zhou Longrui Ak AE - 368 - 562 930
Ms. Yang Yunfei BERZL - 368 - 562 930
Mr. Yang Xinxin AT - 1980 8 562 2550
Non-executive director: FHITEE:
Ms. Fang Jianjun HTRERT 350 - - 562 912
Independent non-executive directors: B EHTEE
Mr. Wang Jigiang TR E 350 - - 340 690
Prof. Ouyang Minggao LIS 6 350 - - 340 690
Mr. Lee Conway Kong Wai FHELE 350 - - 340 690
Mr. Ng Chi Kit REGRAE 350 - - 340 690
Total @t 1,750 3934 16 4170 9,870
Note: Hifat

JEIBH A 5E A TR S AN R IR TICAB R, » 1T X AT 8582 B
B INHE R BT TIARE FTHE AR TS

Mr. Zhou Mingming is also the chief executive officer of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed above also include those for services rendered by him as the chief executive officer.
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BHE

12.

13.

2 EF+_A=+—HIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12.

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group. The non-executive director and
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were paid for their services as the Directors.

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13.

INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
included two directors (2019: two directors), details of their
emoluments are set out in note 12 above. The emoluments of the
remaining three individuals for the year (2019: three individuals) are
as follows:

EFRERTHRARH® ()

EXFRBTESHERREFREEELAR
BINMASEEEB 2 HEREM o XA
RERATESTRBYFNTETHENES

BEEE=RHMmMA -

BB RS B B ENER A MM I

44

IEEEFALTHHE

FR - ARENIERRSHFALCEMEBE
Z2(ZENEF  MEBEZF) HMFEH
REXKEI2- FR - BRT=ZBAL(ZF
—hEF ZRADHBET

020 2019

g —E-NF

000 RMB'000

= ARETTT

Salaries and other allowances Fre & E )RR 4,152 5612
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREFI B X 24 24
Share-based payments LARS 17 72 EERE AT 50 67 218
4,243 5,854
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EMOLUMENTS OF THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS (continued)

The above employees’ emoluments were within the following
bands:

13. ABREEHFALTHME (&)

bBiEEMESHEATSEE :

Number of individuals

ATEE
020 2019
—T-NEF
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 75 7T 2,000,000 75 7T 1 1
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 87T 2,500,000 75 7T 1 1
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 /& JT & 3,000,000 75 7T 1 ]

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year.

BRABRE BN B EN R & B 5 BwR M
440

FR - ARBYEAEFTRKAEZESFAL
SIS - YERINASIR IIA AR SR B 5 o 82
Bk ERERAE(E - £ BIBESNELEM

B -

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FRRMAX
020 2019
2 —T-NF
B’000 RMB’000
R ARETT
Current tax; BNEARRIA
— PRC enterprise income tax — R EMER 285,304 381,103
(Over) under provision in prior years BEFE GRRBEES) BET R
— PRC enterprise income tax — R ERTEFR (5,177) 111
Deferred tax charge (credit) (note 26) EEFR AR = () (FfiaE26) 60,926 (82,383)
341,053 298,831

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25%. In accordance with the “Notice of the State
Tax Bureau of the Ministry of Finance Regarding Certain Preferential
Treatment Policies on Enterprise Income Tax", New and High
Technical Enterprise is subject to income tax at a preferential tax rate
of 15%. Certain subsidiaries of the Company were qualified as New
and High Technical Enterprises in accordance with the applicable EIT
Law of the PRC and are subject to income tax at a preferential tax
rate of 15%.
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14.

—E-PETA=t-HLEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Other subsidiaries established in the PRC were subject to income tax
rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 25%). The
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI"), Germany, Hong Kong and other countries had no
assessable profits during the year (2019: nil).

The EIT Law provides that qualified dividend income between two
“resident enterprises” that have a direct investment relationship is
exempted from income tax. Otherwise, such dividends will be
subject to a 5% to 10% withholding tax under the tax treaty or the
domestic law. The Group is currently subject to withholding tax at
10%. During the year ended 31 December 2020, withholding tax on
intra-group dividend amounting to RMB17,861,285 (2019:
RMB14,360,752) was paid by the Group to relevant tax authorities.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

14. FRSIRBAST (48)

HE T TF+-_A=t+—HIFE K
REAZHEMH B AR EHRHREA
250 (Z B — N6 : 25%) « AR T R HRNE
BHEBRRHS((ABHERRHS]) 2R -
EB N EMEREMKZINOHBE AR 0 &R
WEERHAE(ZB—HF &) o

TEMSTERE  MREEEEREBEK
HIERME] 2EMNEERKRERA @ &
BNEFTISHE o BRULLASN » BIEFR B4 Sk B
WIERE - REABFIZRN F5%E10% T F 0B
REMTEIF o B AT - ANEE AR 10%HF
REMBENF -HE2-_T-_TF+ A
=+—HIFE AEEEHREEANAREME
RERMBABBHREINENHARRE
17,861,285 L (ZE —NF : AR™ 14,360,752
JL) °

FAMGHRAX ARG BEMEMEEK
SmRPEORBATFEH RO T

020 2019
=4 —E—NF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETTT
Profit before tax R A5 B A1) 1,065,559 805,486
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of 25% BB R PT SR 25% T8
EY B IR 266,390 201,372
Tax effect of income tax deduction granted BV EPNGIEs sl ol T 3753
to subsidiaries in research and development PSR B i 15 2 22
expenditure (82,353) (84,999)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PRAHF AT S & 18,915 11,006
Effect of preferential tax rates on income of BEHRREETHE AR
certain subsidiaries I ON:o)-7 (13,241) 49,629
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTRIEEEBNIIETE 131,653 88,542
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised B R 2 B AR FER 2 T 1B ET8 (7,308) -
Tax effect of share of result of associates JEMRERE R R FEENTIBTE 8,892 3,235
Tax effect of share of result of joint ventures FEIE G B FEFENTRIATE 3,855 7,324
Withholding tax on undistributed profits LRI E A AR EFERY
of PRC subsidiaries AT 19,427 22611
(Over) under provision in prior years BAFE (GRRERE) BETR (5,177) 111
Income tax expense for the year FRABHAX 341,053 298,831

The details of deferred tax for the year are set out in note 26.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

15.

wikEF
ARBERARENERERRE SR
RIBATEIEAE

020 2019
E S —E-nF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETT
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted HERERREE R TS/
earnings per share (profit for the year B (AR RHE ARG
attributable to owners of the Company) FERFE) 720,397 561,340
020 2019
P —E-NF
000 '000
i Tz
Number of shares abar-4=
Weighted average number of ordinary shares HERERNREERF
for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings & A B Nt
per share Nk g = 1,104,127 1,104,382

The outstanding share options of the Company did not have dilutive
effect to the Company’s earnings per share during the year ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 because the exercise prices of these
options were higher than the average market prices of the
Company's shares for both years.

ARBARITEZBRESARADEE_T—
ZERZTE-NFTZA=T—HIEFEZ
BRANTEETTE ARSRREZT
FBERRZMEFE 2 ARRRDFEME
{B1E -

DIVIDENDS 16. BB
020 2019
=1 —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
K ARETTT
Dividends declared for distribution during the year: & NS )k AL E ¢
2019 final dividend — HKD0.084 per share ZE-NFRPBRE
— BiR0.084 8T 83,083 -
2018 final dividend — HKDO0.066 per share ZE-N\FREEKE
— §RR 0066 BT - 62,388

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 of HKDO0.117
(equivalent to RMB0.098) (2019: final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2019 of HKD0.084 (equivalent to RMB0.075))
per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of HKD129,183,000
(equivalent to RMB108,725,000) (2019: aggregate amount of
HKD92,747,000 (equivalent to RMB83,083,000)), has been proposed
by the Directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming general meeting.
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BE KRR
Furniture,
Plantand Motor fixturesand Construction
Buildings machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
& B
B RBERES RE  RERRR ERIE 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETn ARBTr ARETT ARETT ARET:
COST BE
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—HA—H 2303400 2770923 324939 254826 1,281,294 6,935,382
Additions NE 79,726 158,875 92,846 19678 263921 615,046
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FNELA - 1,982 198 191 626 2997
Transfers B 93,684 493,042 12,802 4181 (603,709) -
Eliminated on disposals HER (175) (114,076) (45717) (3446) - (163414)
At 31 December 2019 R=F—NF
+-A=+—H 2,476,635 3,310,746 385,068 275430 942,132 7,390,011
Additions NE 41,057 179,784 23,844 22,735 481,055 748475
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y- R B A
(note 46) (FiE46) - 6444 7,220 771 - 14435
Transfers R 46,705 250,019 866 16 (297,606) -
Eliminated on disposals B 8 (21,349 (116,237) (51,084) (4,925) (50) (193,645)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR
(note 47) GiEZY - (39867) - - - (39867)
At 31 December 2020 RIZ_ZTF
+-A=t—H 2,543,048 3,590,889 365914 294,027 1,125,531 7919409
DEPRECIATION AND MERRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2019 R=ZE-NE—-A—-A 578548 1,044,647 176,754 143643 - 1943592
Provided for the year FREE 123,389 309619 64,791 30275 - 528074
Eliminated on disposals B 4 5 (103) (44.424) (25578) (2,666) = 72,771)
At31 December 2019 RZZ-N%F
+=-A=+—H 701,834 1,309,842 215,967 171,252 - 2,398,895
Provided for the year FREE 140,784 333029 34,986 32,631 = 541430
Eliminated on disposals HERHH (3.945) (90,708) (26,466) (4,374) - (125493)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENRBAT
(note 47) (Pizx47) - (2.380) - = - (2,380)
At31 December 2020 A
+-R=+-H 838,673 1,549,777 224,487 199,509 - 2812446
CARRYING AMOUNT EEE
At 31 December 2020 RZZ_TF
+-R=+—H 1,704,375 2041112 141427 94,518 1,125,531 5,106,963
At31 December 2019 RZZE—N%F
+-A=1+—8H 1,774.801 2,000,904 169,101 104,178 942,132 4991116
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated after taking into account of
their estimated residual values on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Buildings 4.75%-9.5%
Plant and machinery 9.5%
Motor vehicles 19%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9.5%-19%

Details of property, plant and equipment pledged are set out in note
48.

The Group as lessor

The Group leases out certain plant and machinery under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 6 years.
None of the leases includes variable lease payments. The
disaggregation of these machinery under operating leases included
within plant and machinery and the reconciliation of the carrying
amount at the beginning and end of the period are set out as below:

17. %# BB R (i8)

AYE - BENERERERE - FREZTE
$7I\ - IR ERMAFTRIREER - RERXE

AT FE L RFHRITE ¢

B 4.75%-9.5%
B8R M =S 9.5%
RE 19%

Bk BERENREE 9.5%-19%
BEFNDE  BEMRENFBIHRN T
48 o

FREERHAA
AEBRKEHELHE TREM#:S -
E-RNFRENEcF - HIBHERST
ﬁ‘*‘fﬂ%‘fﬁ?ﬂ * REFTARE MRS M
BIR e < M R YRR R E
EE%Z@JZZDT :

RMB'000

AREETIT
Cost )o%.
At 1 January 2020 RZE_FF—H—H 6,259
Expiration of leases HEEm (6,259)
New leases entered into RIS 12,634
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE_ZTFE+-_H=+—H 12,634
DEPRECIATION nE
At 1 January 2020 R-E-_FTF—H—H 2,788
New leases entered into HIVEivizh=1 1,798
Provided for the year FAEE 686
Expiration of leases HEEm (2,891)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_ZTFE+-_HA=+—H 2,381
CARRYING VALUES lﬁﬁﬁ
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_TF+=_A=+—H 10,253
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—NE+=-_A=+—H 3471
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. (EHERE
= 1 i £ e
B'000 000 B'000
As at 1 January 2020 ®-Z_ZTH—H—AH
Carrying amount FRmEfE 479,549 15,187 494,736
As at 31 December 2020 AT _ZEF+_HA=+—H
Carrying amount REE 491,955 8,239 500,194
For the year ended BE_ZT_ZF
31 December 2020 +ZA=1+—HLEE
Depreciation charge TEER 9,618 4,750 14,368
For the year ended BE_Z—hEF
31 December 2019 +-A=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge TEEHR 11,527 4,583 16,110
020 2019
=4 —E-NF
B’000 RMB'000
R AREFTT
Expense relating to short-term leases EL5S BT E AR B 2 5,134 4,717
Total cash outflow for leases (note) THEIR SR 858 (fEE) (49,248) (33,403)
Additions to right-of-use assets {FRREEEE N 37,909 31,608
Disposals of leasehold lands HEHRE T (16,485) =
Eliminated upon termination of leases THE X IEREUS (1,598) =
Note:  Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion of lease liabilities, short- Htit - 2EEEEHEEEAS R ESS 2 M5 B/
term leases, and payments of lease payments on or before lease commencement HE  URREEF A2 5 s (1e9HE
date (including leasehold lands). These amounts could be presented in operating, H(EREHELH) - ZESEARLL  18E5,
investing or financing cash flows. BEH2REZS -
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

For both years, the Group leases various offices and manufacturing
buildings for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 16 to 48 months. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where its
manufacturing facilities are primarily located and office buildings.
The Group is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presented separately
only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for machinery
and equipment and motor vehicles. As at 31 December 2020 and
2019, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of
short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed
above.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB8,581,000 are recognised with
related right-of-use assets of RMB8,239,000 as at 31 December 2020
(2019: lease liabilities of RMB15,731,000 and related right-of-use
assets of RMB15,187,000). The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Details of right-of-use assets pledged are set out in note 48.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various offices and warehouses under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically
run for an initial period of 2 to 4 years with fixed lease payments.
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19.

R EFET_A=+—HLEFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase
the property at the end of lease term.

19. ®EM*E ()

ZNER (B3 4 IR A R B % P T e S M LR
TTHERERESNEEERE QE’JIJJA“"“
BitE - BHOUTBEFBREBEERE X
AEARBERRBE LS YRR -

RMB'000

AREEFIT
COST 5%
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—HA—H 57,373
Addition B 3,144
Exchange realignment @)‘?f%ﬁé (189)
At 31 December 2019 E-hNE+=—A=+—H 60,328
Addition //J\E 266
Exchange realignment PE 1,297
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-_ZTF+=-_A=+—H 61,891
DEPRECIATION hE
At 1 January 2019 —h&—HA—H 15,046
Provided for the year FARE 2,995
Exchange realignment RS (31)
At 31 December 2019 —hE+=—A=+—8” 18,010
Provided for the year FARE 3,558
Exchange realignment bE X PR 265
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H 21,833
CARRYING VALUES IEE{E
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_TF+=-A=+—H 40,058
At 31 December 2019 —hE+=—A=+—~8” 42318

The fair value of the commercial properties have been determined
by the management of the Group with reference to valuations
carried out by independent professional qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. The valuer has appropriate qualifications
and recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. The valuation for the property were determined
by direct comparison method based on market observable
transactions of similar properties and adjusted to reflect the locations
and conditions of the subject properties.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in the
prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

BRANEATEDAEEEEEKL2E RN
SEYEMENBLEES ERMGEMET
MEEREE - 22 HEMNAGSEER -
ASIBRBRILHELUYRETHE -
WMENBEDREN S LRUDENRIBR
RHERERLBOEEE @ YEIFABUR

PR R W) 3 O 30 B SRR
RIEPTERN ARG EFEARL W | o

REE DL A TES - DENE
PR AE MM -

= RRE
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 19. BEMX (&)
Details of the Group's investment properties and information of the REBEEIR @ REBIREMENFBRATF
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are as BERMNERAT
follows:
0 De D
0 020
[H] 1B =
D00 D00
Commercial property unit located in the PRC iz 7 Fh B 4 7 F ¥ 32 B8 fig 2,295 24,054
Commercial property units located in Germany  {i7 712 B 607 FR 4 3£ B8 i1 37,763 36,032
Level 3

fair value as at
Carrying 31 December

amount 2019
E3R
RZZE—N%F
+=—A=+—8
REE B TFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETFT
Commercial property unit located in the PRC 77 H Bl A 72 FA W) 3£ B8 s 3,815 25,737
Commercial property units located in Germany {17 A 12 B & 75 FA ¥ 5 B2 (i1 38,503 35,092
The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line LR EYE B SEIR A TN EREEERER
basis at the following rates per annum: WE -
Commercial property units located in the PRC 6.33% iz P FR B ) 7 R W 22 BB AL 6.33%
Commercial property units located in Germany 5.60% N EB P R R E L 5.60%
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year. FRIEE AL HEIR -
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20. GOODWILL 20. @&
020 2019
¥4 —T-NF
B’000 RMB'000
oF- ARBTT
COST )5 %
At beginning and end of the year RE) J F 45 49,447 ARV
Goodwill of the Group resulted from the acquisition of the AEEREETIRERBEHFREBET
subsidiaries below in the past few years: MEBAR :
020 2019
= —F-NF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETTT
Auhui Chaowei (as defined in note 54) ZHEREL (E & M5 54) 14,956 14,956
Anhui Yongheng (as defined in note 54) ZRKIE (E& RMIEE54) 9,342 9,342
Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang AL RS K
(as defined in note 54) (FE& RMIEEs54) 576 576
Jiangsu Yongda (as defined in note 54) TLERKE (E& R IEE54) 23,524 23,524
Qinyang Libiao (as defined in note 54) WIS (E& R TEE54) 295 295
Huzhou Changguang Haotian Power Co,, Ltd. N REERERBRAR 754 754
Total ya=t 49,447 49,447

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill set out above has
been allocated to the respective individual Cash Generated Units
("CGUs") representing six acquired subsidiaries that engaged in
manufacturing of motive batteries or accessories of motive batteries.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, management of the
Group determines that there is no impairment on each of these. The
basis of the estimation of the recoverable amount of each of these
CGUs and the major underlying assumptions are summarised below.

SETRENR - LIHBEEOEERERN
RIEBNE BB B EEEN B
WEHBARENNREELBM ([REE
EBA]) RBE_Z_ZEF+_A=1+—
BIEFE  AEEEEEETXSHRLESE
BUEAWERE Gt RFReELEN
& Bk E SR E R T ERBERKREM
o e
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20. GOODWILL (continued) 20. P98 (#)
The recoverable amount each of these CGUs has been determined ZERSEABMNISEMRIKEESRE TSR
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow HEFAHBEMETE - ZETEMNBERK
projections based on financial budgets each of these CGUs approved SEEEREEMEZSReELENSEN
by the management of the Group covering a 5-year period, and MEREECRERAFHR) IEHNESRERE
discount rate of 13% (2019:13%). The CGUs’ cash flows beyond the B MATERARITIRE A 13% (—ZF— NL4F ¢
5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 2% (2019: 2%) growth 13%) ° ZEI & FE 4 B A F AR BRI AR
rate in revenue. The growth rate used is based on management’s EREAIRBTR 2% (ZF—NF : 2%) W
best estimation on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does AEEREE - FIELAMNERENEEEY
not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant MHETEZIERBINREGTAKE - B
industry. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations WABBEEBITEMNTEHARAERR - 518
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include FARABENEMFTFERRBERESEA AL
budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based on each AT (BREEEEEREFR)EYR - B4
of these CGUs' past performance and management's expectations A ENZERSEABNSENBERIER
for the market development. Management believes that any NEEBHMSEEREMNTEN - EIEERE -
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not EMZERRNEEAEEH T ESZFIR
cause the carrying amount of each of these CGUs to exceed the SEABNVSBNROERAIKEESE
aggregate recoverable amount.
21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 1. BERE
Yangzhou Henan
Huaxiang Chaoli
(as defined (as defined
Moll GE SCPS innoteiii) innote 54) Total
mHER AEEh
(E®R (&R
Moll GE SCPs  MHiiii)  PiEs4) #it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETRT
(note i) (note ii) (note ii) (note iii) (note iv)
(D) (BsEa)  (aEn)  (BsE) (&)
COST BE
At 1 January 2019 W-Z-h&E—A—-8 23758 94,776 47435 184199 - 350168
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—RH B A - - - - 32,969 32,969
At31December2019and 2020  WZT-NFR-Z=TF
+-A=+—-H 23,758 94,776 47435 184,199 32,969 383,137
AMORTISATION 1]
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—HA—-H 10,692 14,216 7,115 2399 - 56,019
Provided for the year ERRE 2376 9,478 4,744 18420 3297 38315
At 31 December 2019 R=F-NF+-A=1+—H 13,068 23604 11,859 42416 3297 94334
Provided for the year FERRE 2376 9,477 4,744 18420 6,594 41611
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZEF+-_F=1+—H 15,444 33171 16,603 60,836 9,891 135,945
CARRYING AMOUNT IREE
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZTF+-A=1+—H 8314 61,605 30,832 123,363 23078 247,192
At 31 December 2019 R-E-hF+-F=1+—H 10,690 71,082 35576 141,783 29,672 288,803
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21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's intangible assets
comprise:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the specific technologies and know-how relating to the
production of start-and-stop batteries for automotive
industries and a licence right to use the brand name of MOLL
(as defined in note 23) in the start-and-stop batteries to be
produced by the Group;

the specific technologies and know-how relating to the
battery technology and a licence right to use the patents and
know-how from two independent third parties, Société de
Conseil et de Prospective Scientifique (“SCPS”"), a French
company and GE Technology Development Inc., an American
company, respectively;

the specific technologies and know-how relating to lead-acid
battery recycling and lead production together with a licence
for lead-acid battery recycling and lead production through
acquisition of a subsidiary, namely Yangzhou Huaxiang
Nonferrous Metals Co., Ltd. ("Yangzhou Huaxiang”) in 2017;
and

the specific technologies and know-how relating to the Ni-Zn
battery technology and a licence right to use the patents
through acquisition of a subsidiary in 2019.

The above intangible assets have limit useful lives of 5 to 10 years.
Such intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
useful lives.

21. E|ELEE (I8)
R _EFER T - NFF+_A=+—
B AEBEMNEFEERE

(i)

(ii)

(iff)

(iv)

MEEREENAEEZ AR E M
REEMBZ  ARAEERBELE
RiFEMEAMOLLmERTE(EER
BYRE23) 2 FFaTHE

7 Bl 2R B M % % 3 58 = J5 Société de
Conseil et de Prospective Scientifique
(fscpsl) ( — R = B 2~ & ) RGE
Technology Development Inc. ([GE]) (—
KEB R A]) BB MM R 8 e
MR EFEMZ - ARERAZEERN R
H R ABA AT

(Bl W 8 BR B0t Je A E B O AR R OE X
MkEXNH ERR_F—tFAE
BEE KB AR (BN ERE
ELEARIR(HMNED])) RSH
fe=m U e Bk o R A E SRR AL
K

IREFEMRMARRTERMRER
ME - ARRZZE-NEFRBNE—
KM B A BIBS RO AR B AR R R -

EEPEENAERFHAER  AHsE
105 - ZF B EERERIN A ERFH
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—ECTFE+_A=t—HILFE
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 22. REELRPHER
Details of the Group's investments in joint ventures are as follows: REBREZEDENREFBOT ¢
020 2019
£ —ET-NF
B’000 RMB'000
i AREFTT
Cost of unlisted investments EETIRE IR 184,060 214,060
Share of post-acquisition loss iR EE (36,817) (41,897)
147,243 172,163
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, details of the Group's joint RZE—_EBEFR T AF+_A=+—
ventures are as follows: H AEEHNSELEZFREAT :
Proportion of nominal
Country of value of registered capital and
establishment voting power held by the Group
Name of entity and operation Registered capital as at 31 December Principal activity
R+ZA=t+-0%%E
RUREE isEREsHEER
ERER FEER e PR R ALl IERE
020 2019
g4 —T-NE
% %
Changxing Kewei Venture Capital Investment LLP PRC RMB100,000,000 57 57 Venture capital investment
(‘Changxing Kewe’) E AR 1000000007 BIEESRE
REMBEARRESHEF ((REMF)
Zhejiang Pulangte Electric Vehicle Co, Ltd. PRC RMB150,000,000 48.33 4833 Technical service of new energy
(‘Zhejiang Pulangte’) i AR K 15000000070 vehicles
MIERED ERRAA (DT ERS]) AR R AR
Changshu Huaxing Chuang Yi Technology Co, Ltd. PRC RMB100,000,000 56 5 Manufacture of new energy
BAEREHRERARAR H AR 10000000070 vehicles batteries
SERRRERH
Zhejiang Tulante Energy Storage Technology Co, Ltd. ~ PRC RMB100,000,000 N/A 57 Manufacture of storage batteries
(‘Zhejiang Tulante”) (note) # AR 10000000070 AER HEREEN
MIBRRRERRERRA (DITIERS])
(FitE)
Note:  The Group acquired additional 30% equity interest in Zhejiang Tulante during the it : 7K 5 (B RALE YU B 7T [B] S 4 B 2B S 309 AR A o
year. Upon the completion of the acquisition, Zhejiang Tulante became a subsidiary SERR BB T - T [B] BB 1 5 A A E B BT B A
of the Group, details of which are set out in note 46. 7] BREEE AT 46 -
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22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
The above table lists the joint ventures of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other joint ventures would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group'’s
material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the material joint
venture's financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

22. REELEMER (W)

ERIHEZRAHARBEXENEEES T

TENAEERELX -EERR HE
REEMAZLEENFE  SEEREBAR
TR °

BEDEURERETT ANGEMBHRE -

ERARENERSEEEOMIETHER
FHI T o TSRS R B E A RIRIBE
BRHBREERNRHENERNS LLEN R
RFTREONEE -

Changxing Kewei REBR
020 2019
E S —E-NF
B’000 RMB'000
S AREEFIT
Current assets MBNEE 6,811.00 530.00
Non-current assets EREEE 107,618.00 85,280.00
Current liabilities mENBE 5,600.00 -

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following:

PREENABESREEATIEAR

Cash and cash equivalents HEeRBESEED 6,811 530

020 2019

: —Z—NF

000 RMB'000

i ARBT T

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year — 4F P FI B K2 2 T Uk 25 42 58 23,019 12,399

Dividends received from Changxing Kewei FRUE R EEHR B

during the year - -
The above profit for the year includes the following: At FAFEBEATIER ¢

Interest income B A 37 4

Income tax expense FriS %t 2 3,113 4133
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22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 22, REELENER (E])

Changxing Kewei (continued) REH(#)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the B R E R B B AR AR S B IS S R FTAERR
KRR} = A BRE (B #8R :

carrying amount of the interest in Changxing Kewei recognised in

these consolidated financial statements:

020 2019
- :%—j‘LﬁE
000 RMB'000
2 ARETT
Net assets of Changxing Kewei RERIFMNEEFE 108,829 99,489
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest AEBHRERE
in Changxing Kewei WA R 57% 57%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest &R B A R E R R
in Changxing Keweli R REE 62,033 56,709
Zhejiang Pulangte HMIEBRE
020 2019
: —E-hEF
000 RMB'000
3 ARETT
Current assets mENEE 38,713 115,534
Non-current assets IEMENEE 207,901 208,274
Current liabilities RBE & 228,344 286,211
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: T EENBESERIEATIER
Cash and cash equivalents BHEREEEEY 2,486 3,810
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and mHcmaE(TeREENES
other payables and provisions) R SR R H A JE S SRIB AN ) - 5,000
020 2019
: —E-AF
000 RMB'000
R AR¥ETTT
Revenue A 4,324 62,354
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year 4F (A 538 & 2 [ B 5z 4258 (19,327) (34,204)
Dividends received from Zhejiang Pulangte F UEUHT T & B R AR B
during the year - -
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22. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

22. REELEMER (W)

Zhejiang Pulangte (continued) AL RAYE (48)

The above loss for the year includes the following: L FEANBEBENATIER :

Depreciation and amortisation T E N Y (6,321) (5,742)
Interest income B U A 14 15
Interest expense FEMAZ (3) (161)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in Zhejiang Pulangte recognised in

ERETE AR E S A GRS M B R

AT E AR M RREE LR

these consolidated financial statements:

020 2019
: —E-NF
000 RMB'000
= ARBTT
Net assets of Zhejiang Pulangte AL E AR B EHE 18,270 37,597
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest A& BYE T R
in Zhejiang Pulangte ARG 48.33% 48.33%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest INER B PO E BA BY
in Zhejiang Pulangte =R ERAEE 8,830 18,171
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not EMELAFEXHEELREHER
individually material
020 2019
a :'?E—j‘LE'E
000 RMB'000
2 ARETT
The Group's share of loss and total comprehensive G AZANE B 55 518 &
expense for the year THERAXEE (19,200) (20,454)
020 2019
—T-NF
000 RMB'000
R ARETTT
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests  AEEBRZES SR ER
in these joint ventures et AR EE 425 76,380 97,283
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. REIELXTIHER
020 2019
$4 —T-AEF
B’000 RMB'000
K ARETTT
Cost of unlisted investments REMIRE 2 A 133,875 132,175
Share of post-acquisition loss DLW E R EE (76,615) (41,048)
57,260 91,127
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, details of the Group's material N-EBE—EER _ZE—NE+_B=+—
associates are as follows: B AEBMERBE G ZFBOT ¢
Proportion of nominal value of
Country of registered capital and voting power
incorporation Fully paid-up/ held by the Group as at
Name of entity and operation registered capital 31 December Principal activity
ERRIR BETZAZT-A*KERGER
g1 BEER #R/BfEx REHEERFHRRENLA IERH
020 2019
Z2NE
% %
Akkumulatorenfabrik MOLL GmbH & Co. KG (MOLL) Germany EUR3,966,000 34.46 3446 Manufacture of start-and-stop batteries
Akkumulatorenfabrik MOLL GmbH & Co. KG (TMOLL]) &8 3966000 B0 RENETH
Zhejiang Hongxun Electric Technology Co, Ltd. PRC RMB14,280,000 29.97 2997 Development of energy saving technology
HIERAZNHRARAR hE AR 1428000070 REHRART
Zhejiang Shidarui Electric Vehicle Co, Ltd. PRC RMB86,000,000 3121 3721 Manufacture of electric vehicle
WILERESEARAT hE ARE 860000007 REEYS
The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the FRINNESTR AU AEEXENEERE
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of EHENASEBRERR - EFRE B E
the Group. To give details of other associates would, in the opinion R EME L A RS BeFERRABR
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length. T e
The associates of the Group are accounted for using the equity NER B RO B A R A REREFT AR G B 7
method in these consolidated financial statements. Wk ©
The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's EHASBEEZME S QRN ER
material associates is set out below. The summarised financial FHNLT o THIHBERS B 75 & BHURIBIEE
information below represents amounts shown in the material PR B 765 e o 22 R AR R 0 B8 KB 2 R R B 75
associates' financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs. RFTRHIEEE o
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. REBIEATIHES (8)
MOLL MOLL
020 2019
B 4] —E-NF
B’000 RMB'000
R AREFIT
Current assets MEEE 184,605 129,445
Non-current assets EMBEE 58,066 89,889
Current liabilities mEAaE 229,506 149,222
020 2019
ot 22 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ARETIT
Revenue A 449,754 541,790
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE)FH (56,947) 4,647
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year A2 mE (k) Izx 4258 (56,947) 3,169
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the R RS B 75 BB AR AR A B S R R FTRE R
carrying amount of the interest in MOLL recognised in these B FE 2 ) BRI (B 0B
consolidated financial statements:
020 2019
E_ 24 —E-NF
B’000 RMB’000
R i AREFTT
Net assets of MOLL MOLL K) & =5 & 13,165 70,112
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in MOLL 72 [E{ MOLL &% & #E Lt 51 34.46% 34.46%
Goodwill (note) EEhED) - 8,666
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in MOLL AREE MOLL K5 BR F(E 4,537 32,827
Note: Htat -
As at 31 December 2020, based on the result of the impairment assessment conducted by the REZFE-FFF-HA=+1—H REEFLTHHET
Directors, the impairment of goodwill included in the interests in MOLL has been fully 15#4R  sT AMOLL By as BRI R B fER 2R 15 ©
provided.
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Aggregate information of associates that are not

23. REIELTIES ()
BEmMEEREXRHBELTRHER

individually material

020 2019
- —E-NEF
000 RMB'000
ARETT
The Group's share of loss and total comprehensive — FNANE B {5 EE &

expense for the year ZHEFZ B (7,277) (14413)
020 2019
- —E-NEF
000 RMB'000
ARETT

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's interests 242 B A 5% Bt = A &) AY
in these associates e AREEAREE 52,723 58,300

24. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FVTOCI

The amount represents the Group's equity interests in certain
unlisted entities established in the PRC measured at fair value, details

24 BAFEHFARMZEAKSHES
IR
TRIEAKERAFERE - NP BEKIZA
ETHLMERBAORE FBEHENME

of which are set out in note 52(e). 52(e) °
25. LOAN RECEIVABLES 25. EBIER
Summary of the loan receivables are set out below: JEW E SN T
020 2019
: —E-NF
000 RMB'000
ARET T
Chisen Electric Loan (note a) ERBRER (HizEa) 69,863 69,363
Qinyang loan (note b) s E R (M3EDb) 41,794 56,449
Other loan receivables (note c) E bl E K (KisEc) 7,798 8,169
Less: allowance for credit losses (note a) A EEEEREE (Ea) (42,936) -
76,519 134,481
Analysis for reporting purposes as: BEREZDH
Current assets MENBE 34,725 129,873
Non-current assets EREEE 41,794 4,608
76,519 134,481
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25. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(©

The amounts represent a loan to Chisen Electric Jiangsu Co., Ltd (“Chisen Electric”)
under entrusted loan arrangement through CITIC Trust Co., Ltd. (“CITIC Trust’). The
entrusted loan is secured by property, plant and equipment and inventories held by
Chisen Electric and Chisen Electric Zhejiang Co., Ltd. (“Chisen Zhejiang”, the
immediate holding company of Chisen Electric), 98% equity interest in Chisen Electric
and 100% equity interest in Chisen Zhejiang, and guaranteed by the ultimate
beneficial owner of Chisen Electric, carrying fixed interest rate of 8% per annum, and
was expired in December 2019.

The court is now organising the auction and the Group has priority to have the
proceeds from disposal of the collaterals to settle the outstanding loan receivable.
Based on assessment of the loss given default after considering the estimated realised
amount of ultimate disposal of the collaterals by the management, a loss allowance
of approximately RMB42,936,000 was recognised during the current year.

The amounts as at 31 December 2019 represented a long-term loan to Qinyang City
Construction Investment and Development Co,, Ltd. (“City Construction”), of which
49% share of equity is owned by State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission ("SASAC") of Qinyang City. The loan is unsecured and guaranteed by
Qinyang Qinbei Construction Investment Co., Ltd.,, a company wholly-owned by
SASAC of Qinyang City at a floating rate based on the borrowing rate announced by
the People’s Bank of China, and is repayable on a five-year annual instalment basis
from 2016 to 2020.

During the current year, the Group, City Construction and Henan Yongxu Renewable
Resources Co., Ltd. ("Henan Yongxu’) entered into an agreement, pursuant to which,
Henan Yongxu undertakes the obligation to repay the outstanding loan of
RMB56,449,000 to the Group. Moreover, the Group agreed with the revised repayment
schedule that Henan Yongxu will repay RMB60,000,000 in total no later than 31
December 2025. The difference between the present value of the loan receivable
based on expected repayment term using effective interest method and the
outstanding loan of RMB56,449,000 is accounted for as modification loss and

recorded in “other income and other gains and losses”.

As at 31 December 2020, other loan receivables are unsecured, carrying fixed interest
rate ranging from 6% to 8% per annum and repayable within 12 months.

25, FEUGERR ()

(@)

(b)

©

DEIERBEZE T E A B AT 55T BREL
Ral([HEEE)ETEBERIHAGRA A
([EEEBRI)NEH - ZAEHUEBRETRRE
BYWITIERBMRARI([EBEWT]  BEETRME
BHERARHBHYE  BERZERTE 8
25 B 98% FR1E R B B HT 100% AR HE(EHL A ~ I
HERERHIREEm B AEER - REEF
FilZ 80 5t5 - WERZE—NE+=FFH -

LB IEEHIAE « A% BB ER L &S
AR ET1EHTE + A B R BEERE L - BR
B EAL BRI ERIERA G T2 E
HZ A BTEIE KRB ETE - RAFEER R
#IN B 42,936,000 7T °

R-BE-NFT-A=1+—HN2HEERTVE
THTRERRAEERERAA([Hm2R] A
1% RERNETEFEEEEERZ S & ([0
BETEEZ ) H#E)RRL o BABELAT
OB TR EBRAE COEHEE
Z2BEHEHRE)FER  FlEETBEARR
TTREZBERFIRAE  RoF—NFE=
FE_TF | HFHRFRIESHIER

RAFE - ANEE - i i28 KT KB HEEL
RERA A ([JARKAE ]G tha% - KUt - A
KEBERERNAEEEEREEEAARE
56,449,000 TTHIE AE © WS + R BB FATIEET A
BRI BRI ERKESETER=F
ZAFEFZHA=+—HEEEEZARK60000000
TT o LA ER A BB FI| R 2 e ) TR B SN R A
Y FE W Bk B2 B8 B (42 B AR R 6 56,449,000 7T
ZEREBEAISIERAALR » A [Hitil
AR A hilzs R g8 o

R-ZBE-_TFf+_FH=+—H BEWEKEFSA
R LT FFIE 6% 2 8% 8 R AR 1218
ARAEE -
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26. DEFERRED TAXATION 26. RIERIA
The deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised by the Group and the REBRFABARANELHRBEEZE (BE) X
movements thereon, during the year are as follows: HEEFHMT :
Allowance
for credit Fair value
losses and Deferred  Accrual and Tax adjustment Withholding
inventories income provision losses on assets Tax Others Total
ERERR BHZRER HE
ERER  BERA BiF REBR OTERE R Hfth it

RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB000
ARBTL AREBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR

At T January 2019 R=Z-N&E—A—H 124336 41,948 179802 129,125 (2861) = 1407 473757
Credit (charge) to profit or loss FAME)BE 32,580 (495) (4031) 64448 108 (8250) (1977) 82,383
Creditto other reserve FTAH MR - - - - = - 1879 1879
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB B AR - - - - (1,657) - - (1,657)
At 31 December 2019 R=ZF-hEF
+-F=+-H 156,916 41,453 175,77 193,573 (4,410) (8,250) 1,300 556,362
Credit (charge) to profit or loss FAME)BE 9,936 (2,833) (15,349) (49,870) 381 (2,700) (491) (60,926)
Charge to other reserve MBEMbEE - - - - - - (225) (225)
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries B KB 22 FIES s - - - - - - 3,705 3,705
At 31 December 2020 RZE-TF
+-F=+-8 166,852 38,620 160,422 143,703 (4,029) (10,950) 4,208 498,916
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial AT ARLBA SR B B 1 A IR AT 18 45 55
reporting purposes: DHT
020 2019
= —E-hF
B’000 RMB'000
K # ARETIT
Deferred tax assets BEEFIAE 513,895 569,022
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEBE (14,979) (12,660)
498,916 556,362
Details of the Group’s unused tax losses are as follows: AEBARBANTIEEEFBOT
020 2019
E_24 —E-nF
RMB’000 RMB'000
K # AREETIT
Tax losses already recognised as deferred tax assets B2 R A ELTIBE EH
MIEEE 801,848 1,098,807
Tax losses unrecognised for deferred tax assets EIERTAE ER AR RERTIE
BB 1,695,095 1,057,133
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26. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
The unrecognised tax losses will be expired in the following years:

26. RIERIA ()
AERNRIBAEBENATFERH :

020 2019

: —E-NF

000 RMB'000

i AREFIT

31 December 2020 —E-_FTFE+-_A=+—H - 13,020

31 December 2021 —E_—F+-_A=+—H 41,274 47,978

31 December 2022 —E-_—_F#+-_HA=+—H 154,875 171,258

31 December 2023 —E-_=F+-H=+—H 125,678 125,678

31 December 2024 —E-NE+=-_A=+—H 210,280 210,280

Expire during 31 December 2024 to RZE_WNF+-_A=+—H=ZF

31 December 2030 —E=ZF+ - A=+—HEIH 1,162,988 488919

Total =t 1,695,095 1,057,133
Note:  According to the newly effective announcement published by the PRC tax authority, Bt - IR B B AT LB - A BT

tax losses arising from those entities qualified as New and High Technology Enterprise
can be carried forward for 10 years. Accordingly, the expiry of the tax losses arising
from those subsidiaries qualified as New and High Technology Enterprise is extended

to 10 years.

No deferred tax assets have been recognised in relation to certain
tax losses as shown above due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

The aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
undistributed earnings of PRC subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised was approximately
RMB4,614,102,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB3,548,544,000).
No deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of these
differences because the Group is in a position to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

PR B A% S E R ATE L W R E R A4
H10F - Bt - A SHERLEERLZEM
BRI EERHIRERE B EERE 105 »

AR RBETERIR R A AR - Rttt £
METHEBREDREHARE

FEME AR A ERIECHEEENARD
KA EENBRREERAER S _F
+TZA=T—HBHABARK4614,102,0007C
(ZZT—NF : ARM3548544,0007C) ° H
P 7 52 (B8] ] 22 o) i B 2= A A 3 (o] BRF ) R 7 A
Bk BE=5a s T e Bm - itk
EEREREERIBAE -
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27. INVENTORIES 27. F8®
020 2019
¥4 —T-NF
B’000 RMB'000
R 4 AREETIT
Raw materials [EM# 715,644 317,753
Work in progress & 2,197,313 1,763,193
Finished goods BURY TR 512,113 578,906
3,425,070 2,659,852
28. TRADE RECEIVABLES 28. [EM SRR
020 2019
= —ENF
B’000 RMB'000
R % AREETIT
Trade receivables — contracts with customers FEREB SRR —BPE4 2,433,854 2,253,395
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEE R (495,593) (432,809)
1,938,261 1,820,586
As at 1 January 2019, carrying amount of trade receivables from R-TE—NF—H—HB BFEAHAZEKE
contracts with customers amounted to RMB2,024,755,000 (net of SBEFEREEAS AR 2,024,755000 7T (F1E&
credit loss allowance of RMB285,782,000). EEEIBEE AR 285,782,000 7T) °
The Group generally allows a credit period of 45 days to its trade AEE-—RARFHEHKRITNR ZE et
customers with good trading history, or otherwise sales on cash S HREER - BAHS AR SHET

terms are required.
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28. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 28. B BIRER (#)
The aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for credit R B RE - B EEEREBEEANE
losses presented based on the goods delivery date, which is the WE ZERRH R D TR E B H (B A
same as revenue recognition date, at the end of the reporting period ZHEHE) 258 -
is as follows:
020 2019
z —T-NF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETT
0-45 days 0-45 H 1,196,660 745,712
46-90 days 46-90 H 290,088 423,196
91-180 days 91-180 H 185,085 216,261
181-365 days 181-365 H 195,380 344,693
Over 1 year B 1 F 71,048 90,724
1,938,261 1,820,586
Before accepting any new customer, the Group internally assesses EEMERFEER - AEBEE AT EE
the credit quality of the potential customer and define appropriate ERXFPHEEEZ IETHEANEER
credit limits. Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade B EHERRERENEFREINEEE
receivables. =
Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the years HE T _EFN_E—NFt+_A=F+—
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out in note 52(c). BIEFEME S RKGIER B BT
52(c) °
RECEIVABLES AT FVTOCI 29, MAFERTA K fth 2 E i = ) U

29.

2 EF+_A=+—HIFE

The balance represents bills receivables held by the Group which is
measured at FVTOCI since the bills are held within the business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and the contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Details of pledge of bills receivable for the Group'’s secured bank
borrowings are set out in note 48.

]
BHREAKRERERAFEFARME2EK
ST ENEBREE RARZSRERKES
BRBAEHNRESRERNESREEZTAR
BOEBRATHE  MZAENRASRERE
REERHREEAS RO SR -

MAEBEEMETEENEREEEFE
AN FE48 o
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29.

30.

168

“ECEEA A=+ HLEE

RECEIVABLES AT FVTOCI (continued)

In addition, the Group has discounted certain bills receivables to
banks and transferred certain bills receivables to its suppliers to settle
its payables through endorsing the bills to its suppliers, These bills
are issued or guaranteed by reputable PRC banks with high credit
ratings, therefore the Directors consider the substantial risks in
relation to these bills is interest risk as the credit risk arising from
these bills is minimal. Upon the discount/endorsement of these bills,
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks (i.e. interest risks)
of these bills to relevant banks/suppliers, therefore Group has
derecognised these bills receivables.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure to loss
and cash outflow, which is same as the amount payable by the
Group to collecting banks or the suppliers in respect of the bank
issued bills discounted and bank issued bills endorsed, should the
issuing banks fail to settle the bills on maturity date, of which
amounted to RMB723,271,000 and RMB194,690,000 (2019:
RMB719,120,000 and RMB191,727,000), respectively. All the bills
receivables discounted to banks or endorsed to suppliers of the
Group have a maturity date of less than one year from the end of the
reporting period.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

An analysis of prepayments and other receivables is as follows:

29.

30.

BRoFEFARME N EA EL
BIF (#)

BEAN - REEE FRITRIRE TRERER
BRAEAHERSERRRNEHEREERS
TREZBASNEENTE - ZEFRER
BERULARGEENRZPERITETX
iR BEERKEAREZBNAIOE
RANEER ERERBEELNEERR
iR - RZERBREBE% - AREE
SR EABARD Bk (AIAERER) 8
TR HER A AEED KL
BRZSEERRE -

RZBE_EF+_A=+—8 - IHEZERT
REEZN A REBEERE - NEBAXZE
BRBESRENERNBEZERNAER RIRTT
BITHE M RE B EXNEIREEE R BGR
RITIHEBENTERIBNEEARK
723,271,000 7 & A R #194,690,0007C ( = &
— & AR #7191200007 & A R #
191,727,0007T) ° R¥IEHR - AEEFAAELE
ARG IRITHEEE THENNEKRSER 2
EEIE DR —F -

TR 7 3R IR B 3Lt FE U R IR
BN RE R ERRB DT T :

020 2019

—E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

K AREETIT

Other receivables H b fE U k18 755,981 635,182
Less: allowance for credit losses B S EE R (69,113) (50,639)
686,868 584,543

Prepayments to suppliers T FE R A SRIE 663,924 836,278
1,350,792 1,420,821
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30. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 30. FAFTRRIA R H it FE U R IR (#8)
(continued)
An analysis of other receivables is as follows: Hith B KIBAITLAT -
020 2019
L5 —E-NF
B’000 RMB'000
i AREEFIT
Value-added tax recoverable AJ Y [B] 352 (8 5 385,497 359,279
Interest receivable FE USRI B, 3,987 5,462
Prepayments to employees m{E BB 7R 68,283 37,061
Prepaid service fee TEfTBRTS & 51,100 31,626
Deposits for borrowings (note i) fEskiE® (FI=ED) 79,986 55,962
Other deposits HEMize 55,876 46,018
Amount due from a former associate (note i) FEUT —ZR A B = A B ZIE (FfEE i) 13,200 13,200
Others Hit 98,052 86,574
755,981 635,182
Notes: Bt -
() The amount represents the deposits placed in the independent financial institutions () SRR IR B S IENIZES - BBBEYE
to secure borrowings from these financial institutions. HBEIRREEEER -
(ii) The amount is secured by the former associate’s property, plant and equipment, (ii) TR E R RIRI Y3 - BB RBZEEERA -
interest-free and repayable on demand. BB RBEERERE -
Analysed for financial reporting purposes: R BHRE BRI
020 2019
=4 —ZE—NF
B’000 RMB'000
i AREEFIT
Non-current JEBNER 48,090 65,795
Current BN EA 1,302,702 1,355,026
1,350,792 1,420,821
Details of impairment assessment of other receivables for the years FRBEZE_T_TFR-_F-—NF+=A
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out in note 52(c). =+ —BIEFEHEMRBKKIEZ RET G2
FIBE M EE52(0) ©
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31.

32.

170
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH . BAFEFARZHEMEE
PROFIT OR LOSS
020 2019
— &
B’000 RMB'000
X ARETFT
Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL: BHIE AT ET AR ER
SREE :
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong HEEE F TR IRAE 178,988 151,779
Equity securities listed in the Mainland of China TR B P9 3 T A AR R 96,135 -
275,123 151,779

The listed equity securities are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis, details of which are set out in note 52(e).

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Restricted bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to banks to secure certain facilities granted to the Group by
banks.

The restricted bank deposits carry market interest rate of 0.30% per
annum to 3.50% per annum (2019: 0.30% per annum to 1.65% per
annum) as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, bank balances and cash comprise cash and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less
which are held with banks and carry interest at prevailing market
rate arranging from 0.30% per annum to 1.80% per annum (2019:
0.30% per annum to 1.35% per annum).

Most of the Group's bank balances and cash and restricted bank
deposits are denominated in RMB which is not freely convertible
currency in the international market. The exchange of RMB is
determined by the Government of the PRC and the remittance of
these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restriction
imposed by the Government of the PRC.
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ZRFARTERRBITERRRAS
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& o

R-TE-_ZTF+-A=+—H  IRHIRT
73R ™5 F R &4 030% 2 &4 3.50% (=
T—NE : BFE00NEEFE165%) 5T 8 °

R=FE-_ZTF+_A=+—8  BI&EHK
BemRe KRB AE=EAKARNRE
B RAER - ETFE RN RTT - R E R
MBFEFF030%ZEFF180%(=ZF—N
F: BFO30UEFF135%) 58 °

REDAEENRITEHR LIRS - ARER
HIRITEREBAARKEE MARER
AAITRERTIS EE M A RHEE - Hik
BHTBERNEE  MEEHESERPEA
X BIBUT E 0 INERR I AT AR €8 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A\

W\

33. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade
purchases and ongoing costs. The Group normally settles its trade
payables within 30 days (2019: 30 days) from the goods receipt date.

34.

The aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the goods

Ry %5 i 2 P9 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-BF+-A=+—ALFE

33. EFRBBHERM
BB SERTEBERTOT S ERRE
ERA o NEE RN RIS BER308 (=
T—NE:308) NEEENEIER -

RS BERE - BNESRFIZWEAH

receipt date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: RBRE AT ¢
020 2019
q —ZE-NF
000 RMB'000
i AREFTT
0-30 days 0-30 H 1,400,763 1,324,838
31-90 days 31-90 H 779,650 432,133
91-180 days 91-180 H 148,183 246,518
181-365 days 181-365 H 79,844 151,117
1-2 years 124 119,168 166,620
Over 2 years H0F 106,293 25,570
2,633,901 2,346,796

BILLS PAYABLE 34. BRI

The aged analysis of bills payable presented based on the issue date

R E RN - BANRERIZE L BNk

at the end of the reporting period is as follows: O
020 2019
: —E-NF
000 RMB'000
3 AREEFIT
0-90 days 0-90 H 172,135 535,529
91-180 days 91-180 H 1,103,325 748,310
181-360 days 181-360 H 102,018 143,718
1,377,478 1,427,557

All the bills payable are of trading nature and will mature within one
year from the issue date.

FRERNZEHBI ZMHEE L KNG AR
R —F R -
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35. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
An analysis of other payables is as follows:

35.

HttEFRERENER
E AR HE AT ¢

020 2019
g —E-hNEF
000 RMB'000
£ ARETTT
Accrued payroll and welfare et & ME T 181,591 187,028
Other tax payables HibESFiE 495,198 266,322
Interest payable FERTFILE 29,336 38,526
Deposits received from distributors and others e s K B At 5 U EY Y
(note) e (FeE) 307,043 312,59
Accrued commission FEFT RS 88,104 113,569
Accrued transportation cost JFEFT 3B AR 61,362 58,074
Accrued utilities JEEtKEE 49,678 69,157
Accrued other expenses JE ST EL Ath 5 2 297,046 240,824
Other Hith 7,106 24,263
1,516,464 1,310,359
Note:  The amounts mainly represented the deposits from distributors to guarantee their Hiit - BT EEKREDEENRS  EEEREER
credit limits granted by the Group and their service quality. EFRHAEEREREREEZE -
36. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 36. AHIAR
R At
De b 31 December
020 2019
R-E_E4 RZZE—NF
i M+ —A=+—H
000 RMB'000
2 AREFT
Current; BNHR -
lead-acid motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries SR E) B SEBEFEM K
and other related products Hib A E m 182,463 680,331
Revenue of RMB680,331,000 (2019: RMB511,537,000) recognised in AN E R H U A A R #680,331,000 7T (=
the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities, which T—NF: ARM511,5370007T) B E&EEE
was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the WEERE  sTAFTENEESER - BIE
year. No revenue recognised in the current year relates to REEHRANPAEBEREDENNED
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior periods. TR -
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36. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 36. EHAME(1H)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract HEZANANABESHEAEYEN MR F
liabilities recognised are as follow: AR
lead-acid motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries and SEFHHEDL BMFELRHEMMAER
other related products Ea
The Group sells lead-acid motive batteries, lithium-ion batteries and AEERFFIHEMBRE TN BB TS
other related products to customers. The Group generally allows a R EMBAESR o NEBR—MRMAIZR FCEE
credit period of 45 days to its trade customers with good trading RIFNR GEFIRME4s BNEEE - B84
history, or otherwise sales on cash terms are required. In addition, EPIIRESETT o I REBRERE TE
the Group may require certain customers to pay deposits in advance PIREI MRS MR R BRI E & RS
and to fully settle the remaining balance before or upon delivery. B&s%  c EEEEHIENER - g
Contract liabilities will be recognised as revenue until control of the ME X NERFHIETHE (X&) 2R &
goods has transferred, being when the goods have been delivered NBESWERASINES -
to the customers’ specific locations (delivery).
37. WARRANTY PROVISION 37. REEME
020 2019
—T-NF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARBETIT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: AERANIN A 484,240 494,402
020 2019
= 4 :%—ﬂﬁz
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ARBFIT
At beginning of year REA) 494,402 535,253
Provision for the year FNEE 533,475 620,652
Utilisation of provision A (543,637) (661,503)
Atend of year RER 484,240 494,402

The warranty provision represents management's best estimate of
the Group’s liability within fifteen months’ warranty granted on
motive battery products, based on prior experience for defective
products.

FRERBEENBTRARER  ~AKEEXE
BHE) N EME m et + AE A REPIAIE
REM&EMR -
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38. LEASE LIABILITIES 38. HEAIR
020 2019
T_E5 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
W ARETTT
Within one year —FER 4,118 5,991
More than one year but not exceeding two years B — FENE AR F 4,463 3,900
More than two years but not exceeding five years  #RiB M B NHBiBH E - 4,129
Within a period of more than five years B3R T HAR - 1,711
8,581 15,731
Less: Amount due for settlement within one year )il : BR—FERE R 25R
and shown under current liabilities mENE BRI FIE (4,118) (5,991)
Amount due after one year —FiR e 4,463 9,740
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease T E B EFTIE R IIE T 1E 2 SRR
liabilities ranging from 5.66% to 5.93% (2019: from 5.66% to 6.12%). NF566% 2 593%(ZF—NF : NTF566%
Z6.12%) °
39. BORROWINGS 39. &8
020 2019
=4 —ET-NF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETFT
Secured borrowings (note ) BIEBEE (MizE) 4,298,476 1,634,033
Unsecured borrowings EIEREE 1,992,056 2,456,567
6,290,532 4,090,600
The borrowings are repayable as follows (noteii): ~ ZBRA TN FHEENEES
(B3E) -
Within one year —&ER 4,848,346 2,512,185
More than one year but not exceeding two years ~ — LA BT HRBMRE 807,080 830,529
More than two years but not exceeding five years ~ LA BT HBB R E 635,106 747,886
6,290,532 4,090,600
Less: Amount due for settlement within one year & : B —FREZEL 25|
and shown under current liabilities (note iii) MENE BRI IR
(P 2 i) (4,907,346) (2,571,185)
Amount due after one year —F1& B Hry I8 1,383,186 1,519,415
Total borrowings wEE
— at fixed rates — TR 4,957,932 2,404,154
— at floating rates — 28 1,332,600 1,686,446
6,290,532 4,090,600
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BHE

39.

40.

—ERFEF+_A=t+—HILFE

BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(i) Included in total amount of secured borrowings, the Group’s bank borrowings of
RMB96,000,000 are also guaranteed by the non-controlling shareholders of the
subsidiaries of the Company.

(ii) The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements.

(iii) As at 31 December 2020, borrowings of RMB59,000,000 contain a repayment on

demand clause and therefore are presented as current liabilities.

Fixed interest rate borrowings were charged at the rates ranging
from 1.88% to 6.52% per annum (2019: from 1.98% to 7.88% per
annum) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Interest on RMB borrowings at floating rates is calculated based on
the borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank of China.
Interest on HKD borrowings at floating rates is charged at 2.75% over
3 months Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate. Floating interest rate
borrowings were charged at the rates ranging from 4.05% to 7.00%
per annum (2019: from 4.05% to 5.79% per annum) for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Details of pledge of assets for the Group’s secured bank borrowings
are set out in note 48.

MEDIUM-TERM NOTE

On 16 October 2017, the Group issued an unsecured three-year
medium-term note in the PRC with a principal amount of
RMB700,000,000. The coupon rate of the medium-term note is 7.00%
per annum and the effective interest rate is 7.34% per annum.

As at 31 December 2019, an aggregate amount of arrangement fee
totaling RMB1,525,000 was included in the balance of medium-term
note, and has been released to profit or loss as finance costs using
the effective interest method over the current year. The Group has
repaid in full in October 2020.

39.

40.

a8 (1)

HiaE -
() KE BT A B 15 B4R SRR A B B 96,000,000 7T
RITIEE IR AR EIf1/8 2 71,2 FEFERR AR RAELR -

(i) B2 E K s )T E K H R

RZFZFFF+=ZH=+—H ' AR 59000000
TCHIE A I IEEKEEZ M5 - B 25 A7
BELE -

(i)

BE_Z_ZHF+_A=+—BItFEE ¥
BREERNTF188%E652%(ZFE— N5 :
FE RN TF 1.08% 2 7.88%) U FE R KET B o

ZEAREEENF BRTEARRITAM
MEEFRTE - ZEBITEENF B3
BERAEBRITRAEREMN275%E - HE
—E-TFEA+-A=+—HILFEE FAME
BN F405%E700% (= — N F : €7
RNTF405% F 5.79%) BEF| LB -

AEEEKIBRTEENEEBRBABIRN
B 48 o

hRARE
R_ZF—tF+ A+ AEBEEHEE
1T % B8 5 A R 700,000,000 7T HY K =
FHRHZE - HEENZAN X ATF
7.00% @ MERFEBTF734% °

MN-ZT-AFE+-A=1+—8 HHEEFE
BEEA L AR 1525000t 2 ZHEE &
B UERAFERABERFEEL  EAm
BRATTAEZ - AEBER-_ZT_TF+
AREER -
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41. CORPORATE BOND 4. RRREH
On 14 August 2014, the Group issued a six-year term corporate bond RZZE—WNFENA+UH @ KEERF 2
(the “Corporate Bond") in the PRC with a principal amount of 1T & %8 A AR ¥ 600,000,000 7T 2 75 FEAD
RMB600,000,000. The coupon rate of the Corporate Bond is 7.98% #¥E5(EEER])  CEBEFE-FNE
per annum for the first three years up to 13 August 2017. At the end BA798% AT —tFN\A+=HIik-
of the third year, on 13 August 2017, the bonds holders have a right RE=FK R=-ZE—+EN\A+=H &
to redeem all or part of the Corporate Bond at its face value and the SEEANEHEZAEERN DN DL EERE
Group has a right to adjust upward the interest rate of the Corporate I MASEARELLHCERSHOFE - A
Bond from a range of 1-100 basis points (both fingers inclusive). The NFI-10E2 (BREERET) BR - XA
Company has provided an irrevocable guarantee on the entire AIEBLEEE %Z’I\ Bﬁﬁgﬁ&ﬂ SRMHET
principal amount and interest of the Corporate Bond. On 13 August AMEZER RZE—EFNA+=H"
2017, the Corporate Bond holders have decided to redeem part of PEESEFEARTANEEBR RO D
the Corporate Bond from the Group amounting to RMB182,196,000. % BEIARK 182,196,000 7T ° i%{i%
The remaining portion of the Corporate Bond keeps at the same Hepn#EHERFNX  AEBERR T
interest rate. The Group has repaid the remaining portion in full on ZEFENAT=BREEMNBFETIHD -
13 August 2020.
As at 31 December 2019, an aggregate amount of arrangement fee RZZE-—NFTZA=1T—H ' tXEEHE
totaling RMB812,000 was included in the balance of corporate bond, BEIEA L AREKS12000 T2 ZHEBERE
and has been released to profit or loss as finance costs using the WERAFERBERNRZL  (EAREK
effective interest method over the current year. At Atz o
42. DEFERRED INCOME 42, RFEENTA
Government
grants
BT B
RMB'000
ARETTT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-—hF—H—H 284,224
Additions NE 32,842
Released to income (note 7) af)\uﬁl)\ (Fg5E7) (37,569)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—H 279,497
Additions =T 32,107
Released to income (note 7) AU (FF5E7) (45,396)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+-A=+—H 266,208

Deferred income arising from government grants represents the
government subsidies obtained in relation to the acquisition of land
use right or equipment of certain subsidiaries of the Company,
which were included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as deferred income and credited to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term of the land use right or the
useful life of relevant equipment.

176

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /  Annual Report 2020

K B R AT FE B IR FE A FE LR IE A R B
THEQ Tﬁﬁiimfi)ﬂﬁé& RS ER
FRRB) - RERE MBI R AR R EE R
A WIABERER T8 4 2 78 B3 A8 RE
AR A0 A {5 A A BART A 388 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40 A\ g

im O J7 15 i = P 51

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-—T-_TF I -—A=t—RAIFE

—= =

43. SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the Company’s share capital are as follows:

43.

Bz %
RRRWPBEAFELT

Number of shares Shares capital

v g Az | %S
Usb'o00
FET
Authorised: ERE *
Ordinary shares of USD0.01 each Fh2001 ETHE B
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 F:%—ni A—H-
and 2020 —hWER-ZZE_TF
+—)E] =+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRMARE :
Ordinary shares of USD0.01 each %001 E TR LB
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H 1,107,911,979 11,079
Shares repurchased and cancelled FREEE R ER D
during the year (3,785,000) (38)
At 31 December 2019 and 2020 RIE—NER T -TF
+=ZA=+—8H 1,104,126,979 11,041
RMB'000
ARETFT
Presented at 31 December 2019 and 2020 RZB-NER_Z_TF+_A=+—HMZ7| 74,704

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company RARARBE_ZTE-—NFTA=T—HIF
repurchased its own ordinary shares through The Stock Exchange of ERNBBESHERSMERARERER
Hong Kong Limited as follows: BT mRmAT
No. of ordinary shares Aggregate
Month of repurchase of USD0.01 each Price per share consideration paid
FBE A 7 B 0.01 XL EEREE BEREE BRE#E
Highest Lowest
=i RIE
HKD HKD HKD'000 RMB'000
PBIT BIT FAET ARETT
January 3,750,000 3.05 273 10,803 9,231
—A
February 35,000 3.05 3.03 106 90
—A
The above ordinary shares were cancelled on 5 June 2019. Lt EBERER - NFAARAEHE-
None of the Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed BMEARTZMBARINAFEERE - HE
any of the Company’s listed securities during the current year. gl & LTI ANA A _E TR 5
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 44, LR SERHARRE S
The Company's share option scheme (“the Scheme”) was adopted RRARW AT (T2 8 ) RS - =
for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and ZEMARNEENEERESIREEE R
eligible employees. Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the BiZta ARRESENREEREE (R
Company may grant options to eligible employees, including EARNRNRENBARINES )R L ERRE -
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares LARIEARRARIIR ©

in the Company.

The share options granted shall vest in accordance with the L ERERRETIRRREE %8
timetable below, each with an exercise period commencing from T FESAEEEEBERHERFREHE(=
the relevant vesting date and ending with eight years after the date Z—NENWAMA: - —E—N\F+_H
of grant (4 April 2018, 21 December 2018 and 25 March 2019): —t+—HE-_ZE-AFE=A-t+HH)EN
Fik
(1) 32,500,000 share options granted on 4 April 2018 (“April 2018 N NRZE-—"NFHNAEAEEH
share options”): 32,500,000 BE R #E ([ —ZF — N\ F 1 A
FERRRE]) -
@  10% of the total number of the share options granted @ FTEREEREEEN10%ER
shall vest on 4 April 2018 T \FHAMABHB
(b)  20% of the total number of the share options granted (b) AT B R EA 20% 1§ =
shall vest on 4 April 2019 T-NFHEAMBHS
(©  70% of the total number of the share options granted © FTIEREEREEERN70% R =
shall vest on 4 April 2020 TTFNANAEE
(2) 35,750,000 share options granted on 21 December 2018 Q RZE-—NE+—A=-+—HELHH
("December 2018 share options”) 35,750,000 ERE ([ = —N\F+=
R
@@  10% of the total number of the share options granted @ FIRLEREAHEMI0%ER=
shall vest on 21 December 2018 T-NFE+ZA=+—HEB
(b)  20% of the total number of the share options granted (b) PR EREREE 20% 8K =
shall vest on 21 December 2019 E-NFT+ZAZ+—HEE
(©  70% of the total number of the share options granted © FIRLEREBEN70%ER=
shall vest on 21 December 2020 ToEFF_A=+—HEB
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 44, LRI EERONRES ()

(continued)
() 30,650,000 share options granted on 25 March 2019 (“March B RZE—AF=A-+HRBEEEH
2019 share options”): 30,650,000 fERE( = —NF = A
AERRHE D) -
@  10% of the total number of the share options granted @ FTEEEREEEN10%ER

shall vest on 25 March 2019 E-NF=A-_+HHEE

(b)  20% of the total number of the share options granted (b) FTi% ARS8 20% A5 R =
shall vest on 25 March 2020 TR F=-A-1+HBEHB
(©  70% of the total number of the share options granted © FTEEEREEERN70% R =

shall vest on 25 March 2021 T-—F=A-1+HAEB

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TREFEREEHAEENFRMFAR A ER
options held by employees and Directors during the year: WEZ B

April 2018 share options T\ ARERE 32,500,000 - (29,000,000 - - 3,500,000
December 2018 share options “E-\ET-AERE 35,750,000 - - - - 35,750,000
March 2019 share options “E-NE-RERE 30,650,000 - - - - 30,650,000
98,900,000 - (29,000,000 - - 69,900,000

Held by: BUALEE
Directors % 7,400,000 - - - - 7,400,000
Employees k& 91,500,000 - (29,000,000) - - 62,500,000
Bxercisable at theend of theyear — ATRERTTIE 48,445,000

Weighted average exercise price ~ TETIS7TRE
(HKD) (BT 3507 - 4332 - - 3164

Note:  During the current year, 29,000,000 share options granted on 4 April 2018 was
cancelled by the Company and the Company accounted for the cancellation as an
acceleration of vesting in accordance with IFRS 2.

HiaE : REFEA - ARABOER=F—/NFMA A A
29,000,000 (HFERRHE + A A2 AR IR EIBR BT 7 3R
EERZE 2 RS HUHA R BINRER I -
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44. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

44. LIBMBERHMARES ()

(continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TEREBEEREEHESENEFAFZFARRAFERK
options held by employees and Directors during the prior year: FE 7 B
QOutstanding at Granted Exercised Forfeited Bxpired  Qutstanding at
1 January during during during during 31 December
2019 the year the year the year the year 2019
RIE-NE RZE-NF
—-A-H +-A=1-H
RAITE ERgi ERfTR ERgl ERIE RATTHE
April 2018 share options —E-\EQAERE 32500000 - - - - 32500000
Decernber 2018 share options -\ RERE 35,750,000 = = = = 35,750,000
March 2019 share options “E-NE-AERE - 30,650,000 - - - 30,650,000
68250000 30650000 - - - 98900000
Held by: BAATHE
Directors B 6,250,000 1,150,000 - - - 7,400,000
Employees 8 62,000,000 29,500,000 - - - 91,500,000
Bxercisableattheendof theyear — ATRAERAT(E 23,540,000
Weighted average exerciseprice~~ AMETITEE
(HKD) (BT 369 309 - - - 3507

R-ZFE—N\FWAWMAH - —FT—\F+_A
Z+—HEZE-NAF=ZAZTHABELN
BB IE 2 (At A ES B A AR 41,230,000
JT ~ AR #32669,0007T & A K ¥ 25,135,000
T ZEANFENER _BARAGTE - Z
BEAREAZBENT -

The estimated fair values of the options granted on 4 April 2018, 21
December 2018 and 25 March 2019 are RMB41,230,000,
RMB32,669,000 and RMB25,135,000, respectively. These fair values
were calculated using the Binomial Model. The inputs into the model
were as follows:

4 April 21 December 25 March

2018 2018 2019

ZE-N\F —B-N\F “B-hEF

mMAmMA +=A=+—H =B=+AH

Grant date share price B EIRR(E HKD4.183 HKD3.05 HKD3.09
418348 7T 3.05% 7T 3.09% 7T

Exercise price TEE HKD4.332 HKD3.114 HKD3.09
433287T 31148 7T 3.0978 7T

Expected life TEHAFHA 8 years 8 years 8 years
8% 84 84

Expected volatility TEER R 1R 47.5% 45.8% 456%
Dividend yield SRS 1.8% 1.7% 1.7%
Risk-free interest rate 42 [ [ Kl & 1.84% 2.00% 1.50%
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44,

45.

—ECEFF_A=t+—HILFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Volatility was estimated on the share price movement of the
Company for an observation period that match with the life of the
share option. Dividend yield is based on management estimate at
the valuation date. Risk-free interest rate was estimated based on the
yield of the Hong Kong Government Bonds with a maturity life
closest to the life to expiration, as of the option grant date.

The Group recognised the total expense of RMB28,473,000 (2019:
RMB54,896,000), which included the expense in relation to the
cancellation of share options of RMB4,080,000 (2019: RMB Nil) for the
current year in relation to share options granted by the Company.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest ultimately. The
impact of the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
and loss, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS
The employees of the Company's PRC subsidiaries are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their employees’ payroll to the
retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme which are
calculated based on specified percentage of the employee’s basic
salaries during the year.

In accordance with the relevant mandatory provident fund laws and
regulations of Hong Kong, the Group operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong Kong
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those
of the Group and under the control of an independent MPF service
provider. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group in
respect of the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss for both years, which
represent contributions payable to these plans by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the plans, are set out in note 11.

44,

45.

LIRgfn B B RER TR 5 (1)

IR TIAR IR AN A BB 1 B RS AR 4F HAAR AT
MBIR IR S G5 o BB WS RIIR
BREEENEER MG - BERFETD
RIBRERER LD B AR BMFRRE LD
FHNBBBRTESFNRE R MGG o

ANEBGE AR T L A B IR R 5
S EEE AR 28473000 (ZE—AE - A
R 54,896,0007T) « BIEEHEBRERSZA
R#4,080000c(ZZF—NF : ARKEEL) ©

REREMR > AEEEFTEBHZAKET
FENBRERE NG - BRIAHTE
(E) RIBEAFER - WA AR B
o

R AR FIRT BV BERR
ARARTEMBARNES STHEBRMEE
REBNBZRABHNEHKE - AAF
TFEMEARARERFEE T ADLAZ
RARRMFEHFMERBNESR - AKE
R RE G Bl R M — R RRIBZAT EIE
HATBHER - (A NIREEFAEARFTEH
REBDHLEE

AEBERBEBOBFLRBIERER A K
BBl RIAGEBRNEBRERERL —HR
HHEATEEF B ([RERFTE)) - FrEIEE
HEASEEENRIEA YHBYRESR
BHERERE - REBESHENRY - B
T RERERBARRUEER L R RAZE
R - AREH BB ENE—RER
RIR&ETEIE L PR R SR -

RAEFEEaERNART (AEE K
ST EIFRFIRT A B b 3R B 5z E 5t 21 A (30
BAMIEE ©
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46. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

46. WR—XRHBLF

182

Acquisition in 2020

Zhejiang Tulante was established by the Group and a third party in
December 2017, the Group held 57% equity interest in Zhejiang
Tulante and accounted for as interest in a joint venture. In August
2020, the Group acquired additional 30% equity interests in Zhejiang
Tulante from the then joint venture partner for a consideration of
RMBS5,000,000. Upon the completion of the acquisition, Zhejiang
Tulante became a subsidiary of the Group. Zhejiang Tulante is
principally engaged in the storage batteries manufacturing and was
acquired so as to continue the expansion of the Group'’s principal
business. The acquisition has been accounted for as acquisition of
business using the acquisition method.

Fair value of assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition
are as follows:

—E_EFE

MIEFEERAEER —BE=FR_%
—tF+ AR - AEEF BN TIERE
HI57% %M - WIEAR —REE D ENER
AR -RZZE_ZTFN\A  AEEREFH
B LB UEENT B BR8N 30% AR AE
RIB A AR 50000007T ° FERUREER @ T
TERERAAEENHEB AR T EF
BEBREREMEEED - B HUREE A
BRERASENEBER - WEDHERAKE
EERZESIRIBAGR -

RBERRBANEEREEN A FEN
T

RMB'000

ARETIT

Property, plant and equipment VI - BB &R 14,435
Deferred tax assets RETRIEE = 3,705
Inventories FE 1,990
Other receivables H th fE W IR 827
Bank balance and cash RITHEBRIRS 850
Trade and other payables FEAST B 5 BR 5% I EAth FE - 5RIE (5,140)
16,667

The fair value of other receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to RMB827,000, which is equivalent to the gross
contractual amounts of those other receivables acquired at the date
of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected amounted to
nil.

RUREEBE - HEWGENAFEAEAR
#5827,000 7T + 0 E 7 15 U B Y E b B WK
ERIREE BN REHe5E - RIEEHEET
BHKEHEHORERENREHEAS

Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEFTELBE
RMB'000
ARETTT
Consideration transferred FEs B 5,000
Plus: fair value of previously held equity interest in the acquire 1l : JATERF B W ULES H S A T E 9,500
Plus: non-controlling interest N SEERRE R 2,167
Less: net assets acquired B P & R E (16,667)

Goodwill arising on acquisition

WHEFTEAmE _

The acquisition-related costs are not material and have been
recognised in profit or loss.
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46.

—E-PETA=t-HLEE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

46. WiE—RME 2T (#8)

Net cash inflows arising on acquisition WEERESENBR KRN RE
RMB'000
AREFTT
Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired FTiiEiR € RIS B 850
Less: Cash consideration paid (note) W BRESRE () =
850

Note:

The consideration of RMB5,000,000 has been settled by offset the Group’s amount due from

the then joint venture partner, which was recorded in ‘prepayments and other receivables’.

Included in the profit for the year is RMB572,000 attributable to the
additional business generated by Zhejiang Tulante, and revenue for
the year includes RMB787,000 generated from Zhejiang Tulante.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2020, revenue for
the year of the Group would have been RMB27,306,825,000, and
profit for the year of the Group would have been RMB721,694,000.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2020, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

Hrat -

1B A B # 5,000,000 7T B 8 38 1 35 7K 5% B jE W R AF By &
EBHFBIAE AT + ZAHBELA [FBITHERE M E
Wk E ] -

FERFEEFENT B S E LRI ETS G
AR #5720007C © FRUWABIENTERS
A AR 787,000 7T ©

W ER—_E—EF— A —HEK ' ~5E
FRUA R A A REE 27306825000 7T * AL
B AFEAK e A AR 721,694,000 7T °
HBEERHEEGRBPAR  WIENERRES
T _TF—F—HEKZRENERLTASE
ErERHNERIRARCEELS  NEEE
TERIR R LS ©
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“ECEEA A=+ HLEE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
Acquisition in 2019

In June 2019, the Group acquired 60% equity interests in Henan
Chaoli (as defined in note 54) from an independent third party for a
consideration of RMB18,000,000. Henan Chaoli is principally engaged
in the batteries manufacturing and was acquired so as to continue
the expansion of the Group’s principal business. This acquisition of
business has been accounted for using the purchase method.

Fair value of assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition
are as follows:

46. WiE— KB 2T (#8)

ZE-hFE

RZZFB—NFARA AEER—EZBILE=
T3 U BB AT R R 77 (B 3% R BT 5% 54) 609 A% A4 -
REAARY180000007T ° AIFEBHTE
HEEESM - WERKBLEERR RS
ErEBER o X EFUE TR AU
ABR ©

REEEREANEERABN R FEN
T

RMB'000
ARETT
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - B K& 2,997
Intangible assets EAE 32,969
Inventories FE 1,558
Other receivables H At IR FRIE 4,936
Bank balance and cash RITAESR LR 821
Other payables H{th fE {3008 (624)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (11,000)
Deferred tax liability RIERIBAE (1,657)
30,000

The fair value of other receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to RMB4,936,000. The gross contractual amounts of those
trade and other receivables acquired amounted to RMB4,936,000 at
the date of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected amounted to
nil.
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REE B - EMEKZFENATFEEAR
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46.

47.

2 EF+_A=+—HIFE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
Acquisition in 2019 (continued)

46.

W Rl — R BB 2 7 (#8)
—E-NFRUE ()

Goodwill arising on acquisition: WBFTELRE
RMB'000
AREFTT
Consideration transferred FrigE (8 18,000
Plus: non-controlling interest n o e 12,000
Less: net assets acquired B P B R E (30,000)

WREFTE M E

Goodwill arising on acquisition

The acquisition-related costs are not material and have been
recognised in profit or loss.

WHBRRAR AL NEX - BEREEPHER °

Net cash inflows arising on acquisition WEEFTELWE S RAFE
RMB'000
ARBT T
Consideration paid BERE (18,000)
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired  Jg : FTUREEIR & RIR & S B Y44 821
(17,179)

Included in the profit for the year is RMB286,000 attributable to the
additional business generated by Henan Chaoli, and revenue for the
year includes RMB2,765,000 generated from Henan Chaoli.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019, revenue for
the year of the Group would have been RMB27,183,732,000, and
profit for the year of the Group would have been RMB506,936,000.
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2019, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the current year, the Group disposed 80%, 100% and 100%
equity interests in three of its subsidiaries, namely Guangxi Chaowei
Tici Renewable resources Ltd. (“Guangxi Tici"), Yichun Weishang PV
Power Co., Ltd. ("Yichun Weishang") and Chizhou Chaowei Power
Co., Ltd. ("Chizhou Power”) to independent third parties for cash
consideration of RMB3,672,000, RMB nil and RMB3,394,000,
respectively.

47.

FRFEEIEN B EEBINESEGED
AR ¥ 28600070 © FRUWABIET AN
EEMARE27650007T °

WEER=ZE—NF—A—B=K ' A5H
FERUW A A ANREE27,183,732,0007C * FR
FE A 2 A AR E 506,9360007C © EEE
FHEMGHBARR WHFMERREZZT—N
F— B —HAERZBEENEL T AER R =
B BRI MAEE AR - INIER ETRAIR

HEME AT

RAEE  AEBEBYE=HHEEL =M
WEBARIERMBRBEXEEEREGRAA
(TEA#BX]) BEEB EXREEFR AR
(IEFE L] FuMNBEENBRAR ([
E A1) #980% ~ 100% K2 100% A% #E - 3R &
REDBIAANREE36720007T - AREZ T
K AR #5 3,394,000 7T °
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47. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 47. HEMRBAE ()
The net assets of these subsidiaries at their respective dates of ZEMBARINESEHE RPN EEFE
disposal were as follows: R
Guangxi Yichun Chizhou
Tici Weishang Power Total
EE&HER EERL BHEHD et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARETIT ARETT ARETT
Consideration: 15 :
Cash received ElRe 3,672 - 3,394 7,066
Total consideration received BURERRE 3,672 = 3,394 7,066
Analysis of assets and liabilities % Z{2HIENEER
over which control was lost BES
Property, plant and equipment ME - MR NRE 772 9,740 26,969 37,481
Inventory FE 3 - - 3
Trade and other receivables JEUE 5 BR 70 N E b e UL
RIE 19,130 - 135 19,265
Bank balance and cash RITHEBRRIRS 51 498 - 549
Trade and other payable JEST B SRR N E b e
2| (21,219) (1,437) (17,343) (39,999)
Non-controlling interests FEfE = 253 - - 253
Net asset disposed of FTHEEEEFE (1,010) 8,801 9,761 17,552
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries H EM B 2\ Bl g5 18
Total consideration KRB 3,672 - 3,394 7,066
Less: net assets disposed of B THEEESE 1,010 (8,801) (9,761) (17,552)
Gain (loss) on disposal L Yas (E18) 4,682 (8,801) (6,367) (10,486)
Net cash inflow (outflow) arising i EMi/E 2> G1FrE £/
on disposal of subsidiaries BemA (i) B8
Cash consideration received BWHEERE 3,672 - 3,394 7,066
Less: bank balances and cash B T ERITER LR
disposed of (51) (498) - (549)
3,621 (498) 3,394 6,517
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48. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 48. HEEH
At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group's assets were RepEHR  BETAEEEECHEER 1
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The BAREBERFEITEENER AEBRE
aggregate carrying amount of the assets of the Group pledged at WMEMRNEEREENRERBENT :

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

020 2019
4 —ZE-NEF
B’000 RMB'000
K ARETIT
Buildings -t 862,668 1,058,086
Right-of-use assets FREEE 119,629 181,318
Deposits for borrowings R i 79,986 55,962
Receivables at FVTOC BAFEFAEMME KSR
FEWRIE 631,655 1,049,328
Restricted bank deposits SR I ERTT 73K 1,332,206 633,339
Note: Kt -
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had pledged part of equity interests in Henan Zhengxiao RE-F-FTFF=—HA=+1+—H FXEEBAHFTHIEK
(as defined in note 54) (2019: entire interests in Henan Chaowei) (as defined in note 54) in (EZE R F54) EE D R1E(ZF—NF - HEER(E
order to obtain bank borrowings. ERMF54) B2 EBIRIE) « LABEIFIRITIER ©
49. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 49. BEKiE
020 2019
£ 5 —E-NF
B/000 RMB'000
K AREFIT
Contracted but not provided for: BRI #E R B ¢
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment — EME  BE RE&E 194,512 74412
— acquisition of intangible asset — WEETEE 8,025 7,847
— capital contribution to associates — Mg AREE 23,200 23,200
— capital contribution to a joint venture —A—REELETE 22,000 22,000
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50. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 50. METEFREL ARZYHIE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from TRFVIAEBERETEMEAZAGB(E
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. HBIRENIIEBECEEED) - giEFETE
Liabilities arising financing activities are those for which cash flows HEHNBERRESRERAKRREREBERN
were or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's EHGARERERTHEARETERG
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing REeEREaEmalE -
activities.
q Dividend D D
020 0 d 0d d D 020
RMVB 000 RMVB 000 RMVB 000 RMVB 000 RMVB 000 RMVB 000
Borrowings EE 4,090,600 2,199,932 - - - 6,290,532
Medium-term note )Y 648,365 (649,890) - - 1525 -
Corporate bond PEER 416,991 (417,804) - - 813 -
Dividend payable to non-controlling ERNBLREERRR
shareholders of subsidiaries LIRS - (113,727) 113,727 - - -
Dividend payable Efifka - (83,083) 83,083 - - -
Lease liablites BEAE 15731 (6,203) - (1,598) 653 8,581
Amounts due to related parties JEf s E0E 17,046 (7,036) - - - 10,010
Interest payable EfiFIE 38,526 (386,753) - - 377,563 29,336
5,227,259 535,434 196,810 (1,598) 380,554 6,338,459
Adjustment
At upon At Newleases At
31 December application 1 January financing Dvidend  entered/ease Acquisiion nterest 31 December
018 ofIFRS 16 019 cash flows laimed modified o asubsidlary £XDenses 019
FERERH
N=5-N\F BEEH  MIT-NE #iRE/ Y- RZE-NE
TZRZt-B FihkEE -f-A  HEBERE  BENRE  EBIEE &L HEd% tZA=t-A
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RVB000 RIB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn  ARETm ARETr AREfn ARETR ARETR
Bankborowings 5 5154445 - 5154445 (1074845) - - 1100 - 4090600
Shortem note REZE 299930 - 299930 (300000) - - - ! -
Nedumterm note REZE 6631 - 631 - - - - 20 648365
Corporate Bond 11 41569 - 41569 - - - - 1299 416991
Divdend payable to anon-controling ER-EHBAT-%
shatehalderofasubsidiay FiERRE 2 RS 1034 - 2834 (31489) 5144 - - - -
Diidend peyatle 1 k& - - = (62388) 61368 - - - -
Lease [idbiites BEf - 1089 108% (4839 - 8875 - 800 15731
Amounts due to related parties 1 Ly - = = 17046 = - - = 1746
Interest payable EffE 511 - B (316524) - - - 309839 3852
6587953 108% 6598848 (1773038) 67532 8875 11000 314042 5759
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51.

52.

2 EF+_A=+—HIFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 51. BERBRERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group AEBEHEHESURERAEEETBLSE
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the KL FRERELER NIRRT E - Ak
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and R R FZF AR o NEBREERIEAR £
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged FERFTE o
from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which mainly AEEMEAEERIEFER  EFEER
comprises bank borrowings, corporate bonds, medium-term note, FIRITIEE - DEESF - PHEE  SHE
short-term note, net of restricted bank deposits and bank balances B HBESESISETERLEBTES RIR
and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the Company, & URAQNRHEEARGEERZ(EFREIE
comprising issued share capital and reserves. EEITRARFERE) o
The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis. As part EETFTHMAERNEE - EARTTH—30
of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks D BREEEESKANSIEE RN FEER
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of k- BEESHNHEESR  AEBBEAKR
the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure IR~ BEATHTRR B BB D AR 1D A B B 1T 31
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy- R ETE RS E AR o
backs as well as the issue of new debt.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. @M TR
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) BT AMR
020 2019
—T-NEF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETT
Financial assets SHEE
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) BATEG A B (R AFER AER)
— Mandatorily measured at FVTPL — BHIEA T EF AR 275,123 151,779
Financial assets at amortised cost REEKNAGTENEHEE 6,549,850 5096821
Equity instruments at FVTOC BATHES AR E R ErER TE 5,300 3,500
Receivables at FVTOC| BATHE AEM 2 E R E G 1,087,511 1,401,425
7,917,784 6,653,525
Financial liabilities EMARE
Amortised cost B SHRCR 11,162,754 9:813,588
BEEHERARAR / 20204% 189
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

190

(b)

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group's major financial instruments include equity
instruments at FVTOCI, receivables at FVTOC], financial assets
at FVTPL, loan receivables, trade receivables, other receivables,
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash, amounts
due from/to related parties, borrowings, trade payables, bills
payable, other payables, corporate bond and notes. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices.

(i) Foreign currency risk management

The Group has certain foreign currency bank balance,
cash and bank borrowings denominated in HKD, USD
and EUR, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

Annual Report 2020
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Market risk (continued)

N

(i) Foreign currency risk management (continued)
The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

(b)

. @M TR (&)

€ 0 B B2 Ao R e 3R (4R

4% BB (&)

) SMNERBEEE (&)
MR E A RE - REEAINE
TENEBEEREEZIN
T

020 2019
E 4 —E-NF
B’000 RMB'000
S AREFIT
Assets gE
HKD BT
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIRS 23,494 21,764
usD e
Bank balances and cash WITESNRIES 37,310 22,106
EUR BRI
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 6 9
Loan receivables JEUE R 4,608 4608
Liabilities AR
HKD BT
Bank borrowings RITEE 25,249 40,474
usD e
Bank borrowings RITEE 198,650 206,996

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in HKD,
USD and EUR against RMB.

BURE DT
AEETEEEET  ZTREK
TTRARERREER -
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i) Foreign currency risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The Directors’ assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rate is 5% for RMB against
HKD, USD and EUR respectively (2019: 5% for RMB
against HKD, USD and EUR respectively), which is also
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel.

For a 5% (2019: 5%) weakening of RMB against HKD,
there will be a decrease in the post-tax profit for the
year of RMB384,000 (2019: decrease RMB564,000 in the
post-tax profit) and there would be an equal but
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the other
equity for the year for a 5% (2019: 5%) strengthen of

RMB against HKD.

For a 5% (2019: 5%) weakening of RMB against USD,
there will be a decrease in the post-tax profit for the
year of RMB6,492,000 (2019: decrease RMB1,317,000 in
the post-tax profit) and there would be an equal but
opposite impact on the post-tax profit and the other
equity for the year for a 5% (2019: 5%) strengthen of

RMB against USD.

For a 5% (2019: 5%) weakening of RMB against EUR,
there will be an increase in the post-tax profit for the
year of RMB173,000 (2019: increase in the post-tax profit
for the year of RMB311,000) and there would be an
equal but opposite impact on the post-tax profit and
the other equity for the year for a 5% (2019: 5%)

strengthen of RMB against EUR.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk management

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to its fixed-rate loan receivable, loan to associates, fixed-
rate bank borrowings, corporate bonds, medium-term
notes and lease liabilities. The cash flow interest rate risk
of the Group relates primarily to the restricted bank
deposits, bank balances and variable-rate bank
borrowings. The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. However, management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note. The Group's cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of borrowing rates announced by the
People’s Bank of China arising from the Group’s RMB
denominated borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For
restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash
and variable-rate bank borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis points
increase or decrease in interest rate on restricted bank
deposits and bank balances and a 27 basis points
increase or decrease in interest rate on variable-rate
bank borrowings are used which represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
changes in interest rates.

52. &FLT A (&)

(b)
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Market risk (continued)

194

(ii)

(iii)

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /

Interest rate risk management (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates had been 10 basis points higher/lower
for bank balances and cash with all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2020 would increase/decrease by
RMB2,914,000 (2019: RMB1,944,000).

If interest rates had been 27 basis points higher/lower
for variable-rate bank borrowings with all other variables
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the years
ended 31 December 2020 would decrease/increase by
approximately RMB2,636,000 (2019: RMB3,217,000).

Other price risk

The Group is primarily exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in equity securities measured at
FVTPL. For equity securities measured at FVTPL quoted
in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
Shanghai Stock Exchange, the management of the
Group focus on investment in batteries industry sector
or other related manufacture industry where the
management has extensive experience.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting
date. For sensitivity analysis of equity securities with fair
value measurement categorised within Level 1, the
sensitivity rate is increased to 60% in current year as a
result of the volatile financial market.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 60% (2019: 30%) higher/lower, the post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2020 would increase/
decrease by RMB136,484,000 (2019: increase/decrease
by RMB34,149,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of equity securities measured at FVTPL.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment
Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties

default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial
losses to the Group. The Group's credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to trade receivables, receivables at
FVTOCI, other receivables, loan receivables, amounts due from
related parties, restricted bank deposits and bank balances.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has tasked its
operation management committee to develop and maintain
the Group's credit risk gradings to categorise exposures
according to their degree of risk of default.

The following table shows the Group's credit risk grading

52. &FLT A (&)
(o) IEERBEERREFN

EERREAKRERZHFRE
mﬁaﬁgﬁ$ilﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%m
Rk o REEERNEERREZR
E%W%%ﬁm E“?@ﬁkﬁm
2EKEHERFE - HibfEWRRIR -
FEM B SR - EURREEE T 5K0R - RIR
RITHERIRITHAERR

AEAERECSERAR  A£BEE
%%\ﬁﬁxﬁaﬂmlﬁﬂ$gl
ZEEREFTL - REHER KNG
R o%E -

T%ﬂm$ﬁlﬁ%iﬂégmﬁﬁ

framework in respect of financial assets: B 5T AR AE SR
Internal credit Other financial
rating Description Tradereceivables  assets subject to ECL
A ER 5 SRR L FEM 52 5 AR 3% HttmERRAAER
BROEMEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL
the contractual payments are not past due Not credit-impaired
or within a reasonable period since due
dates
K= RBEHERORRE  BEONFARIE 2HBEHAEEER REAEMEEEE
FEFH R R EHEA — EBEERE
Fair risk There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL - Not
risk since initial recognition through Not credit-impaired  credit-impaired
information developed internally or external
resources
h &R BBARRIMNDEIRFIISERGHEE >HEREERE 2HEEEEE
[2\B: B ¥ 56 HE SR 1R A BRI AN —EEERE —EEERE
Substantial risk There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL - credit-
credit- impaired credit-impaired impaired
Ep NN BBEBETEEDEERME HRHBEEESE 2HEREEESR
—BEfEERE —EBEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is Amount is written off  Amount is written off
in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
s BEBRETNEBABARENRR - M 7% <& FR I 3 % & FA 3

AEEEBRE S WD IR
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 52. @M TR (&)

15 5% B B ik (R A £ ()

(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (c)
(continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group's

TRAVNAKEBFAERAEEERE

196

financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment:

MEREEMARNEERR :

Internal Gross amount
31 December 2020 credit ratings 12-month or lifetime ECL RMB’000
R-BZ2F ##E
+=-A=+—H ABERTR NR2EARZBABMERSHA AR®TRT
Trade receivables 28 Note Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 2,298,987
B 32 5 AR =X Py ¥ RUFREREGR(RMER)
Note Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 134,867
P & RMFAHERGR(SEREE)
2,433,854
Loan receivables 25 Low risk 12-month ECL 49,592
R s = {B B B 12@A AEREEGR
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 69,863
EXRE 2HBAMEREGR(BEERE)
119,455
Other receivables 30 Low risk 12-month ECL 299,261
H fth FE Y TR 17 {B B B 12@A AEEEGR
Fair risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 14,669
rh & R b 2HAMESGR(BEERE)
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 56,554
EXRE RMFHERGR(SEREE)
370,484
Amounts due from 53 Low risk 12-month ECL 210,456
related parties BRI 128 B ARG HER
FE W BRI 75 =R IB Fair risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 162,885
rh R b RHMFAHERER(REREE)
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 68,313
EXRE 2HRHESEGER(BEERE)
441,654
Receivables at FVTOCI 29 Low risk 12-month ECL 1,087,511
BROTFEAHSM {E B b= 12EARMERSIR
2EBSHEKRRE
Restricted bank deposits 32 Low risk 12-month ECL 1,332,206
ERFABITER {E B 12@A AEEEGR
Bank balances 32 Low risk 12-month ECL 2,552,548
MITRER {E B B 12@A AEREGR
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Internal credit

52. &FLT A (&)

(o) 5% bR B it (B 5T 5 (#8)

Gross amount

31 December 2019 Notes  ratings 12-month or lifetime ECL RMB'000
RZZE—NF e
+=—A=+—8 Mz REEEFHK R2EAXEBEAEEEE ARMBFIT
Trade receivables 28 Note Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 2,130,296
JEWE 5 BR K Bt = > HITE A E B8 (A ERE)
Note Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 123,099
Bt = >HEEEER (BEEERE)
2,253,395
Loan receivables 25 Low risk 12-month ECL 64,618
FEUE K 16K L B 2EAEREERBE
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 69,863
BREAR > EEER (BEEERE)
134,481
Other receivables 30 Low risk 12-month ECL 222,173
Hh e kIR R L Bix 218 A RHBEEEE
Fair risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 13,200
hERE R 2 HIRHEEER (BEERE)
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 40,530
BERER 2 HRHEEER (BEEERE)
275,903
Amounts due from 53 Low risk 12-month ECL 182,617
related parties (Ve 1218 ATEEifE B &8
JE Uk BB 5 FN0E Fair risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 162,385
hZERE R 2 HRBEEER (BEERE)
Substantial risk Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 43,850
EPNE 2 HEHEEER (EEERE)
389,352
Receivables at FVTOC! 29 Low risk 12-month ECL 1,401,425
RAFET AEA 1 B 1218 AE A E B &R
2 E U ER BRI
Restricted bank deposits 32 Low risk 12-month ECL 633,339
R HIERITIFR 1EK B Bix 1218 AfRHEEEE
Bank balances 32 Low risk 12-month ECL 1,958,428
IRITAEER L B 1218 AFE B (E E B e
Note:  For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS Kt - BIEKE ZERAT T N5 BB JE F EIBR

9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for the debtor in
severe financial difficulty, which are assessed for impairment individually,
the Group uses a provision matrix with appropriate groupings to assess ECL
on trade receivables collectively

MBEREERE IR %  BEHE
B BERT BB AR - R EREXA
B R E B EEA BT R ERTES) - R
LB AL B R EEELENE
SRR B IR E BB IR TR AR
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

198

(c)

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables

Before accepting any new customer, the Group internally
assesses the credit quality of the potential customer and
define appropriate credit limits. Management also closely
monitors the credit quality of trade receivables. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade receivables, with exposure spread over a large number
of counter parties and customers.

The Group performs impairment assessment of lifetime ECL
on trade receivables. Except for the debtors in severe financial
difficulty, which are assessed for impairment loss individually,
the Group uses a provision matrix with appropriate groupings
based on the key market of the customers to assess ECL on
trade receivables collectively. The provision rates are based on
debtors’ aging because trade receivables consist of a large
number of customers with common risk characteristics and
their aging are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.

The following provision matrix details the risk profile of trade
receivables. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
show significantly different loss patterns for different customer
portfolio, the provision for loss allowance based on debtors’
aging is further distinguished between the Group’s customer
portfolios of different risk type. The estimated loss rates are
estimated based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Annual Report 2020

52. @B TH (&)

(c)

15 S5 B B3 B iRl (B BT 4 (#8)
W E 5 R

EERMNEMHELA  AEEERE
HEREBEEFPMEEER  YEBE
BENEERB EEENERER
EWE ZEROERER - Blitms -

ABRRPEER/AREZEER
e KIERIE o

AEEZ EWE SRR EEERR
BAKRTZER - ARRIDBRNZ
BARBHTREF -

AEERENBEREEHEHEKRE
5 RFGETTRE A - BREREEY
IR IR % ) 18 75 (B Bl 77080 (B 5 1R R
o AERERBEFPHNEIEMHE
RARENENREEEHEWES
R BEREEERETRENMG -
BEXDEREBANKER - RER
BB ZESHBERLHEB LRE
B RPATAK - HRERATARR
RERBEANKREEMEERNEE

ok
5[ °

N B1 38 s AR et 5 MK R 5 TR R ) R
B - AR AKENBEEEBE
RERATREFEGNEBEEEAR
EERER  REEHAKRKRTED
BiREREE - TRASETRRRE
AMBEFPESIMARD - hETEEX
DEREEABRFHRABEMEH
BELENXRELMGE  UREF L
AL B ATIE 1B FLE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
im O J7 15 i = P 51

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-BF+-A=+—ALFE

52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 52. @M T A (#)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (o) IEERBSERRETM ()
(continued)
At 31 December 2020 (RMB'000): RZEZZEF+_A=+—RH(AR¥K
T ¢
90 da 0
00 F & :
[ [ R [
Primary market customer
(note) Weighted average expected credit loss rate 1.21% 8.08% 51.72% 100.00% 10.36%
—fmagr(iE)  METHRSREERE
Total gross carrying amount 171,109 22,155 1,949 17,119 212,332
REELE
Lifetime ECL (2,070) (1,790) (1,008) (17,119) (21,987)
PHEBEERR
Subtotal 169,039 20,365 941 - 190,345
bt
Secondary market customer
(note) Weighted average expected credit loss rate 1.27% 4,25% 31,69% 100.00% 6.29%
“gmagr(iE)  METHREREERE
Total gross carying amount 873,225 328,534 95,930 27,923 1,325,612
REELE
Lifetime ECL (11,112) (13,958) (30,404) (27,923) (83,397)
SHRNEERA
Subtotal 862,113 314,576 65,526 - 1,242,215
It
QOther (note) Weighted average expected creditloss rate 2.01% 34.43% 93.10% 100.00% 33.55%
B (Wit METERAEEHRE
Total gross carrying amount 464,962 69,431 66,381 160,269 761,043
BEEER
Lifetime ECL (9,366) (23,908) (61,799) (160,269) (255,342)
SHRENEERA
Subtotal 455,596 45,523 4,582 - 505,701
bt
Total 1,486,748 380,464 71,049 - 1,938,261
#it
Note:  Primary market customers consist of the manufacturers of electric bikes, Kl : — R EREESEEETHRSRE  —
secondary market customers consist of customers in the replacement motive RTEXEEOSERE BT AR
battery market, while other customers mainly consist of manufacturers of E - MAMKE T EaITeE R SEEE
new energy motor vehicles. 2o
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 52. €M TR (&)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment (o) IEERBSERRETM ()
(continued)
At 31 December 2019 (RMB'000): RZE-—NF+ZA=+—RH(ARK
Fie)
Withn90days ~ Within T year 1-2 years Over 2 years
(not-credit (not-credit (credit (credit
impaired) impaired) impaired) impaired) Total
OAA K30 1528 japk3
(BEEHE) (BEEHE) (BREEAE) (BEEWE) st
Primary market customer
(note) Weighted average expected credit loss rate 121% 7.08% 2630% 10000% 12.38%
—fmEER (M)  METHRHEEERR
Total gross carrying amount 138054 33532 1863 19409 193458
FERES
Lifetime ECL (1678) (2373) (490) (19409 (23,950)
PHRBEERR
Subtotal 136976 31,159 1373 - 169,508
Nt
Secondary market customer
(note) Weighted average expected credit loss rate 1.34% 9.0% 36.79% 10000% 731%
“fmagR () METHEREEERE
Total gross carying amount 703987 339,548 82839 12538 1,138912
HEEER
Lifetime ECL (9399) (30869) (30478) (12539) (83,284)
HEAEERR
Subtotal 694,588 308679 52361 - 105,628
bt
Other (note) Weighted average expected credit loss rate 153% 1339% 6343% 10000% 25.38%
A (3T METIRHEEHRR
Total gross carying amount 342593 255315 101,150 98,868 797926
HEEESE
Lifetime ECL (5,249) (34199) (64,160) (98.868) (202476)
SHEREERR
Subtotal 337344 21,116 36990 - 595,450
it
Total 1,168,908 560,954 90,724 - 1,820,586
#it
Note:  Primary market customers consist of the manufacturers of electric bikes, Wet: —RmEEFEEEHETELER =
secondary market customers consist of customers in the replacement motive RTGEFEEERE BT 5 E
battery market, while other customers mainly consist of manufacturers of P MAEMEFFZEaETERTERE
new energy motor vehicles. e
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

(c)

(continued)

In addition, as at 31 December 2020, debtors of trade
receivable with carrying amount of RMB134,867,000 (2019:
RMB123,099,000) are assessed for ECL individually and loss
allowance of RMB134,867,000 (2019: RMB123,099,000) is

charged against the balance.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified

approach.

52.

&I R ()
(o) fEE PSR EFE (58)

BN RZEZTFF+—A=+—8 -
MR E A AR 134867000 L (=F
—NE : AR 123,099,0007T) Z &K
BZEFEBAEANTEEHREES
B WEZESTREEREARK
1348670007t( —ZF — L F : AR
123,099,000 7T) °

TRETEREBETAERN R
BIEREHMEREEERZE -

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
WA WA
EEBR EEBR

(EERHRE) (BEHERE) #at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETE
As at 1 January 2019 A _Z—-NEFE—HA—H 109,270 176,512 285,782
Changes due to financial instruments ~ A — A —BHBER &R T A
recognised as at 1 January: FTEuEs)
— transfer to credit-impairment —EREEEEERE (95,128) 95,128 =
— impairment losses recognised — BEERREEE - 86,907 86,907
— impairment losses reversed — BRI EEE (14,142) (325) (14,467)
— write off — gy - (9,180) (9,180)
New financial assets originated FERENSREE 83,767 - 83,767
As at 31 December 2019 A _EB—NE
+=RA=+—H 83,767 349,042 432,809
Changes due to financial instruments ~ R—A— BHER &R T A
recognised as at 1 January: FTEuE s
— transfer to credit-impairment —EBREEEEERE (73,903) 73,903 -
— impairment losses recognised — EERREEE - 24,956 24,956
— impairment losses reversed — BB ERERERE (9,864) (8,864) (18,728)
— write off — HhsH - (5,648) (5,648)
New financial assets originated FZRENSREE 62,204 - 62,204
As at 31 December 2020 et J <}
+=-A=+—H 62,204 433,389 495,593
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade receivables are mainly

due to:

Trade debtor with a gross carrying
amount of RMB15,387,000
defaulted and fully impaired

Settlement in full of trade debtors
with a gross carrying amount of
RMB8,864,000

4 BRHE A A R ¥ 15,387,000 7T
NESEFAEED
W AREURE

RERH (B 5 A R 8,864,000 7T
MNE SEABEEERIE

52, &R T A ()
(c)

15 5% B B ik (R A £ ()

FEWE ZEERBBRRBEESHERHR -

- 15,387

- (8,864)

2019
—E-NF
Increase/(decrease) in lifetime ECL

EHEMEEEEE M Of))

Not credit- Credit-
impaired impaired
EEERE EEERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFT
Trade debtor with a gross carrying RERHA(E A A R 82,905,000 7T
amount of RMB82,905,000 WESEBABERLD
defaulted and fully impaired R3] = 82,905
Settlement in full of trade debtors AR E A A R 10,856,000 7T
with a gross carrying amount of ME ZEEARESERE
RMB10,856,000 = (10,856)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. The Group has taken
legal action against the debtors to recover the amount due.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Loan receivables

The management estimates the estimated loss rates of loan
receivables based on historical credit loss experience of the
debtors as well as the fair value of the collateral pledged by
the counterparties to the loan receivables. Based on
assessment of the default rate and the loss given default after
considering the estimated realised amount of ultimate
disposal of the collaterals by the management, a loss
allowance of approximately RMB42,936,000 was recognised
during the current year, details of which are set out in note 25.

Other receivables and amounts due from related parties

For other receivables and amounts due from related parties,
the Group has applied the general approach in IFRS 9 to
estimate the loss allowance. The ECL on other receivables and
amounts due from related parties are assessed individually
based on the counterparties’ current past due exposure, past
due history, and taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort.

Other receivables

For other receivable, the Group has recognised ECL of
RMB18,474,000 (2019: RMB11,613,000) during the current year,
which is mainly due to a debtor with gross carrying amount of
RMB18,052,000 (2019: RMB20,000,000) defaulted and was
transferred to credit-impairment.

52. &FLT A (&)

(c)

155 %5 o, Bk e i (L A £ (#08)

FEWEF

T E M EREZRNGTEEETD
EREFANBECEBBEER MU
K F 75 ph R AR E SR E & 1R B9 I S
ZAFE - REEZENEIEREEE
BERKRLERFRNETERSHE
BEELIBE  RAFEERANEE
S AN R 429360007 © BRIFERE
K25 o

Hitt s AR ER BB T 7R
L A FE Wk I8 I e U B B 05 SRR T
5 AKBECEEABERMBREEL
F oMM — MBI (LAt EIIR R - Bt
FE N kIR B FE W BE B 05 SR IRV TR BB 1S
EBERNERRZHTHNERKALHE
b« BHIES - WERBSEARH
K BT AW B R AR AR S ) ERH] A
B RHEE RIS o

HEERE

REMERFEmS  AEBERR
FEBABEBHBEEBEERARE
184740002 (ZFE — N F: AR
11,6130007T) * EEZMABREEA
R#1805200 (= —NF: AR
& 20,000,00070 ) K — B E# A B &KL E
H o WEBEEEERE -
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Creditrisk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Amounts due from related parties

52. @B TH (&)

(c)

The following table shows the movement in ECL that has

been recognised for amounts due from related parties:

VL e ]

5 %% B, =% Rt i (L A £ (#08)

TRIITEBEU Eﬁﬂﬁﬁ?‘i?ﬁlﬁﬁ?ﬁ@ \

BEHEEERES

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total
12{8R 2H7H 2%
FRHEE EHER EEBR
BR (BEEERE) (BEHRE) #gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
As at 1 January 2019 R-E— = = = =
Changes due to financial ﬁ(\ A—AH TJE AR E
instruments recognised as BHHE
at 1 January:
— Impairment losses recognised  — B MR R{E & = 41910 17,498 59,408
— Transfer to credit-impaired —EBREEERE = (13,155) 13,155 =
New financial assets originated ~ ¥1i&BEAN S RIEE 5,221 = - 5221
As at 31 December 2019 R=-B—h&
+ZRA=+—H 5,221 28,755 30,653 64,629
Changes due to financial R—A—HERemT
instruments recognised as BHREE)
at 1 January:
— Impairment losses recognised  — B HE R R{E & 981 9,721 15,721 26,423
— Transfer to credit-impaired —EREEEERE - (9,721) 9,721 -
New financial assets originated ¥ RAM S REE 1,657 - - 1,657
As at 31 December 2020 R-EB-E&F
+=ZHA=+—H 7,859 28,755 56,095 92,709
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Amounts due from related parties (continued)

The lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) of RMB25,442,000 (2019:
RMB30,653,000) recognised during the current year is mainly
due to significant financial difficulty of two associates (2019:
an associate).

Receivables at FVTOCI

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, other than the balance of
receivables at FVTOCI whose carrying amounts best represent
the maximum exposure to credit risk, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group also include issuing banks fail to settle the bills that
have been transferred to collecting banks or suppliers through
discounting the bills to collecting banks or suppliers with full
recourse as described in note 29.

The Group only accepts bills issued or guaranteed by
reputable PRC banks if trade receivables are settled by bills
and therefore the Directors considers the credit risk arising
from receivables at FVTOCI as well as the endorsed or
discounted bills is insignificant.

Restricted bank deposits/bank balances

The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks. However, credit risk
on restricted bank deposits/bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are reputable banks with high credit ratings
and the Directors consider the ECL for restricted bank
deposits/bank balances to be insignificant.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining a level of
cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings from time to time.

52. &FLT A (&)

(c)

(d)

155 %5 o, Bk e i (L A £ (#08)

FEWRBERE T 50 7B ()
AEEERZZHEHEEEEB(ER
ERE) AR 254420007 (ZZFE—H
F: ANR#306530007C) = Z B M
R(ZE—NF: —R)BEAFAE
[BR E B B o

# N -FE AR M2 E K 8 E R
H
NZEEFR-ZZF—NF+A
=+—H BREEBERERKFAR
BEeEERBRNEAFEFAEMS
RSB RIBAE SN - AEER
R BRI EAN RS EERRIT
BIEEITIRITRA iﬁiﬂlﬂﬂ& fﬁfﬁ
TTEF‘%HEEEE: MEREMNEE M
ENEEBEEWZRITRHERNE
T&(ﬁuﬁﬁaﬂ%ﬁ L) o

HARBENERE SRR - NEE
ERRBEBRIZPERTETIIE
RORE  WEERREQIFETA
Hipzm s B RBEREE S K
MBRNREBRELEERRLTERX -

ZRERITIFH - RITAEER
AEEHEETRABDESNEER
R MRBESFRRZHEET A
- ZRERIOTERRITERZE
ERRBR AT ABERIFEA

Ziﬁﬁ&ﬁ’]fﬁ - MEZFRRER
%IJSE TR/ RITHEBNAREER
B REK o
BT & BB
AEEEEEFEEERARECH
@&ﬁ%%ﬁ%%’ﬁiﬁ%ﬂﬁéﬂﬁﬁ
NAAEEEERTBE LR ERS

MEBFE - EREENRETRITE
EEABEMR -
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

206

(d)

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited  /

52, &R T A ()

Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REVE SRR ()
The following table details the Group's remaining contractual TREFVWNAEEBNIIESTESHEBER
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the B EEREMEENE TS LR H
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based Ho 2R IIBENEBNRO e E K
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on BIANRE NS B ERITIRR
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. shRERE - LHRE SHAEEX
Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on demand EBEBIEFRZBTEE: AZERGE
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the B MimiETERETEASTERN
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The ek . HiWIErTAE SRt B E /2 H
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are HIEEBEE R ERERBHETE -
based on the agreed repayment dates.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To ZEBENBERASHIRE T o iHH
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the BRERZEFE  MEHERED
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end RTINS ESRFERES o
of reporting period.
Weighted  JEEE 0 0
average on  6mo ; 0 discounted g
interest rate demand 0 0 ; :
g o1 j
l?f,]ﬂz i PICtS 6 : -1 o i (2] {E
% B0 B0 B B0 RMBOOO  RMBOO RMBOOO  RMB
31 December 2020: ZETEETCRCT-A:
Fixed-1ate borrowings b 435 50000 2527880 1611727 635625 288,667 - 5122899 495793
Varigble-rate borrowings FERE 4% - 473,454 405,847 311,124 213,059 - 1403484 1,332,600
Trade payables B EAEN - 453,488 2,180,413 - - - - 2633901 2,633,901
Bils payable ERZE = - 1377478 - - - - 348 1377478
Other payables EERER - 63,481 554,327 221,867 - - - 839,675 839,675
Amounts cue torelated partes ERERAE - 21,168 - - - - -8 21,168
Lease iablts HEAR 586 1,304 694 2119 4725 - - 8,842 8,581
598441 7114246 2,241,560 951,474 501,726 - 1407447 11,171,335
31 December 2019: ZE-pE+ZRZT-R:
Fixed-rate borrowings TEkEE 508 59000 538,160 1331674 549998 B8 - 2500274 404154
Variale-ate borowings BERE 1% AN A AT I 1 - 1B 18646
Trade payables EEA%R - 91590 175506 - - - - 236T%  23467%
Bils payable EfZE - -4y - - - - AT 14T
Other payables EfbE5E - G791 ST 6448 - = -9 85700
Amounts due to related parties [EftEER 78 - 26200 - - - - - 26270 26210
Lease fabiltes HEak 566 1516 2004 2965 480 436 1408 17676 15731
Corporate bonds 365 831 - - 4 - - - Bl 41691
Medium-tem notes hHER 734 - - 69550 - - - B0 648365
TA3167 4699184 3078549 906967 708321 1808 101379% 9829319
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

52, &R T A ()

Liquidity risk (continued) (d) RENE SRR ()
Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included BEEZRERBERNEER L5 8
in the “on demand” time band in the above maturity analysis. DT A TEERERE | 2FREER -
As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate undiscounted R-_EBE_FTEF+_-_HA=+—H " %=
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to RITEENRTRARLBR/AR
RMB59,000,000 (2019: RMB59,000,000). Taking into account #59,000000L(Z T —HF : ARK
the Group's financial position, the management of the Group 59,000,0007T ) © & E EAE B 2 8 7%
does not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise hon AREBEBRERAEFETEITE
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. HEMNZRABERNEGHE - &
The management believes that such bank borrowings will be BEREEBERITEEBRIFERR
repaid after the end of the reporting period in accordance BERERMZEAENTETERHEE
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan B At ZFRTEENEAE LF
agreements and accordingly, the aggregate principal and BIRE R L BERHARY 62052000
interest cash outflows of these bank borrowings will amount T(ZZF— N F: AR ®64684000
to RMB62,052,000 (2019: RMB64,684,000), details of which are 7T BEERR TR
set out in the table below:
Weighted ota ota
alerage 0 discounted :
interest rate de 0 0 ash flo 0
il 6 AR
Toiix WiEEiE ' Ll
% R RMB 000 RVB 000 RVB 000 RVB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
At31 December 2020 R-B-BE+-A=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities HiitamaR
Variable-rate bak borrowings with ARBIEERS2TE
arepayment on demand cause Hi1fE 428 - 1,263 1,263 59,526 - 62,052 55,000
BEBHEBRERAT / 20204% 207
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

208

(e)

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited /

Weighted
average
interest

fate demand

it

52, &R T A ()

(d)

Total
6 months
or less

TOHE  EELEE 6BAZUT

% RMBI00

RMBO00

ARETT ARETTL

B R B ()
Total
undiscounted
6-12 1-2 25 sh canying
months years years flows — amount
ARAE
6-12{8 7 2 15F RESE  LREE
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOD

ARMTT ARETL ARETT ARMTL ARETR

At31December 2019 RZEZ-AE+ZA=+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities 4 &MARE
Fixed-rate bank borrowings with ARZXERKR TR

arepayment on demand cause RRE 428

1263

1,263 2506 59632 04684 59000

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments are subject to change if changes in interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair value of certain financial assets.

Some of the Group's financial instruments are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The management of
the Company has delegated a team, which is headed up by
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. Where observable
inputs are not available, the Group also considers to engage
third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation, if
necessary.
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(e) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis

Fair value as at

52, &R T A ()

&M T RMHOFHEEGR)

RELEMEEZN FETBEHETE
EtHEEREME BN FE

Fair value hierarchy  Valuation technique and key inputs

AFHEER

EIEGUWEEIIN ¢

WATREZ AFE

Financial assets December 2020 31 December 2019
TREE ZENEF
: t=ZA=+-A
Financial assets at FVTPL Listed equity securities Listed equity securities
BATEFABRNEREE in Hong Kong and inHong Kong:
the Mainland of China: Manufacturing industry
Manufacturing industry RMB151,779,000
RMB275,123,000 RERLHZ
RERRTEAY LT BARS : iR
ZREES BER|  AR¥I1517790007T

AB%275,123,000 7T

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Unlisted entities:

Unlisted entities:

BATE AL EEKER RMB5,300,000 RMB3,500,000
EmIA ELITERE: FEMESE:
A% 5,300,000 AR®35000007C

Receivables at FVTOCI Bills receivable: Bills receivable:
BATES AL 2 EREN RMB1,087,511,000 RMB1,401,425,000
JEWRIR BRRE EWER :
AR%1,087,511,0007 | AR 140142500070

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during 2020

and 2019.

Level 1
1%

Level3
B=R

Level 2
=R

Quoted bid prices in an active market

REMENEAGE

These investments are not publicly traded in an open market.
Therefore, the fair value of these investments were
determined with reference to the issue prices for recently
issued shares of each investment or discounted cash flow
method, taking into consideration any adjustment factors
between the date of recent issuance and the year end.
FEREVEERNATHRS Rt ZEREHRT
BE2EEREERF T RANECEINER ERE
% BEREHRTRHEEERERAEARERE
BT

Aslightly increase in the adjustment factors would result in a
significant increase in the fair value measurement of these
investments, and vice versa.

BERZEM LARASREZATEFEAEL
Tt RZTA o

Discounted cash flow method was used to capture the
present value of the expected future economic benefits to be
derived from the ownership of these receivables at FVTOCI
WFRR RS sMEREZERATEFALGLEE
Wias B RIS AT A Y TR RS B R 2 BB o

RZZBZZFR-ZFT-NF  F—H
F_RzELEEE -

BRI HERAERAR / 20204% 209
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

52. @B TH (&)

(e) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (e) &MTEMLTFEEE (1)

(continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements:

FE=RRTEFEZHE

Unlisted equity
investments
classified as

equity instruments

at FVTOCI

REERLTHE

ARMZ2EKES

HESTARZ

FELHEREFRS

RMB'000

ARET T

At 1 January 2019 R_E—hE—HA—H 10,722
Total losses in other comprehensive income: REMEERES 2 EIBETE (8,922)
Purchases iR 1,700
At 31 December 2019 N —E—hE+=-A=+—H 3,500
Purchases B 1,800
At 31 December 2020 A—_E-ZTF+-"A=1+—H 5,300
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52. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments that are not
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value
disclosure are required)
Except as detailed in the following table, the Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities at amortised cost recognised in the

52, &R T A ()
(e) &MITAMATFHEHEE(HE)

WHRBFZEFMEER L FPETER
FEBTET R A FE(ERKER
FE)

BRTIRAFLEIN  EFERR HA
R P EERIREHEN AT ER
TREEATRABNEAERARN

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair FERE
values:
i December 2020 At 31 December 2019
Nt Bt 2 R-B— A
: z +ZA=+—8
g Carrying
0 air value amount Fair value
I I (B - BREE A¥E
B’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R R AEBTT ARETT
Financial liabilities eMAR
Corporate bonds and EEHRENTE
interest payable - - 428,135 453,292
Medium-term notes and FHIZERERFE
interest payable - - 656,554 699,554
53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 53. MBEARS
(@) During the year, the Group has significant transactions with (@) AEBRNAFEETEB TEEKN
following related parties: R :
Name Relationship
2\ [o[E
Zhejiang Doulan Intelligent Equipment Co., Ltd.* Controlled by Zhou Mingming
AL S R ERD AR A A JEI PR R AT
Zhejiang Pulangte Joint venture
WO BB AELE
Moll Associate
Moll F/NE]
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53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

212

(@) During the year, the Group has significant transactions with (@) AEBRAFEETI@EBSEEKR
following related parties: (continued) X5 (#8)
Name Relationship
£ R®
Hangzhou Xinglianxing Network Technology Co., Ltd.* Associate
N2 &2 YEBER R BER AR /N
Zhejiang Shidarui Electric Bike Co., Ltd.* Associate
I ERBEEHRAA kNG|
Hengyang Xinyueweichi Supply Chain Co., Ltd.* Associate

(b)

53. BB RS (&)

B BB b HERARET AR

Fei Fang Technology Co,, Ltd.
FEFTRKBERAF]

Henan Yilin Trade Co., Ltd.*
AR AEEBR AR

*

been registered.

During the year, the Group has entered into the following

The English name of these companies are for reference only and have not

NG

Associate

N

Non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary

— K MIB R B R IFE AR AR

* ZERANRXEFBEHRSEZ  WREE

i e

(b) AKRERAFERBHITETUATE

significant transactions with its related parties: AR -
Trade sales and purchase BZHERFE
Trade sales Trade purchase
BAHE B 5%
020 2019 020 2019
N T NF —T-NEF
000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
= ARBTFT P ARETT
Entities controlled by the Directors 2= SE42 ) F 52 - 5 27,969 16,757
Associates AN 7,576 1,766 31 -
Joint ventures AP 2,212 31,513 258 -
9,788 33,284 28,258 16,757

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited  /
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53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

53. BB RS (&)

(b) During the year, the Group has entered into the following (b) AEBNAFEHEBE HTETUTE
significant transactions with its related parties: (continued) AR5 (4E)
Amounts due from related parties (before ECL) FEY BERE 5 5 B (FA RS B &7 A)
020 31/12/2019
. —T-NF
F : +=-A=+—8
d 0 d Trade Non-trade
Z Z 25 HFEZ
000 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
: R AREFTTT ARETT
Entities controlled by the Directors 2 S5 HI| ) E 52 5,735 - 3,224 -
Associates ik /NG| 8,832 129,299 4,894 127,929
Joint ventures aEbE 27,397 53,921 37,079 22,348
Others Hith 14,143 20,000 11,551 =
56,107 203,220 56,748 150,277
Amounts due to related parties FEATBE B 75 74 18
020 31/12/2019
: —TNEF
; F +=RA=+—H
ad 0 ad Trade Non-trade
=R =R =) HFEZ
000 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R AREFTT ARETT
Entities controlled by the Directors 28 5458 | 1) & £& 7,313 6 6,169 -
Associates Erll/NEE] - 5,950 = 17,046
Joint ventures e 3,845 4,054 3,055 =
11,158 10,010 9,224 17,046

The non-trade balances due from/to related parties are

unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

BEBNZERERRR / 20205#H
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53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
During the year, the Group has entered into the following

214

(b)

significant transactions with its related parties: (continued)

Loan to associates (before ECL)

(b)

53. BB RS (&)
ARER B AR 2 SR B

EITATE

KRR 5 : (&)
&L BB (RAEEEEAT)

020 2019
E £ —E-nF
B’000 RMB'000
R # AR¥ETT

Loan to associates: mE R RER
— Non-current portion (note i) — FEBNEAEL > (ki) 162,885 162,885
— Current portion (note i) — BNEREL 5 (B &E i) 19,442 19,442
182,327 182,327

Notes:

(i) The amounts as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 represent the loan to Fei

Fang Technology Co., Ltd., an associate of the Group, which is unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

(ii) The amounts as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 represent the loan to Moll,

an associate of the Group, which is unsecured, carrying a fixed interest rate
of 5.0% (2019: 5.0%) per annum with the maturity of 12 months. As at 31

December 2020, due to significant financial difficulty of Moll, the expected

credit loss allowance for this loan has been fully provided.

Amounts due from related parties — analysed for

Kt -

0]

(ii)

R-F-_FFER T NF+-A=1—
H 195 BB 15 7] 7K £ BB & A B FE T BRI A
BRAE L E - BAERE - 2 ERA
JEZ FAEIE -

REZEZFFR=F-NFF+=—A="+—
H 195 B 15 7] 7N 55 [B B & 2 5] Mol (& L A
B BESI ZEEFFES50%(=
TN 4F :50%) 518 - R 1218 F#F)
B RZF-FF+=-A=1—H #R
Moll ) EEA BT B R 8 + B BB G 1EZ B 5
B TR = B R 1 o

BERABARE —RMEBREANS

financial reporting purposes: -
020 2019
= —E-NF
B’000 RMB'000
R AR¥ETT
Amounts due from related parties & Uk BB 5 SR IE
(trade and non-trade) (B K3EES) 259,327 207,025
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEIEEE (44,512) (35,874)
214,815 171,151
Loan to associates EE VNI &N 182,327 182,327
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEBREE (48,197) (28,755)
134,130 153,572
348,945 324,723
Non-current JEBNHA 133,085 133,085
Current BNEA 215,860 191,638
348,945 324,723
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53. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 53. A XS (18)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel (0 FEEBARNMNE
020 2019
E 4 —E-NF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETT
Short term employee benefits EHESRA 10,784 10,585
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR/ & M st &I % 30 32
Share-based payments VAR AR 73 EERE A 7P 3R 1,626 3491
12,440 14,108

IZEBEABNMENE2EB/MAR
ARMGBBETE -

The remuneration of key management personnel is
determined with reference of the performance to individuals
and market trends.

54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the

54, FEMELT
AEBHTENBATRBERERENE
K& T o

reporting period are as follows.

Issued and fully

Equity interest

Principal activity

Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December
B/ BETRBERS FLAEART-A=+-H FERE
AFER ATk 30 -2 BiERFEE
020 2019
“ENE
%
Directly held
HERA
Chaowei Power Group Limited BVI Usb100 100 100 Investment holding
BRYNEEERAF REARRME 1007 REER
Leadnew Limited BVI Usb100 100 100 Investment holding
EHERAT REARRAE 1007 REER
Indirectly held
HERR
Chaowei Power (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HKD10,000 100 100 Investment holding
(‘Chaowei Power HK) 36 1000087 RERR
BN (F8)BRAR ((BHEBNEE])

BEBNZERERRR / 20205#H
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54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

216

Ry 55 i 2 P9 5+

54. ¥ EMBELT (1)

Issued and fully Equity interest Principal activity
Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December
1) BETREERS FOFAR+ZA=+-A TERE
AL ATRiE ERES BiERFES
Moll Grundstticks — und Vermdgensverwaltungs ~ Germany EUR2,002,500 749 749 Property investment
GmbH & Co. KG MOLL G+V {2E 2002500 BX7T MERE
Chaowei Power Group Co, Ltd. PRC RMBT1,063,800,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
(‘Chaowei Power') (Note i) (Note i) e ARH1,0638000007 HEH N
BRERSEERAR ([BHER])
(GBI GED;
Henan Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. (‘Henan Chaowei") PRC RMB10,000,000 60 60 Manufacture of motive batteries
(Notei) e AR 100000007 HEHNEL
B ERARAR (D7 AR ) (i)
Shandong Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
iR ERAR AR (M) e AR 100000,0007C HEHNEH,
Jiangsu Chaowei Power Co,, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB100,000,000 61 61 Manufacture of motive batteries
IHERERERAR (i) i AE#1000000007C HiEBHHEH
Anhui Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 75 75 Manufacture of motive batteries
(Anhui Chaowe') (Note ) e AK%100000007C HEHNEN
ZHERERARAR ([ZHER]) (W)
Zhejiang Chaowei Power Energy Co, Ltd. PRC RMB150,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries
(Note ) H AR 1500000007 and materials
HLBEE N AR AR AR () HED NS BRI
Jiangxi Xinwei Energy Technology Co, Ltd. PRC RMB100,000,000 100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
(Note ) i ARH100000,000 70 HEH N
ILEMEE N aRR R R A ()
Anhui Yongheng Power Technology Co, Ltd. PRC RMB65,500,000 95 95 Manufacture of motive batteries
('Anhui Yongheng) (Note i) HE AR 65,5000007T SEHNEN
ZEKEBHHERERDA
(=B ]) (k)
Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang Power Co, Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000 51 51 Manufacture of motive batteries
(‘Zhejiang Changxing Jintaiyang’) (Note i) H AR #100000007T SLEFNEN

MTREEAGERER AR
(MIIRESAS (M)

Chaowei Power Holdings Limited  /
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54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

54. ¥ EMBELT ()

Issued and fully

Place of paid-up
incorporation/ share capital/
Name of company establishment registered capital
EMAL/ ERFTRMERE/
LRER R G TS
Zhejiang Chaowei Chuangyuan PRC RMB83,333,333
Industrial Co, Ltd. (Note ) (Note i) H AR#833333337C
HTRRAITE X AR AR (k) (Rt
Jiangsu Yongda Power Co,, Ltd. ("Jiangsu Yongda”) PRC RMB80,000,000
(Note1) hE AR 800000007
TEKEBRRINERAR (DIFKE])
(HizED)
Qinyang Libiao Membrane Co, Ltd. PRC RMB63,240,769
(“Qinyang Libiao’) (Note i) HE AR 63,240,769 7T
wEmEREERAR (DO ()
Zhejiang Yueda Plastic Co, Ltd. (Note ) PRC RMB40,850,000
IR ERNBRAR (FE) hE AR 408500007
Hebei Chaowei Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB120,000,000
MR ERERAR (M) il AR%12000000075
Zhejiang Xinwei Power Trading PRC RMB10,000,000
Co, Ltd. (Note ) il ARH 100000007
ALH R E 5B RAR (M)
Henan Chaowei Zhengxiao Power Co, Ltd. PRC RMB600,000,000
("Henan Zhengxiao") (Note i) (Note i) s AEE600,000,0007T
AEBRERERERAR (UEEM])
GiEDIiE)
Shandong Chaowei Ciyao Power PRC RMB10,000,000
Co, Ltd. (‘Chaowei Ciyao") (Note ) i AR #100000007T
IWRBRHMETRERAA (BRHE])
(FitsEi)

Equity interest Principal activity
attributable to
the Company as at
31 December
ZAFAR+=RA=+—AH TEEE
BEEFES
2019
“E-NE
%
91 815 Manufacture of motive batteries
BB HB
60 60 Manufacture of motive batteries
SLERNEN
85 85 Manufacture of electrode plate
dividing paper
SLEBHIRRERA
51 51 Manufacture of plastic battery
cases
HETHER
100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries
SEHNEN
100 100 Sales of motive batteries and
materials
HEHNEMRM K
9 90 Manufacture of motive batteries
SLERHEN
100 100 Manufacture of motive batteries

HEHHEN

BEBNZERERRR / 20205#H
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54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 54. FERBLT (1)

Issued and fully Equity interest Principal activity
Place of paid-up attributable to
incorporation/ share capital/ the Company as at
Name of company establishment registered capital 31 December
1) BETREERS FOFAR+ZA=+-A TERE
AL ATRiE ERES BiERFES
Zhejiang Heniu Power Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries and
AT s R A R A R (Fiti) e AR %100000007C materials
HEBNE BRI
Henan Chaowei Zhengxiao PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100 Sales of motive batteries and
Power Sale Co, Ltd. (Note i H AR#100000007T materials
MEBRERERHERRAR (M) HEBHEBRME
Chaowei Tici (Beijing) Energy PRC RMB100,000,000 2 51 Research and development
Technology Co, Ltd. (Note i) (Note i) H AR 10000000075 i
BERR (1 R) SRR AR AR ()
(PzEiT)
Zhejiang Chaowei Power Co,, Ltd. (Note i) PRC RMB50,000,000 100 100 Research and development of
HLBEE N BRAR (M) H AR 500000007T solar energy generating system
HEAGREB RS
Zhejiang Anli Energy Co, Ltd. (Note i) PRC USD35,000,000 85.71 85.71 Research and development of
LR N RABRAR () H 350000005 7T durathon batteries
HERAZT
Henan Chaoli New Energy Co,, Ltd. PRC RMB30,000,000 60 60 Manufacture of motive batteries
(‘Henan Chaoli) (Note ) e AR 300000007 HEBHHEN
BN R R A
(T ) (=)
Notes: HiaE -
(i) These companies are PRC limited liability companies. The English names of these 0 ZENRAPEER NG EEXLFEMRR
companies are for reference only and have not been registered. . R EE .
(ii) The Group acquired additional interests in these subsidiaries during the current year. (ii) R £ B R U R 2 S [ B BB IMEZRS o

(iii) As at 31 December 2020, none of the subsidiaries of the Group had issued any debt

securities (2019: Chaowei Power issued a medium-term note and the Corporate Bond

as detailed in notes 40 and 41).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-BF+-A=+—ALFE

54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 54. XERELT (1)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Company’s directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Company that have material non-controlling interests:

EPlRBIIE AR BT EETRAEARE XS
HEEFTEXENARBENBAR - RE
ExER 2V EMHMBARNFEHER
BB TR °

TREJARABEAERIFEREENIESD
BB RS

Place of Proportion of ownership interests Profit allocated to
incorporation and voting rights held by non-controlling interests Accumulated
and principal non-controlling interests for the year ended non-controlling interests
Name of subsidiary place of business at 31 December 31 December at 31 December
ElAIERR RtZAZ+-E#EREE BET-A=+-HALERIE RtZA=t+—-H#
MELRRR FTEERMN iRl ARRFELY EFARERNHE RitFRRER
020 2019 020 2019 020 2019
—T N “TNEF = =k
B'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
2% AzeTr GL ARBTT
Henan Chaowei PRC 40% 40% 62,939 24,495 457,201 494,262
EEfEz] HE
Anhui Chaowei PRC 25% 25% 26,385 11436 132,413 106,028
el e
Jiangsu Yongda PRC 40% 40% 15,204 9403 124,384 117,180
ILARKE e
Yangzhou Huaxiang PRC 49% 49% (31,650) (27,237) (73,640) (41,990)
ENER Gl
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests (68,769) (72782) 192,157 205323
ERFARERNERFEANBAR
Total 5 4,109 (54,685) 832,515 880,803

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group'’s
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

AEERAEAGFERERNZHB AR
PRSI IS BRI B IIIN T o T 5 BERE B 75 & A
REREBA R AR EHATEEE -
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54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

54. ¥ EMBELT (1)

Henan Chaowei oN=o) )
020 2019
: —E-hEF
000 RMB'000
R ARBTFT
Current assets mENEE 1,102,413 939,009
Non-current assets EMEEE 1,010,266 1,030,303
Current liabilities MEA & 571,715 583,004
Non-current liabilities FERBAE 397,960 150,652
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RNAFRHEE AEERER 685,803 741,394
Non-controlling interests SRR T 457,201 494,262
020 2019
E_ 24 —ZT—-hF
D00 RMB'000
2 ARETT
Revenue WA 3,250,825 3,527,343
Expenses v 3,093,477 3,466,104
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year — 4F A F B K2 2 T Uk 25 42 58 157,348 61,239
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable  ZN 2 T1HEA A FE1G FE &
to owners of the Company FHE =B 94,409 36,744
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable  FE3% A& 122 %5 & 15 F1) 7R &
to non-controlling interests FHE =B 62,939 24,495
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year  4E RIAIIE & 2 E U 25 48 58 157,348 61,239
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B IR R AR B 100,000 -
Net cash from operating activities KESEBFTSIR G F58 307,290 244,784
Net cash used in investing activities KEEHTHIRG F58 (235,150) (261,356)
Net cash used in financing activities R EEFTRIR €55 (74,188) (197,689)
Net cash inflows (outflows) WEmA Ot ) 358 (2,048) (214,261)
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54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 54. EERELT ()

Anhui Chaowei ZHEBR
020 2019
E 4] —E-NF
B’000 RMB'000
R ARETT
Current assets MENE B 580,156 541,693
Non-current assets FERBEE 335,002 331,812
Current liabilities mEA & 294,392 338,895
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 91,114 110,498
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RNAFIHEE AEERER 397,239 318,084
Non-controlling interests FEIARAE RS 132,413 106,028
020 2019
gt —E-NF
000 RMB'000
R ARETTT
Revenue A 2,305,225 2,168,727
Expenses 53 2,199,685 2,122,980
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year — 4F P FI B K2 2 T Uk 25 42 58 105,540 45,747
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable  ZN/2 &1 #E G A FEAS FI5E &
to owners of the Company FHE W =EEE 79,155 34,311
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable  3E1% A% 48 %5 FE 15 1)) &%
to non-controlling interests FHEWEETE 26,385 11,436
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year & A FI B K2 2 T Uk 28 42 58 105,540 45,747
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT IR ER AR S - =
Net cash from operating activities KL TEFTSIE S HEE 30,398 29,209
Net cash used in investing activities KREESMAE S F5E (29,183) (8,127)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities mEES (FTH) TEE 3 (32,230) 4,756
Net cash (outflows) inflows Be (R) RAFERE (31,015) 25,838

BRI OERAERAR / 2020F% 221



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

m O R 1% i 22 P 5F
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-FT-_ZF+-A=t—HLFE

54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

54. ¥ EMBELT (1)

Jiangsu Yongda I EFkiE
020 2019
: —E-hEF
000 RMB'000
R ARBTFT
Current assets mENEE 394,733 501,450
Non-current assets EMEEE 182,573 199,440
Current liabilities MEA & 204,143 320433
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 62,203 87,507
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RNAFRHEE AEERER 186,576 175,770
Non-controlling interests JEIARAE RS 124,384 117,180
020 2019
E_ 24 —ZT—-hF
D00 RMB'000
2 ARETT
Revenue WA 2,030,165 2,283,099
Expenses v 1,992,155 2,259,590
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year — 4F A F B K2 2 T Uk 25 42 58 38,010 23,509
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable  ZN 2 T1HEA A FE1G FE &
to owners of the Company FHE =B 22,806 14,106
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable  FE3% A& 122 %5 & 15 F1) 7R &
to non-controlling interests FHE =B 15,204 9,403
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year  4E RIAIIE & 2 E U 25 48 58 38,010 23,509
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B IR R AR B 8,000 -
Net cash from operating activities KESEBFTSIR G F58 53,175 10,483
Net cash used in investing activities KEEHTHIRG F58 (10,555) (8,167)
Net cash used in financing activities R EEFTRIR €55 (48,133) (5,152)
Net cash outflows REm LT (5,513) (2,836)
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54. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

54. ¥ EMBELT ()

Yangzhou Huaxiang =M ER
020 2019
: —E-NF
000 RMB'000
= ARETT
Current assets MENE B 168,625 171,805
Non-current assets FERBEE 360,978 345,626
Current liabilities nBaE 657,888 601,124
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 22,000 2,000
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RNAFIHEE AEERER (76,645) (43,703)
Non-controlling interests SRR (73,640) (41,990)
020 2019
—E-NF
000 RMB'000
R ARETTT
Revenue WA 67,690 20,485
Expenses - 132,282 76,070
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year  F AN 518 &2 2 E R X 4258 64,592 55,585
Loss and total comprehensive expense attributable  ZNA & #E A A FEAG E5 18 &
to owners of the Company FHEFMZ B (32,942) (28,348)
Loss and total comprehensive expense attributable  FEIE R 2 FE(L 1B
to non-controlling interests FHMAS B (31,650) (27,237)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year 45 A E518 & 2 E A X 4258 (64,592) (55,585),
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT R AR B - =
Net cash used in operating activities KRB TR SR8 (53,220) (19,239)
Net cash used in investing activities KE TR S F58 (26,979) (26,962)
Net cash from financing activities RME RS G F58 82,884 41,559
Net cash inflows (outflows) WemA (i) F8E 2,685 (4,642)
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55. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 55. BRAE L E M IKR TR GRS 5
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS S ¥
OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the RMERERE - BERNRQRPBRAERDN
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: BRI
020 2019
: —T—hF
B’000 RMB'000
R ¥ ARBTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FMBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE kR 55 121
Investment in subsidiaries RETB R RIMIEE 407,123 378,650
Amounts due from subsidiaries A N NI E S 714,066 662,465
1,121,244 1,041,236
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR RRIA F B Ath R IE 8,977 12,099
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAFEFABENEREE 5,414 1,827
Loan receivable JEUE X 4,608 4,608
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR BT B A R FE 28,947 28,950
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR MRS 13,068 12,260
61,014 59,744
CURRENT LIABILITIES mERE
Other payables E e 3RIE 6,337 4,166
Short term borrowings REEE 20,872 40,474
27,209 44 640
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEERE 33,805 15,104
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EEREEHARE 1,155,049 1,056,340
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERHR
Share capital A&z 74,704 74,704
Reserves s 1,038,646 943,885
TOTAL EQUITY HES 1,113,350 1,018,589
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FmEBRE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FER M B R R FUE 41,699 37,751
1,155,049 1,056,340
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55. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 55. FRAFLAFIMBIKAREGHEE
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS BEE(8)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Share
Share Share option  Retained
capital premium reserve  earnings Total
fE B
kZx EKizRR s ®REEH #gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
At 1 January 2019 W-Z—NE—F—A 74961 417,301 20247 329307 842816
Profit and total comprehensive income £ A FE & 2 E U 25 4 58
for the year - - - 192,586 192,586
Dividend paid to owners of the ENARRHEARE
Company - - - (62,388) (62,388)
Recognition of equity-settled share  FEFRIARBRIE 4 B LARKD A
based payments AR - - 54896 - 54,896
Shares repurchased and cancelled EARNS Rl ) (257) (9.064) = = (9321)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=-—A=+—H 74,704 408,237 76,143 459,505 1,018,589
Profit and total comprehensive income £ A FE & 2 E U es 2 58
for the year - - - 149,371 149,371
Dividend paid to owners of the ENARRHEEARE
Company - - - (83,083) (83,083)
Recognition of equity-settled share  FERRLARRIE G E LARR 1D A
based payments EB MR - - 28,473 - 28,473
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZF
+=-A=+—H 74,704 408,237 104,616 525,793 1,113,350
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

R 15 SRk 2

The following table summarizes the consolidated results, assets and
liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 December:

TR AKERBET —_A=1T—HLAEF

EMGRERE  BERBBRAME -

020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZE-NEFE ZE-N\F ZE—+F ZE—RF
3’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
R ARETT ARETT AR®TT ARETR
Results R
Revenue YA 27,304,556 | 27,181,732 26948237 24654011 21,454,756
Profit before taxation BRI AR 1,065,559 805,486 577,709 635,639 705,070
Taxation BB (341,053) (298:831) (200,202) (163,755) (86,012)
Profit for the year FRFE 724,506 506,655 377,507 471,884 619,058
Profit/(loss) attributable to FEERR i RS
non-controlling interests BB,/ (BE) 4,109 (54,685) (35,207) 17,068 115,262
Profit/(loss) attributable to UNGIE 2PNl
owners of the Company B,/ (&BE) 720,397 561,340 412,714 454,816 503,796
Assets BE
Non-current assets FrBEE 7,048,950 7,106,398 7,087,013 6,449,075 5,160,473
Current assets MENAE 12,164,006 | 10301946 10616385 10,556,702 7,825,684
Total assets BEE 19,212,956 | 17408344 17703398 17005777 12,986,157
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (1,668,836)| (1821312  (2742530) (3343865  (1,590,731)
Current liabilities mEAE (11,519,516) | (10,171042)  (10,032,038)  (8974472)  (7,244,005)
Total liabilities BeE (13,188,352) | (11992354)  (12,774568)  (12318337)  (8,834,736)
Capital and reserves BERER
Equity attributable to owners of ARRIERA
the Company eGSR 5,192,089 4,535,187 4,002,668 3672614 3,302,964
Non-controlling interests ElErl G 832,515 880,803 926,162 1,014,826 848457
Total Equity FEY o 6,024,604 5415990 4,928,830 4,687,440 4151421
Current ratio (current assets/ TR R (RBEE/
current liabilities) REAE) 1.06 101 1.06 118 108
Gearing ratio (total bank BARG B R (MRTT
borrowings, short term financing BE EHRERE.
notes, medium-term note, HHIZE . MEES
corporate bond, convertible ARRESREERE
bonds and obligations under BETMER/BEE)
finance lease/total assets) 33% 30% 37% 37% 29%

The results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2020

and its assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2020 are set forth on pages
82 to 225, and are presented on the basis set out in note 1 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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